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Our 3,300 employees are led by a manage-
ment team that has a proven record in meeting
the challenges presented by the changes
taking place within the oil and gas industry.
In spite of increasing demand and near record
high commodity prices, the level of drilling
activity has remained relatively flat during
this past year. Aggressive measures to control
costs to remain competitive in our major
markets have resulted in the Company report-
ing improved results in fiscal 2004 when
compared to the prior year. This would not

have been possible without the commitment

at all levels within the Company to retain our
position as the industry leader. This commit-
ment is reflected in the decision to invest
$32.2 million in fiscal 2004 to upgrade our
fleet of aircraft with another $28.4 million
scheduled for fiscal 2005. These new aircraft
along with improved base facilities provide
our customers with more efficient and
productive transportation services.

We recognize that markets change over

time and it was necessary during this past
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Logistics the world’s largest provider of
commercial helicopter services. In addition,
we hold a 50% interest in a joint venture
with Cobham PLC that provides primary
helicopter flight training to the United
Kingdom's Ministry of Defense. This joint venture
operates 53 aircraft. We anticipate expanding
this activity during the coming year.

Change has also taken place at the
corporate level. In April of this year, George
Small, our Chief Executive Officer since
2002, announced his intention to retire.
George has served the Company in several
roles for the past 27 years including
President since 1997 and Chief Financial
Officer prior to that time. George has provided
important leadership during his career with
Offshore Logistics and his contributions can
not be over stated. I will personally miss
working with George as will his many friends
and associates throughout the Company.
his
replacement, we were pleased to announce in
June that William E. Chiles had been selected.
Bill has had a very successful 30 year career
in the offshore drilling industry and will
bring his own style of leadership to the
Company as we move forward. Bill has a

Following an executive search for

proven record of accomplishment and is well
known throughout the industry for his
commitment to the highest standards of safe-
ty and integrity which were important
considerations in his selection as our new CEO
and President. His appointment is effective as
of July 15th, at which time he will also
become a member of the Board of Directors.
Earlier in the year, Howard Wolf, a long-
time Company Director and former Chairman,
resigned from the Board to serve as Chairman
of Stewart & Stevenson. Howard provided the
Board with an insight into corporate oppor-

tunities that were responsible for much of

the Company’s growth during the 1990's and
his contribution will be sorely missed. At our
meeting in June, the Board appointed Tom
Knudson to fill this open seat on the Board.
Tom retired from ConocoPhillips on January
1st of this year after serving 29 years in
various management and executive positions.
At the time of his retirement, Tom was
Senior Vice President of Human Resources,
Government Affairs and Communications
after completing an assignment as Chairman
of Conoco Europe Production and Exploration
based in London.

In closing, I think it's clear in this year
of change that we were up to the challenge
of providing our customers with premium
service while maintaining a strong balance
sheet that maximizes the financial return to
you, our shareholders. Our business is
healthy, and we believe that we have taken
the right steps to maximize profitability in
each of our operating segments. Our Gulf of
Mexico business should continue to show the
results of our focus on cost efficiency, even
if that market continues to remain flat. We've
worked hard to help our North Sea operations
succeed in the changed market, and we look
forward to continuing the growth of our
We reiterate our

pledge to provide safe and efficient helicopter

International business.

services to our worldwide customers while
building shareholder value and a Company of
which we can all be proud.

Thank you,

W%

Kenneth M. Jones
Chairman
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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A DIVERSIFIED FLEET
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The Eurocopter Super Puma 332 has a passenger capacity of 16 - 18

people and flies at a speed of up to 160 MPH It is used primarily in

North Sea and International operations.

The Sikorsky S-76, one of our medium-sized aircraft, has a passenger
capacity of 12 and can fly at a speed of up to 160 MPH. It is used in

International, North Sea and North American operations.

The Bell 407 is our work horse. It has a passenger capacity of
between 4 and 6 people and flies at a speed of up to 130 MPH. It

is used primarily in North American and International operations.



PASSENGER SPEED UNITS AS OF

CAPACITY (MPH) MARCH 31, 2004
LARGE AIRCRAFT 16-18 135-160 62
MEDIUM AIRCRAFT 12-13 115-160 101
SMALL AIRCRAFT 4-6 115-140 163
6
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independent oil and gas producers in the Gulf of Mexico.

Through the 3,300 people who work in the
Offshore Logistics group of companies worldwide,
we continue to set the standards for safe, reliable
and efficient service to the oil and gas industry.
Our past as well as future success is dependent on
all of our employees who work around the world
every day providing our customers with the highest
quality service in our industry.

North American Operations

Utilizing our fleet of almost 170 helicopters, we
service over 30% of the Gulf of Mexico market,
which is the dominant U.S. offshore oil and gas
producing basin. Our fleet is operated from 12
shore-based facilities along the Gulf coast, each of
which offers a mix of equipment including large
(18 passenger), medium (12-13 passenger) and
small (4-6 passenger) helicopters used for crew
transports and inter-field inspection services. These
bases are supported by our primary maintenance
facility and new, state-of-the-art training facility in
New Iberia, Louisiana. The shore base upgrade pro-
gram that we instituted last year has thus far been
very successful, as have our new safety and training
programs. We are proud that our efforts have signif-
icantly improved our pilot training capabilities and
that our new safety initiatives allowed us to achieve
a zero accident rate this past year. We are also
pleased that our efforts to attract new pilots
has advanced our goal of maintaining a stable and
experienced workforce.

We continued to operate successfully in
Alaska, where we maintained our position as the
largest provider of helicopter services, operating
15 aircraft primarily used to monitor the Aleyska
Pipeline, which we fly the length of every day,
year round.

Although we have yet to see a rebound in Gulf
of Mexico drilling activity, we were able to achieve a
year-to-year operating margin increase of almost 7%
due to the combination of a rate increase phased in
during fiscal 2004, cost reductions and increased
operating efficiencies generated by our new
programs and new aircraft. This business contributed
about 30% of our operating income in fiscal 2004.

North Sea/Europe Operations

We have maintained our position as one of the
two largest suppliers of helicopter services in the
North Sea and Europe. Our fleet in this area
consists of 53 aircraft, which comprises a 35% share
of the oil and gas market. In addition, we continued
to serve as sole civil supplier of search and rescue
and training services to Her Majesty’s Coast Guard.

Demand for helicopter services in the North Sea
market continued to decline in fiscal 2004. Since
the North Sea is considered to be a maturing
market, we believe that this slow down in drilling
activity is likely to continue. For us to remain
competitive in this region, last October we began a
restructuring of our North Sea operations to reduce
costs and increase operational and managerial
efficiencies. We expect to achieve over $15.0 million
in annualized savings beginning in fiscal 2005 as a
result of these restructuring efforts. Our North
Sea/Europe operations contributed approximately
20% of our operating income in fiscal 2004.

International Operations

We have become the largest supplier of
helicopter services outside the U.S. and Europe,
with a fleet of over 100 aircraft operating in
virtually every important offshore producing
basin. We have a significant presence in West
Africa, Australia, South and Central America, and




we maintain an equity participation with leading
operators in Egypt, Mexico and Brazil.

Our operating margins were lower in this unit
in fiscal 2004 due to short-term problems with a
limited number of contracts in certain of these
areas. We have taken corrective steps involving
those contracts and we continue to believe that
markets outside of the U.S. and Europe offer us the
most significant opportunities for long-term
growth. We believe we will see strong demand
in several other areas including West Africa,
Australia, China, and Trinidad. This business
contributed about 23% of our operating income in
fiscal 2004.

Technical Services

This business operates from three facilities,
one in the U.K. and two in the U.S. Our Redhill,
England facility performs airframe inspections,
refurbishments and modifications, as well as,
through a 50%-owned joint venture, helicopter
training and engineering support to the British
military. The U.S. facilities in Louisiana and
Arizona perform engine overhauls and repair and
transmission overhauls and testing on certain

types of aircraft. While the majority of these
services are performed for third parties, we

perform a portion of this work on our own aircraft.
This business contributed approximately 3% of our
operating income in fiscal 2004.

Production Management

Grasso Production Management, Inc. is one
of the largest contract operators of oil and gas
production facilities in the Gulf of Mexico.
Grasso services facilities mainly for independent
oil and gas producers and currently manages or
has personnel assigned to nearly 300 production
platforms. Grasso provides personnel, engineering,
production operating and paramedic services and
supplies transport between onshore bases and
offshore platforms. We also perform requlatory and
production reporting services for our customers.
Grasso provides us additional opportunities
to utilize our own aviation equipment. As the
number of production platforms in the Gulf of
Mexico continues to rise, we believe that we
will be able to expand this business, which
contributed about 3% of our operating income in
fiscal 2004.
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC,
ANNUAL REPORT (FORM 10-K)

INTRODUCTION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed by Offshore Logistics, Inc., a Delaware corporation, which we refer to
separately as Offshore Logistics or the registrant. We use the pronouns “we,” “our” and “us” to refer collectively to
Offshore Logistics, Bristow Aviation Holdings, Ltd. and our consolidated subsidiaries. We also own interests in other
entities that we do not consolidate for financial reporting purposes, which we refer to as unconsolidated affiliates.
Offshore Logistics, its subsidiaries and the unconsolidated affiliates are each a separate corporation, limited liability
company or other legal entity. Our use of the terms “we,” “our” and “us” does not suggest that we have abandoned their
separate identities or the legal protections given to them as separate legal entities.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are statements about our
future business, strategy, operations, capabilities and results; financial projections; plans and objectives of our
management; expected actions by us and by third parties, including our customers, competitors and regulators; and other
matters. Some of the forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as believes, belief, expects,
plans, anticipates, intends, projects, estimates, may, might, would, could or other similar words. All statements in this
Annual Report other than statements of historical fact or historical financial results are forward-looking statements.

Our forward-looking statements reflect our views and assumptions on the date of this Annual Report regarding
future events and operating performance. We believe that they are reasonable, but they involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors, many of which may be beyond our control, that may cause actual results to differ
materially from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.
Accordingly, you should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause our forward-
looking statements to be incorrect and actual events or our actual results to differ from those that are anticipated include all
of the following:

o  The risks and uncertainties described below under the heading “Risk Factors™;

e  The major oil companies do not continue to expand internationally;

e  We are not able to achieve anticipated savings from our North Sea restructuring;

¢  Changes in North Sea market conditions occur that reverse that area’s current downward trend;
¢  We are not able to re-deploy certain aircraft in Mexico;

e We are not able to favorably resolve our labor mediation efforts or our contingency plans are not
successful; and

*  We do not achieve anticipated benefit of fleet renewal program.

All forward-looking statements in this Annual Report are qualified by these cautionary statements and are only
made as of the date of this Annual Report. We do not undertake any obligation, other than as required by law, to update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

RISK FACTORS

If you hold our securities or are considering an investment in our securities, you should carefully consider the
following risks, together with the other information contained in this Annual Report.

The demand for our services is substantially dependent on the level of activity in the oil and gas industry.

We provide helicopter services to oil and gas exploration, development and production companies. As a result,
demand for our services is substantially dependent on activity levels and transportation needs in that industry, and our
revenue and profitability are largely dependent upon the worldwide levels of activity in oil and gas exploration,
development and production. These activity levels are principally affected by trends in, and expectations regarding, oil
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and gas prices, as well as the capital expenditure budgets of oil and gas companies. We cannot predict future oil and gas
price movements. Historically, the prices for oil and gas have been volatile and are subject to factors beyond our control,
such as:

e the supply of and demand for oil and gas and market expectations for such supply and demand;
e actions of OPEC and other oil producing countries to control prices or change production levels;
¢ general economic and political conditions, both worldwide and in particular regions;

¢ govermnmental regulation; and

» the price and availability of alternative fuels.

In addition, oil and gas companies are continually seeking to implement measures aimed at greater cost savings. As
part of these measures, these companies are attempting to improve cost efficiencies with respect to helicopter
transportation services. For example, these companies may reduce staffing levels on both old and new installations by
using new technology to permit unmanned installations and may reduce the frequency of transportation of employees by
increasing the length of shifts offshore. The continued implementation of these kinds of measures could reduce the
demand for helicopter transportation services and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We are highly dependent upon the level of activity in the Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea.

Approximately 55% of our fiscal 2004 operating revenue was derived from our helicopter services provided to
customers operating in North America and the North Sea. If activity in oil and gas exploration, development and
production in either of these areas declines, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially
and adversely affected. A decline in activity in fiscal 2004 in the North Sea negatively impacted our revenue in that

region. We cannct predict the levels of activity in these areas in future periods.

Our operations and future growth depend on the level of international oil and gas activity and our ability to operate in
these regions.

Approximately 31% of our fiscal 2004 operating revenue was attributable to our helicopter services provided to oil
and gas customers operating outside of North America and the North Sea. The demand for our helicopter services in our
International Operations depends on the level of oil and gas exploration, development and production activity in these
regions. We cannot predict the level of activity in these areas in future periods.

In addition, our ability to conduct our International Operations may be adversely affected by:

¢ local regulations restricting foreign ownership of helicopter operators;
¢ requirements to award contracts to local operators and to employ local citizens; and
¢ the number and location of new drilling concessions granted by foreign sovereigns.

If we are unable to continue to operate or retain contracts in foreign countries, our future business, financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected and our International Operations may not grow in

accordance with our expectations.

Our International Operations are also subject to various risks inherent in conducting business outside the United
States, including:

N
e political, social and economic instability, including risks of war; general strikes, civil disturbances and guerilla
activity;

e governmental actions that restrict payments or the movement of funds or result in the deprivation of contract
rights;

o the taking of property without fair compensation; and
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¢ the lack of well developed legal systems in some countries which could make it difficult for us to enforce our
contractual rights.

For example, there has been continuing unrest in Nigeria where we derived 42% of our fiscal 2004 International
Operations opeérating revenue. While this unrest has not adversely affected our International Operations, any future unrest
in Nigeria or our other operating regions could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We cannot predict whether any of these events will occur in the future in Nigeria or elsewhere.

Foreign exchange risks and controls may affect our financial position and results of operations.

Through our foreign operations, we are exposed to currency fluctuations and exchange rate risks. The majority of
our revenue and expenses from our North Sea Operations are in British Pound Sterling. In addition, some of our contracts
to provide services internationally provide for payment in foreign currencies. Qur foreign exchange rate risk is even
greater when our revenue is denominated in a currency different from the associated costs. We attempt to minimize our
foreign exchange rate risk exposure by contracting the majority of our services other than in our North Sea Operations in
U.S. dollars. As a result, a strong U.S. dollar may increase the local cost of our services that are provided under U.S.
dollar denominated contracts, which may reduce the demand for our services in foreign countries. Generally, we do not
enter into hedging transactions to protect against foreign exchange risks related to our operating revenue.

Because we maintain our financial statements in U.S. dollars, we are vulnerable to fluctuations in the exchange rate
between the British Pound Sterling and the U.S. dollar and between other foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar. In
preparing our financial statements, we must convert all non-U.S. dollar currencies to U.S. dollars. The effect of foreign
currency translation is reflected in a component of stockholders’ investment while foreign currency transaction gains or
losses are credited or charged to income and reflected in other income (expense). In the past three fiscal years our
stockholders' investment has increased by $62.4 million as a result of translation adjustments. Changes in exchange rates
could cause significant changes in our financial position and results of operations in the future.

We operate in countries with foreign exchange controls. These controls may limit our ability to repatriate funds
from our International Operations and unconsolidated affiliates or otherwise convert local currencies into U.S. dollars.
These limitations could adversely affect our ability to access cash from these operations.

We operate in many international areas through entities that we do not control.

We conduct many of our international operations through entities in which we have a minority investment or
through strategic alliances with foreign partners. For example, we have acquired interests in, and in some cases have lease
and service agreements with, entities that operate aircraft in Brazil, Egypt, Mexico and Norway. We derive significant
amounts of lease and service revenue and dividend income from these entities. In fiscal 2004 we derived approximately
$4.9 million of dividend income from our unconsolidated affiliates. More significantly, we received approximately $54.1
million in fiscal 2004 from the provision of aircraft and other services to unconsolidated affiliates. Because we do not
own a majority or maintain voting control of these entities, we do not have the ability to control their policies,
management or affairs. The interests of persons who control these entities or partners may differ from ours, and they may
cause such entities to take actions which are not in our best interest. If we are unable to maintain our relationships with
our partners in these entities, we could lose our ability to operate in these areas which could materially adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

We face substantial competition in both of our business segments.

The helicopter business is highly competitive. Chartering of helicopters is usually done on the basis of competitive
bidding among those having the necessary equipment, experience and resources. Factors that affect competition in our
industry include price, reliability, safety record, reputation, availability, equipment and quality of service.

In our North American Operations, we face competition from a number of providers. One of our competitors has
more helicopters in service in the Gulf of Mexico than we do. We have one significant competitor in the North Sea and
expect another competitor to enter the North Sea in the summer of 2004. In our International Operations, we also face
significant competition. In addition, foreign regulations may also require the awarding of contracts to local operators.

Many of our customers have the capability to perform their own helicopter operations should they elect to do so,
which has a limiting effect on our rates. The loss of a significant number of our customers or termination of a significant
number of our contracts could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.




The production management services business is also highly competitive. There are a number of competitors that
maintain a presence throughout the Gulf of Mexico. In addition, there are many smaller operators that compete with us on
a local basis or for single projects or jobs. Contracts for our Production Management Services are generally for a year or
less and could be awarded to our competitors upon expiration. Many of our customers are also able to perform their own
Production Management Services should they choose to do so.

As a result of significant competition, we must continue to provide safe and efficient service or we will lose market
share, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Labor problems could adversely affect us.

The pilots in our North American Operations and approximately 500 employees in our North Sea Operations are
represented under collective bargaining agreements. Any disputes over the terms of these agreements or our potential
inability to negotiate acceptable contracts with the unions that represent our employees under these agreements could
result in strikes, work stoppages or other slowdowns by the affected workers. The collective bargaining agreement that
covers our North American pilots became amendable in May 2003. Following approximately eight weeks of negotiations
with union representatives, an agreement could not be reached on several key areas, most notably compensation levels.
We and the union representatives agreed to seek assistance from the National Mediation Board in appointing an
independent mediator to assist with the negotiations. A mediator was assigned by the NMB and sessions have continued
to date with some progress being made. In the future, all negotiations will be at the behest of the NMB mediator. If the
mediator and the NMB should determine that no further progress is being made toward resolution, then the NMB can seek
a number of alternatives which include:

1. Declare a 30-day “cooling-off period.” Negotiations may continue during the “cooling-off period.” If
the dispute remains unresolved after the “cooling-off period,” then both parties would be released from
negotiations and could seek “self help”. When “self help” is available the pilots could then engage in a
work action that could take a variety of forms including a work stoppage or;

2. The NMB can continue negotiations for extended periods of time (in some instances for several years)
until one or both of the parties change their demands and reach an agreement.

We cannot predict whether our negotiations will be successful or, if not, what action our pilots might take if a
“cooling-off period” is declared. If our unionized workers engage in a strike, work stoppage or other slowdown, or other
employees elect to become unionized or existing labor agreements are renegotiated on, or future labor agreements contain,
terms that are unfavorable to us, we could experience a disruption of our operations or higher ongoing labor costs which
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Helicopter operations involve risks that may not be covered by our insurance or may increase our operating costs.

The operation of helicopters inherently involves a degree of risk. Hazards such as harsh weather and marine
conditions, mechanical failures, crashes and collisions are inherent in our business and may result in personal injury, loss
of life, damage to property and equipment and suspension or reduction of operations. Our aircraft have been involved in
accidents in the past, some of which have included loss of life and property damage. We may experience similar accidents
in the future. In addition, Grasso Production Management’s operations are subject to the normal risks associated with
working on oil and gas production facilities. These risks include injury to or death of personnel and damage to or loss of

property.

We attempt to protect ourselves against these losses and damage by carrying insurance, including hull and liability,
general liability, workers’ compensation and property and casualty insurance. Our insurance coverage is subject to
deductibles and maximum coverage amounts, and we do not carry insurance for all types of losses, including business
interruption. We cannot assure you that our existing coverage will be sufficient or that in the future we will be able to
maintain our existing coverage or that the premiums will not increase substantially. In addition, future terrorist activity,
accidents or other events could increase our insurance rates. The loss of our liability insurance coverage, inadequate
coverage from our liability insurance or future substantial increases in premiums could materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to government regulation that limits foreign ownership of aircraft companies.

United States. We are subject to regulations pursuant to the Federal Aviation Act of 1958, as amended, and other
statutes. Under the Federal Aviation Act, it is unlawful to operate certain aircraft for hire within the United States unless
such aircraft are registered with the Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA, and the operator of such aircraft has been
issued an operating certificate by the FAA. As a general rule, aircraft may be registered under the Federal Aviation Act
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only if the aircraft is owned or controlled by one or more citizens of the United States, and an operating certificate may be
granted only to a citizen of the United States. For purposes of these requirements, a corporation is deemed to be a citizen
of the United States only if, among other things, at least 75% of its voting interests are owned or controlled by U.S.
citizens. If persons other than U.S. citizens should come to own or control more than 25% of the voting interests in us, we
have been advised that our aircraft may be subject to deregistration under the Federal Aviation Act and we may lose the
privilege of operating within the United States. Deregistration of our aircraft or loss of our operating license for any
reason, including foreign ownership in excess of the permitted levels, would materially adversely affect our ability to
conduct our North American Operations. As of March 31, 2004, approximately 5.9% of our outstanding common shares
were held by persons with foreign addresses. Because a substantial portion of our common stock is publicly traded, our
foreign ownership may fluctuate on each trading day. In addition, these foreign ownership limitations restrict our ability
to issue or sell our common stock to non-U.S. citizens which could hurt our ability to raise equity or acquire assets or
businesses for common stock in the future.

United Kingdom. We are subject to the Licensing of Air Carriers Regulations 1992, and Regulations made under
the Civil Aviation Act 1992 and other statutes. We carry persons and property in our helicopters pursuant to an operating
license issued by the Civil Aviation Authority, or CAA.

Under the Licensing of Air Carriers Regulations 1992, it is unlawful to operate certain aircraft for hire within the
United Kingdom unless such aircraft are approved by the CAA. The holder of an operating license must meet the
ownership and control requirements of Council Regulation 2407/92. This means that the entity that operates under the
license must be owned directly or through majority ownership by United Kingdom and European Economic Union Area
nationals and must at all times be effectively controlled by them. We own 49% of the common stock of Bristow and have
put/call arrangements with the other two stockholders. If we were to purchase any Bristow shares pursuant to this
arrangement, we would be required to find a qualified European owner to acquire those shares to retain Bristow's CAA
operating license. Revocation of the CAA operating license for any reason would have a material adverse effect on our
North Sea Operations.

International. Certain of our International Operations are subject to restrictions on foreign ownership. Because of
this, these operations are conducted primarily through unconsolidated affiliates in which local citizens own interests or
pursuant to arrangements under which we operate assets or conduct operations under contracts with local entities. If
changes in local regulation further limit foreign ownership, we may not be permitted to operate in certain regions under
our existing arrangements.

We cannot assure you that there will not be changes in or adoptions of U.S., U.K. or other foreign laws, regulations
or administrative requirements in any region where we operate, or the interpretation thereof, which could restrict or
prohibit our ability to operate in certain regions. Any such restriction or prohibition on our ability to operate may
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure to maintain an acceptable safety record may have an adverse impact on our ability to attract and retain
customers.

Our customers consider safety and reliability as primary concerns in selecting a provider of helicopter
transportation services. If we fail to maintain a record of safety and reliability that is satisfactory to our customers, our
ability to retain current customers and attract new customers may be adversely affected.

Our failure to attract and retain qualified personnel could have an adverse effect on us.

Our ability to attract and retain qualified pilots, mechanics and other highly trained personnel is an important factor
in determining our future success. Many of our customers require pilots of aircraft that service them to have very high
levels of flight experience. The market for these experienced and highly trained personnel is competitive and will become
more competitive if oil and gas industry activity levels increase. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be
successful in our efforts to attract and retain such persons. Some of our pilots and mechanics and those of our competitors
are members of the U.S. military reserves who have been called to active duty, and more could be called. If significant
numbers of such persons are called to active duty, it would reduce the supply of such workers and likely increase our labor
costs.




Our operations are subject to weather related and seasonal fluctuations.

Generally, our operations can be impaired by harsh weather conditions. Poor visibility, high wind and heavy
precipitation can affect the operation of helicopters and result in a reduced number of flight hours. A significant portion of
our operating revenue is dependent on actual flight hours and a substantial portion of our direct costs is fixed. Thus,
prolonged periods of harsh weather can materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In the Gulf of Mexico, the months of December through March have more days of harsh weather conditions than
the other months of the year. Heavy fog during those months often limits visibility. In addition, in the Gulf of Mexico,
June through November is tropical storm season. When a tropical storm is about to enter or begins developing in the Gulf
of Mexico, flight activity may increase because of evacuations of offshore workers. However, during tropical storms, we
are unable to operate in the area of the storm. In addition, as a significant portion of our facilities are located along the
Gulf of Mexicc coast, tropical storms may cause substantial damage to our property there, including helicopters.
Additionally, we incur costs in evacuating our aircraft, personnel and equipment prior to tropical storms.

The fall and winter months have fewer hours of daylight, particularly in the North Sea. Consequently, flight hours
are generally lower at these times, which typically results in a reduction in operating revenue during those months. While
some of our aircraft are equipped to fly at night, we generally do not do so. Accordingly, our reduced ability to operate in
harsh weather conditions and darkness may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Environmental regulations and liabilities may increase our costs and adversely affect us.

All of our operations are subject to local environmental laws and regulations that impose limitations on the
discharge of pollutants into the environment and establish standards for the treatment, storage, recycling, and disposal of
toxic and hazardous wastes. The nature of the business of operating and maintaining helicopters requires that we use,
store, and dispose of materials that are subject to environmental regulation. Liabilities associated with environmental
matters could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. For additional
information see "Legal Proceedings.”



PART 1

ITEM 1. Business
OVERVIEW

We are a leading provider of helicopter transportation services to the worldwide offshore oil and gas industry with
major operations in the Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea, We also have operations, both directly and indirectly, in most
of the other major offshore oil and gas producing regions of the world, including Australia, Brazil, China, Mexico, Nigeria
and Trinidad. As of March 31, 2004, we operated 332 aircraft and our unconsolidated affiliates operated an additional 96
aircraft throughout the world. We are also a leading provider of production management services for oil and gas
production facilities in the Gulf of Mexico.

We provide helicopter transportation services through our consolidated subsidiaries, our interest in Bristow
Aviation Holdings, Ltd., or Bristow, and our unconsolidated affiliates. Our Production Management Services are
conducted through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Grasso Production Management, or GPM.

The United Kingdom, as do most countries, limits foreign ownership of aviation companies. To comply with these
restrictions, we own only 49% of the common stock of Bristow, but we own 100% of Bristow’s subordinated debt. In
addition, we have a put/call agreement with the other two stockholders of Bristow which grants us the right to buy all of
their shares of Bristow common stock (and them the right to require us to buy all of their shares). Under UK. law, to
maintain Bristow’s operating license, we would be required to find a qualified European owner to acquire any of the
Bristow shares that we have the right or obligation to acquire under the agreement.

To comply with other foreign ownership limitations, yet expand internationally, we have formed or acquired
interests in numerous foreign helicopter operations. These interests typically combine local ownership interest with our
experience in providing helicopter services to the oil and gas industry. Because we do not own a majority of the equity or
maintain voting control of these entities, we may not have the ability to control their policies, management or affairs. We
refer to these entities as unconsolidated affiliates.

For a further description of our unconsolidated affiliates, see the statements under “Introduction” and “Risk
Factors” and Note C in our “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Fora
further discussion of Bristow see Note K in our “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included elsewhere in this
Annual Report.

We operate our business in two segments: Helicopter Activities and Production Management Services. We
conduct our Helicopter Activities through four business units:

o North American Operations;
o North Sea Operations;
o International Operations; and
¢ Technical Services.
For additional information about our two segments, see Note L in our “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” included elsewhere in this Annual Report. For a description of certain risks affecting our business and

operations, see “Risk Factors” included in this Annual Report.

We are a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1969. Our executive offices are located at 224 Rue de Jean, Post
Office Box 5-C, Lafayette, Louisiana, 70505. Our telephone number is (337) 233-1221.



All of our periodic report filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, pursuant to Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, for fiscal periods ending on or after December 15, 2002 are
made available, free of charge, through our website located at http://www.olog.com, including our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these reports.
These reports are available through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish
such material to the Securities and Exchange Commission. In addition, the public may read and copy any materials we
file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549 or on their
Internet website located at http://www.sec.gov. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room and the SEC’s Internet website by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

HELICOPTER ACTIVITIES

Our customers charter our helicopters to transport personnel and time-sensitive equipment from onshore bases to
offshore drilling rigs, platforms and other installations. We classify our aircraft fleet into three categories: small, medium
and large. Small aircraft typically hold four to six passengers and are better suited for daytime flights and shorter routes.
Medium aircraft hold up to 13 passengers and are the most versatile part of our fleet as they can fly in a variety of different
operating conditions and a variety of distances. Large aircraft hold up to 18 passengers and are capable of flying in harsh
weather conditions.

The following table sets forth the number of our aircraft operated as of the dates indicated:

As of March 31,
2004 2003 2002

North American Operations ..........ccoevrerevierenerireeneecrnaaanns 172 178 200
North Sea Operations ......c..c.ocoocvvrvirninriineieceseecenens 53 57 65
International OPerations........ccccovorvoreereiierenreneeineinnenecrninens 101 97 77
Technical SerVICES ....cccvivvireiricerieceierinres st 6 3 3
TOtal .o 32 335 345
Additional aircraft operated by unconsolidated affiliates....... 96 91 83

The following table shows the distribution of our small, medium and large aircraft among our business units as of
March 31, 2004:

Number in Fleet

North American North Sea International Technical
Type Operations Operations Operations Services Total
Small 141 1 27 -- 169
Medium 26 11 58 6 101
Large 5 41 16 -- 62
Total 172 53 101 6 332

North American Operations

We conduct our North American Helicopter Activities primarily from 12 operating facilities along the Gulf of
Mexico, with additional operations in Alaska. As of March 31, 2004, we operated 157 aircraft in the Gulf of Mexico and
15 aircraft in Alaska. We are the second largest supplier of helicopter services in the Gulf of Mexico and a major supplier
in Alaska, where we fly the entire length of the Alyeska pipeline every day. The Gulf of Mexico is a major offshore oil
and gas producing region with approximately 4,000 production platforms. These platforms are typically unmanned and
are most efficiently serviced by our small aircraft.

North Sea Operations

We are the second largest provider of helicopter services in the North Sea, where there are harsh weather conditions
and geographically concentrated offshore facilities. The facilities in the North Sea are large and require frequent crew
change flight services. We deploy a majority of our large aircraft in this region. In addition to our oil and gas helicopter
services, we are the sole civil supplier of search and rescue services to Her Majesty’s Coast Guard. As of March 31, 2004,
we operated 53 aircraft in the North Sea. We also have a service agreement with, and ownership interest in, an
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unconsolidated affiliate in Norway whereby we provide services and technical support to this entity and lease them aircraft
for use in their operations.

International Operations

We also provide helicopter services to most of the major offshore oil and gas producing regions of the world
beyond the Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea. Our International Operations are conducted in a variety of different locales,
where we deploy small, medium and large aircraft dependent on the mission requirements and local operating conditions.
As of March 31, 2004, our International fleet was composed of 101 aircraft in 10 different countries. Of these aircraft, 38
helicopters were operated in Central and South America (Brazil, Colombia, Mexico and Trinidad), 41 aircraft in Nigeria,
11 aircraft in Australia and 11 aircraft elsewhere throughout the world.

Unconsolidated Affiliates

Most countries limit foreign ownership of aviation companies. To comply with these regulations and yet expand
internationally, we have formed or acquired interests in numerous foreign helicopter operations. These investments
typically combine a local ownership interest with our experience in providing helicopter services to the oil and gas
industry. These arrangements have allowed us to expand operations while diversifying the risks and reducing the capital
outlays associated with independent expansion. We lease many of our own aircraft to these unconsolidated affiliates to
service customers in foreign countries. Set forth below is a brief description of our significant unconsolidated affiliates:

Mexico. We own a 49% interest in Heliservicio Campeche, S.A. de C.V. or HC, a Mexican corporation that
provides offshore helicopter transportation primarily to the Mexican national oil company, and onshore
helicopter services to the Mexican Federal Electric Commission. As of March 31, 2004, HC owned three aircraft
and leased 18 aircraft from us to service its customers.

We own a 49% interest in Rotorwing Leasing Resources, or RLR, a Louisiana limited liability company. As of
March 31, 2004, RLR owned 6 aircraft which it leases to HC and did not lease any aircraft from us.

Brazil. We own a 20% interest in Aeroleo Taxi Aereo S.A., or Aeroleo, a Brazilian corporation. Aeroleo
provides offshore helicopter transportation services primarily to the Brazilian national oil company, and also
serves other oil and gas companies. As of March 31, 2004, Aeroleo owned two aircraft and leased ten aircraft
from us.

Egypt. We own a 25% interest in Petroleum Air Services, or PAS, an Egyptian corporation. PAS provides
helicopter and fixed wing transportation to the oil and gas industry. Additionally, spare fixed-wing capacity is
chartered to tourism operators. As of March 31, 2004, PAS owned 30 aircraft and did not lease any aircraft from
us.

Norway. We own a 49% interest in Norsk Helikopter AS, a Norwegian corporation that provides helicopter
transportation services in the Norwegian sector of the North Sea. As of March 31, 2004, Norsk operated two
aircraft and leased six aircraft from us.

United Kingdom. We own a 50% interest in both FBS Limited, or FBS, FB Heliservices Limited, or FBH, and
FB Leasing Limited, or FBL, British corporations which principally provide pilot training, maintenance and
support services to the British military. As of March 31, 2004, FBS and FBL owned a total of 53 aircraft.
Additionally, FBH leased three aircraft from us to service a support contract for the British military in Central
America.

Technical Services

Our Technical Services business unit provides helicopter repair and overhaul services from facilities located in
Tucson, Arizona, New Iberia, Louisiana, and Redhill, England. These services include airframe refurbishments, engine
overhauls, major inspections, engineering and design services, technical manpower support and transmission testing.
While a portion of this work is performed on our own aircraft, the majority of these services are performed for third
parties. Our Technical Services business unit also provides engineering and administrative support to the 33 aircraft
operated by FBS, FBH and FBL for training the British military.




PRODUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We are also a leading independent contract operator of oil and gas production facilities in the Gulf of Mexico. As
of March 31, 2004, we managed or had personnel assigned to 288 production facilities in the Gulf of Mexico. Our
customers are typically independent oil and gas companies who hire us to monitor and maintain their offshore production
facilities and provide other services for certain onshore facilities. When servicing offshore oil and gas production
facilities, our employees normally live on the facility for a seven-day rotation. Our services include furnishing personnel,
engineering services, production operating services, paramedic services and providing transportation of personnel and
supplies between onshore bases and offshore facilities. This provides us additional opportunities to use our helicopter
transportation services. We also handle regulatory and production reporting for some of our customers.

The production management business depends primarily on production activity levels in the offshore oil and gas
industry. Since 90% of our production management costs consist of labor and contracted transportation services, we are
able to scale our operations to market conditions.

AIRCRAFT FLEET

The composition of our fleet as of March 31, 2004, and some of the characteristics of the individual types of
aircraft we own or lease are as follows:

_ Passenger Speed

Tvpe Number Capacity (MPH)
Small Helicopters
AS355 Twinstar ......c.ccooeervcevinecnnnne. 1 5 135
Bell 206L Series ......cccocoovnvivcninrncanee, 80 6 125
Bell 206B Jet Ranger.......ccccooeeiinennen. 29 4 115
Bell 407 ..o 35 6 130
Bo-105 e 8 4 125
EC 120 10 4 140
Medium Helicopters
Bell 212 o 31 12 115
Bell 412 i, 26 13 140
Sikorsky S-76 .vvvviveeriiieceeeeee, 44 12 160
Large Helicopters
AS332L Super Puma ......cooeveiinnininnns 37 18 160
Bell 2148T o 6 18 150
Sikorsky S-61 .....occovereiciiincneneen 19 18 135
Other (includes fixed wing)................ _6
Total ..o 332

We owned 326 of the 332 aircraft that we operated as of March 31, 2004. We hold the remaining six aircraft under
operating leases.

Fleet Management

We are able to deploy our aircraft to the regions with the greatest demand. There are also additional markets for
helicopter services beyond the oil and gas industry. These other markets include emergency medical transportation,
agricultural and forestry support and general aviation activities. While we do not service these markets, they enable us to
better manage our helicopter fleet by providing both a source of additional aircraft during times of high demand in the oil
and gas industry and potential purchasers for our excess aircraft during times of reduced demand in the oil and gas
industry.

In fiscal year 2003, we initiated a fleet renewal program. In December 2002, we entered into a contract with
Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, a major helicopter manufacturer, to acquire 15 new medium-sized helicopters, which are
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our most versatile aircraft. This agreement includes a trade-in feature for the first 15 new aircraft acquired. Six of the 15
initial aircraft were delivered in fiscal 2004 and the remaining nine aircraft are expected to be delivered at a rate of three
aircraft per year from calendar 2004 through 2006. In addition, the contract gives us the option to purchase up to 24
additional aircraft with deliveries through 2008.

In connection with our fleet renewal plan, in March 2003, we also entered into a contract with Bell Helicopter
Textron Canada Ltd., a major helicopter manufacturer, to acquire 14 new small helicopters. Two of these aircraft were
delivered in 2003, seven are expected to be delivered in 2004 and five are expected to be delivered in 2005. In addition,
the contract gives us the option to purchase an additional five aircraft for delivery in 2004 and 2005.

In January 2004, we entered into a purchase agreement with Eurocopter for two new large aircraft to be delivered
in calendar 2005. In connection with this purchase agreement, Eurocopter has found a purchaser for five of our used large
aircraft. The proceeds from the sale of the five used aircraft and some surplus spares will fund the purchase of the two
new aircraft.

Additionally, in March 2004, we entered into another contract with Bell Helicopter Textron Canada Ltd. to acquire
a new medium aircraft. This aircraft is expected to be delivered in the third quarter of fiscal year 2005.

CUSTOMERS AND CONTRACTS

The principal customers for our Helicopter Activities are national and international oil and gas companies. During
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, Shell Oil Company accounted for 11%, 15% and 14%, respectively, of our operating revenue.
No other customer accounted for 10% or more of our operating revenue during those fiscal years.

Our customers charter helicopters for varying periods and, in some cases, these contracts may permit the customer
to cancel the charter before the end of the contract term. Our charges under these charter contracts are generally based on
either a daily or monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour flown. We also provide services to customers on a
basis we refer to as “ad hoc”, which usually entails a shorter notice period and shorter duration. Our charges for ad hoc
services are generally based on either an hourly rate, or a daily or monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour
flown. Our rate structure is based on fuel costs remaining at or below a predetermined threshold. Fuel costs in excess of
this threshold are charged to the customer.

Customers of our production management business are primarily independent oil and gas companies that own oil
and gas production facilities in the Gulf of Mexico. These companies outsource production management to companies
such as GPM. This allows the customers to focus on their core activities, which are the exploration for and development
of oil and gas reserves. During the past three fiscal years, no single production management customer accounted for more
than 10% of our operating revenue.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

United States. As a commercial operator of small aircraft, our U.S. operations are subject to regulations under the
Federal Aviation Act of 1958 and other laws. We carry persons and property in our helicopters under an Air Taxi
Certificate granted by the Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA. The FAA regulates our U.S. flight operations and, in
this respect, exercises jurisdiction over personnel, aircraft, ground facilities and certain technical aspects of our operations.
The National Transportation Safety Board is authorized to investigate aircraft accidents and to recommend improved
safety standards. Our U.S. operations are also subject to the Federal Communications Act of 1934 because we use radio
facilities in our operations.

Under the Federal Aviation Act, it is unlawful to operate certain aircraft for hire within the United States unless
such aircraft are registered with the FAA and the FAA has issued an operating certificate to the operator. As a general rule,
aircraft may be registered under the Federal Aviation Act only if the aircraft are owned or controlled by one or more
citizens of the United States and an operating certificate may be granted only to a citizen of the United States. For
purposes of these requirements, a corporation is deemed to be a citizen of the United States only if, among other things, at
least 75% of its voting interests are owned or controlled by United States citizens. If persons other than United States
citizens should come to own or control more than 25% of our voting interest, we have been advised that our aircraft may
be subject to deregistration under the Federal Aviation Act and we may lose our ability to operate within the United States.
Deregistration of our aircraft for any reason, including foreign ownership in excess of permitted levels, would materially
adversely affect our ability to conduct our North American Operations. As of March 31, 2004, approximately 1,341,500 of
our common shares were held by persons with foreign addresses. These shares represented approximately 5.9% of our
total outstanding common shares as of March 31, 2004. Because a substantial portion of our common stock is publicly
traded, our foreign ownership may fluctuate on each trading day.
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United Kingdom. Our UXK. operations are subject to the Licensing of Air Carriers Regulations 1992, and
Regulations made under the Civil Aviation Act 1982 and other laws. We carry persons and property in our helicopters
under an operating license issued by the Civil Aviation Authority, or CAA.

The CAA regulates our U.K. flight operations, exercises jurisdiction over personnel, aircraft, ground facilities and
certain technical aspects of those operations. Accident investigations are carried out by an inspector from the Air Accident
Investigation Branch of the Department of the Environment, Transport and Regions. The CAA often imposes improved
safety standards on the basis of a report of the inspector.

Under the Licensing of Air Carriers Regulations 1992, it is unlawful to operate certain aircraft for hire within the
United Kingdom unless such aircraft are approved by the CAA. Under Council Regulation 2407/92, majority ownership
of a holder of an operating license must be held by United Kingdom or European Economic Area nationals and must at all
times be effectively controlled by them, as control is defined by the CAA.

International. Our operations in areas other than the United States and the United Kingdom are subject to local
governmental regulations in those areas. Because of the impact of local laws, we conduct these operations primarily
through entities in which local citizens own a majority interest and we hold only a minority interest, or under contracts that
provide for us to operate assets for the local companies or to conduct their flight operations. Changes in local laws,
regulations or administrative requirements or their interpretation may have a material adverse effect on our business or
financial condition or on our ability to continue operations in these areas.

Production Management. The Minerals Management Service Bureau of the United States Department of the
Interior regulates the operations of oil and gas producers in the outer continental shelf of the Gulf of Mexico and, in this
respect, exercises jurisdiction over personnel, production facilities and certain technical aspects of GPM’s operations.

COMPETITION

The helicopter transportation business is highly competitive throughout the world. We compete against several
providers in almost all of our regions of operations. We have one significant competitor in the Gulf of Mexico and
another significant competitor in the North Sea. We believe that it is difficult for additional significant competitors to
enter our industry because it requires considerable working capital, a complex system of onshore and offshore bases,
personnel and operating experience. However, these requirements can be overcome with the appropriate level of customer
support and commitment. For example, a new competitor will be entering the North Sea in the summer of 2004.

Customers charter helicopters on the basis of competitive bidding among providers who have the necessary
experience, equipment, resources and professional reputation. As contracts expire, our customers typically negotiate
renewal terms with us for the next contract period. Sometimes, however, customers may solicit new bids. Contracts in
our North American Operations are generally renewable on an annual or shorter basis, which subjects us to competition on
a regular basis. In our North Sea and International Operations, contracts tend to be of longer duration.

In addition, many of our customers in the oil and gas industry have the capability to perform their own helicopter
services should they elect to do so, which has a limiting effect on our rates.

The production management business is also highly competitive. There are a number of competitors that maintain
a presence throughout the Gulf of Mexico. In addition, there are many smaller operators that compete locally or for single
projects or jobs. The two key elements in competing for production management contracts are personnel costs and
transportation costs. In addition, the reliability of the production manager and the quality of its personnel, training
programs and safety record are also important competitive factors.

INDUSTRY HAZARDS AND INSURANCE

Hazards, such as harsh weather and marine conditions, mechanical failures, crashes and collisions are inherent in
the offshore transportation industry and may cause losses of equipment, revenue and death of personnel.

In fiscal 2004, we did not have any helicopter accidents involving fatalities. However, subsequent to year end, we
had a helicopter accident in Alaska that resulted in one fatality. In fiscal 2003, we had three helicopter accidents involving
fatalities: an accident in Greece resulted in five fatalities; an accident in the North Sea resulted in 11 fatalities; and an
accident in the Gulf of Mexico resulted in one fatality and three people being injured. We maintain insurance with respect
to the aircraft involved and related liabilities and believe that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover any claims
ultimately paid.
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We maintain hull and liability insurance, which generally insures us against damage to our aircraft, as well as
certain legal liabilities to others. We also carry workers” compensation, auto liability, property and casualty coverages for
most of our U.S. and U.K. operations. It is also our policy to carry insurance for or require our customers to indemnify us
against expropriation, war risk and confiscation of the helicopters we use in our international operations.

Recent terrorist attacks, the continuing threat of terrorist activity and economic and political uncertainties have led
to significant increases in our premiums for much of our insurance protection. There is no assurance that in the future we
will be able to maintain our existing coverage or that we will not experience further substantial increases in premiums.
There can also be no assurance that our liability coverage will be adequate to cover all potential claims that may arise.

Our production management operations are subject to the normal risks associated with working on oil and gas
production facilities. These risks could result in damage to or loss of property and injury to or death of personnel. We
carry customary business insurance including general liability, workers’ compensation, automobile liability and property
and casualty coverages.

ENVIRONMENTAL

All of our operations are subject to national and local laws and regulations controlling the discharge of materials
into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment. To date, such laws and regulations have
not had a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Increased public awareness
and concern over the environment, however, may result in future changes in the regulation of the oil and gas industry,
which in turn could adversely affect us. We have been named as a potentially responsible party in connection with certain
sites. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”

EMPLOYEES
As of March 31, 2004, we employed approximately 3,300 employees.

We employ approximately 300 pilots in our North American Operations who are represented by the Office and
Professional Employees International Union (“OPEIU”) under a collective bargaining agreement. Because this agreement
became amendable in May 2003, we began negotiations with union representatives in March 2003. After approximately
eight weeks of discussions, an agreement could not be reached on several key areas, most notably compensation levels.
Both the union representatives and we agreed to seek assistance from the National Mediation Board, or NMB, in
appointing an independent mediator to assist with the negotiations. A mediator was assigned by the NMB and sessions
have continued to date with some progress being made. In the future, all negotiations will be at the behest of the NMB
mediator. If the mediator and the NMB should determine that no further progress is being made toward resolution, then
the NMB can seek a number of alternatives which include:

1. Declare a 30-day “cooling-off period.” Negotiations may continue during the “cooling-off period.” If
the dispute remains unresolved after the “cooling-off period,” then both parties would be released from
negotiations and could seek “self help”. When “self help” is available the pilots could then engage in a
work action that could take a variety of forms including a work stoppage or;

2. The NMB can continue negotiations for extended periods of time (in some instances for several years)
until one or both of the parties change their demands and reach an agreement.

We have contingency plans in place to respond to these scenarios and believe we will be able to continue
operations with limited or no disruption in services. However, no assurances can be given that these plans will be

effective.

We do not believe that current ongoing efforts will place us at a disadvantage with our competitors as we believe
that pay scales, benefits, and work rules will continue to be similar throughout the industry.

We employ approximately 500 employees (pilots, air crewman, mechanics, and support staff) in our North Sea
Operations and certain Technical Services Operations that are represented by collective bargaining agreements which are

ongoing with no specific termination dates.

We believe that our relations with our employees are satisfactory.
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ITEM 2. Properties

We describe the number and types of aircraft we operate under “Business—Aircraft Fleet” above. In addition, we
lease the significant properties listed below for use in our operations. These facilities are generally suitable for our
operations and in most cases can be replaced with other available facilities if necessary.

o Approximately 16.8 acres of land at the Acadiana Regional Airport in New Iberia, Louisiana, under a lease
expiring in fiscal 2030. We have constructed on that site office, training, parts facilities and helicopter
maintenance facilities containing about 84,000 square feet of floor space. The property has access to the airport
facilities, as well as to a major highway.

o Approximately 14,440 square feet of office space in a building in Lafayette, Louisiana under a lease expiring in
2005.

o Land and facilities at Redhill Aerodrome near London, England under a lease expiring in 2075. Other leases of
certain hangars, offices and aviation fuel facilities at Redhill Aerodrome expire on June 30, 2004,

o A helicopter terminal, offices and hangar facilities at Aberdeen Airport, Scotland under a lease expiring in 2013
with an option to extend to 2023. We also maintain additional hangar and office facilities at Aberdeen Airport
under a lease expiring in 2030.

e Various hangars and terminal access at Norwich Airport, England under a lease expiring in 2008.
o Office space and hangar facilities at Sumburgh Airport in Sumburgh, Shetland under a lease expiring in 2019,

e Approximately 8,036 square feet of office space in a building in Houston, Texas, under a lease expiring in 2006,
which is used by our production management business.

* Approximately 8,201 square feet of office space in a building in Lafayette, Louisiana, under a lease expiring in
2007.

o Approximately 42,000 square feet of office and shop space in a building in Tucson, Arizona under a lease
expiring in 2007, which is used by our technical services business unit.

In addition to these facilities, we lease various office and operating facilities worldwide, including facilities along
the Gulf of Mexico which support our North American Operations and numerous residential locations near our operating
bases in the United Kingdom, Australia, China, Nigeria, and in the Caribbean primarily for housing pilots and staff
supporting those areas of operation.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The United States Environmental Protection Agency, also referred to as the EPA, has in the past notified us that we
are a potential responsible party, or PRP, at three former waste disposal facilities that are on the National Priorities List of
contaminated sites. Under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, also
known as the Superfund law, persons who are identified as PRPs may be subject to strict, joint and several liability for the
costs of cleaning up environmental contamination resulting from releases of hazardous substances at National Priorities
List sites. We were identified by the EPA as a PRP at the Western Sand and Gravel Superfund site in Rhode Island in
1984, at the Sheridan Disposal Services Superfund site in Waller County, Texas in 1989, and at the Gulf Coast Vacuum
Services Superfund site near Abbeville, Louisiana in 1989. We have not received any correspondence from the EPA with
respect to the Western Sand and Gravel Superfund site since February 1991, nor with respect to the Sheridan Disposal
Services Superfund site since 1989. Remedial activities at the Gulf Coast Vacuum Services Superfund site were
completed in September 1999 and the site was removed from the National Priorities List in July 2001. Although we have
not obtained a formal release of liability from the EPA with respect to any of these sites, we believe that our potential
liability in connection with these sites is not likely to have a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition.

We are involved from time to time in various litigation and regulatory matters arising in the ordinary course of

business. The amount, if any, of our ultimate liability with respect to these matters cannot be determined, but we do not
expect the resolution of any pending matters to have a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition.
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ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not applicable.
ITEM 4a. Executive Officers of the Registrant
Under our by-laws, our board of directors elects our executive officers annually. Each executive officer remains in

office until his or her successor is elected. There are no family relationships among any of our executive officers. At
March 31, 2004, our executive officers were as follows:

Name Age Position Held with Registrant
George M. Small.........cccoevirnn, 59 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Drury A. Milke.....ooeriieiiieieienen, 46 President, Air Logistics, LLC
Keith Chanter.........cooeceeiccnenencan, 45 Managing Director, Bristow Helicopters Ltd.
Bill Donaldson .........c..ccccccceeviennen. 64 President, Grasso Production Management, Inc.
H. Eddy Dupuis........ccocooceevrvinnnnn, 39 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

Mr. Small joined us in 1977 as Controller. He was elected Vice President — Treasurer in 1979, Chief Financial
Officer and Secretary in 1986, President in 1997 and Chief Executive Officer in 2002. On April 28, 2004, we announced
that Mr. Small would retire later in the year and that our Board of Directors has begun a search for a replacement. Mr.
Small will remain with us for six months following the naming of a new CEO to provide for a smooth transition in
leadership.

Mr. Milke joined us in 1988 as Director of Planning and Development and was elected Vice President in 1990,
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary in 1998, Executive Vice President ~ International Operations in 1999 and President,
Air Logistics, LLC in 2002,

Mr. Chanter joined Bristow in 1997 as Finance Director. He was appointed Managing Director of Bristow in 1999.
Prior to joining us, Mr. Chanter held a variety of financial roles within the BOC Group.

Mr. Donaldson joined us in 19935 as Vice President, Marketing of GPM. In 1996, he was appointed President of
GPM and currently serves in that position. Mr. Donaldson has 40 years experience in the offshore oil service business in
the Gulf of Mexico. Prior to joining us, Mr. Donaldson held the positions of President of Savage Drilling, Inc. and Vice
President, Operations for Tidewater, Inc.

Mr. Dupuis joined us in 1998 as Controller. He was elected Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
in 1999. Prior to joining us, Mr. Dupuis was a Manager with Arthur Andersen LLP.
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PART II
ITEM S. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Since March 12, 2003, our common stock has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol
“OLG”. Prior to becoming listed on the NYSE, the common stock had been quoted on the Nasdaq National Market

system since 1984.

The following table shows the range of closing prices for our common stock during each quarter of our last two
fiscal years.

March 31. 2004 March 31, 2003
High Low High Low
First Quarter......c..c.coeveivneeennne. $22.15 $17.53 $23.89 $19.41
Second Quarter..........cocevreeveanenn. 22.10 19.45 23.50 16.41
Third Quarter ........coeeevevriennnnn, 25.64 20.69 23.07 18.01
Fourth Quarter........coceeceevevnnnnn. 24.40 20.50 22.64 17.01

As of April 30, 2004, there were approximately 818 holders of record of the common stock.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock since January 1984. On June 20, 2003, Offshore Logistics
issued $230 million of 6 /4% Senior Notes due 2013. The terms of the Senior Notes restrict our payment of cash
dividends to sharcholders.

Please refer to Item 12 of this Annual Report for information concerning securities authorized under our equity
compensation plans.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004, we issued securities without registration under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, not previously reported on the quarterly reports on Form 10-Q filed by us. In January 2004 we issued
general contractual obligations (the "Deferred Compensation Obligations™) to pay or distribute to the participants in its
Deferred Compensation Plan an indeterminate amount of future compensation, the receipt of which the participants elected
to defer in accordance with the terms of the Plan. The Deferred Compensation Obligations are payable in cash in a lump-
sum distribution or in installments, in accordance with the terms of the Plan, upon participants’ termination of employment
for any reason, including but not limited to death, disability or retirement. The Deferred Compensation Obligations are
not convertible into any other security of ours. As of March 31, 2004, the Issuer's outstanding Deferred Compensation
Obligations were $0.2 million.

The above private issuances of securities were issued in reliance upon the exemption for sales of securities not

involving a public offering, under section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The transactions were made in
accordance with Rule 506 of Regulation D and we filed a Notice of Sale on Form D with the SEC on January 12, 2004.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains selected historical consolidated financial data for us. You should read this table along
with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated
Financial Statements and “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” that are included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002 (1) 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Operating reVenue ..oocoveeeeirceerreneans $ 563,649 § 555,110 § 508,561 § 477003 § 417087

Net INCOME ...voviivincei e $ 53,104 $ 43130 § 44450 § 29914 § 8,890
Net income per common share:

BasiC ..o $ 2.36 3 1.92 $ 2.02 $ 141 8§ 0.42

Diluted ...ccveoereieceecceee $ 229 § 1.77 b 1.84 $ 132 § 0.42
Balance Sheet Data:

Total aSSEtS .....ovvivveereirierie e $ 1,044,903 $ 906,031 $ 807,301 $§ 754820 § 743,174

Long-term debt.........coveeviiiinriiiiiaies § 255,534 $ 232818 $ 191221 $ 209,190 § 224738

(1)  Effective April 1, 2001, we no longer consolidate the results of our Norwegian affiliate.
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in
conjunction with “Forward-Looking Statements™, “Risk Factors” and our Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2004, March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002, and the related notes thereto, included elsewhere in this
Annual Report.

Overview

We are a leading provider of helicopter transportation services to the worldwide offshore oil and gas industry with
major operations in the Gulf of Mexico and the North Sea. We also have operations, both directly and indirectly, in most
of the other major offshore oil and gas producing regions of the world, including Australia, Brazil, China, Mexico, Nigeria
and Trinidad. Additionally, we are a leading provider of production management services for oil and gas production
facilities in the Gulf of Mexico. As of March 31, 2004, we operated 332 aircraft and our unconsolidated affiliates operated
an additional 96 aircraft throughout the world.

The following table presents our operating results and other income statement information for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Operating revVenue........cceeeerereeercniincereicas $ 563,649 $ 555,110 $ 508,561
Gain on disposal of assets...........cccceeenenene 3,943 3,734 3,553

567,592 558,844 512,114
DHIECE COSEeviiricrirerirre et st 417,417 417,910 373,003
Depreciation and amortization.................... 39,543 37,664 35,246
General and administrative.............c.ccccoe... 38,892 34,478 31,732

495,852 490,052 439,981
Curtailment gain .........ccoeovercomrovcrcinnnnn. 21,665 - -
Operating iNCOME .........ocveerrcrvrereevrcreeaneans 93,405 68,792 72,133
Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates,

DIEE 1ttt ettt 11,039 12,054 6,604
Interest eXpense, Net ........ccoceevveniiiiiiniinnn, (15,140) (13,381) (13,569)
Loss on extinguishment of debt.................. (6,205) - --
Other income (expense), net........c.oceeeee. (7,810) (3,284) 1,148
Income before provision for income taxes

and minority interest .........occeceerreenenn 75,289 64,181 66,316
Provision for income taXes ............cccoeeurrnn 20,803 19,254 20,263
Minority interest ...c.ccovvveverercreenncercrne (1,382) (1,797) (1,603)
NEt INCOME...ccvieirierrrieeiee v e e esie s $ 53,104 $ 43,130 $ 44,450

We employ approximately 300 pilots in our North American Operations who are represented by the Office and
Professional Employees International Union (“OPEIU”) under a collective bargaining agreement. Because this agreement
became amendable in May 2003, we began negotiations with union representatives in March 2003. After approximately
eight weeks of discussions, an agreement could not be reached on several key areas, most notably compensation levels.
Both the union representatives and we agreed to seek assistance from the National Mediation Board, or NMB, in
appointing an independent mediator to assist with the negotiations. A mediator was assigned by the NMB and sessions
have continued to date with some progress being made. In the future, all negotiations will be at the behest of the NMB
mediator. If the mediator and the NMB should determine that no further progress is being made toward resolution, then
the NMB can seek a number of alternatives which include:

1. Declare a 30-day “cooling-off period.” Negotiations may continue during the “cooling-off period.” If the
dispute remains unresolved after the “cooling-off period,” then both parties would be released from
negotiations and could seek “self help”. When “self help” is available the pilots could then engage in a work
action that could take a variety of forms including a work stoppage or;
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2. The NMB can continue negotiations for extended periods of time (in some instances for several years) until
one or both of the parties change their demands and reach an agreement.

We have contingency plans in place to respond to these scenarios and believe we will be able to continue
operations with limited or no disruption in services. However, no assurances can be given that these plans will be
effective. We cannot reasonably estimate the financial impact of a work stoppage should one occur, on our results
of operations. Based on our latest proposals made to the union, base salary expense would increase by approximately
11% annually. Given that the pilot group represents only 33% of our North American workforce, we do not believe that
this level of adjustment or the results of our negotiations will place us at a competitive financial or operational
disadvantage.

Demand for our helicopter services in the North Sea in support of oil and gas production (excluding Search and
Rescue and Norway) has declined in the current fiscal year as evidenced by a 12.8% decrease in flight hours for the year
ended March 31, 2004 compared to the year ended March 31, 2003. We are not aware of any changes in market
conditions that would reverse this downward trend. Therefore, the demand for our helicopter services in the North Sea in
support of oil and gas production may continue to decline in forthcoming years.

In October 2003, we announced that we had begun a restructuring of our North Sea Operations. The restructuring
is designed to reduce costs and promote operational and managerial efficiencies to enable us to remain competitive in the
North Sea offshore helicopter market. As part of the restructuring program, we will reduce staffing levels by
approximately 100 positions, or 11%, of our United Kingdom workforce over a nine-month period. We will incur
approximately £2.8 million ($5.2 million) in severance and other restructuring costs of which £2.2 million ($4.1 million)
has been accrued at March 31, 2004; £0.6 million ($1.1 million) is expected to be expensed in fiscal 2005. The reductions
will generate approximately £3.5 million ($6.4 million) in savings during fiscal 2005, on an annualized basis, primarily
from decreased salary costs.

Also as part of the restructuring, in January 2004, we amended our only defined benefit pension plan covering
certain United Kingdom and other overseas employees. The amendment, which is effective February 1, 2004, essentially
removes the defined benefit feature for a participant’s future services and replaces it with a defined contribution
arrangement. Under the new defined contribution feature, we will contribute 5% of a participant’s non-variable salary to a
defined contribution section of the plans. The participant will be required to contribute a minimum of 5% of non-variable
salary. Participants were also given the option to transfer out of the plans. The net impact on our statement of income as a
result of these changes was a reduction in pension expense of approximately £1.4 million ($2.6 million) for our fourth
quarter of fiscal 2004. On an annual basis, we estimate that the net impact on our statement of income will be a reduction
of approximately £4.8 million ($8.6 million) in pension expense. In accordance with SFAS No. 88 “Employers’
Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”, the above
change to the plans constitutes a “curtailment” of benefits and accordingly, all previously deferred service gains or losses
are immediately recognized in the statement of income. At the date of the amendment we had a deferred prior service gain
of £11.9 million ($21.7 million), or $0.65 per diluted share, related to prior plan amendments. This amount was recorded
as a gain in fiscal 2004.

In November 2003, our 49%-owned Mexican affiliate was unsuccessful in renewing a contract for seven aircraft
contracted to PEMEX that it leases from us. The current contract with PEMEX expires September 30, 2004. We are
optimistic that, given the long and constructive history between PEMEX and our affiliate and the expanding demand for
helicopter services by PEMEX and other customers in Mexico, our affiliate will continue to operate most of the aircraft in
the Mexican offshore market. Alternatively, we believe these aircraft can be redeployed to other international markets in a
reasonable time period.

In conjunction with our previously announced fleet and facilities renewal and refurbishment program, we changed
the residual value estimate of certain aircraft and the useful lives estimate of certain aircraft, effective July 1, 2003. This
will more closely reflect the actual salvage values realized and useful lives experienced by us. The effect of this change
was a reduction in depreciation expense of $3.2 million, $2.3 million net of tax, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004.

General

We operate our business in two segments: Helicopter Activities and Production Management Services. We conduct
our Helicopter Activities through the following four business units:

¢ North American Operations;

¢ North Sea Operations;
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¢ International Operations; and

¢ Technical Services.

In fiscal 2004, our North American Operations, North Sea Operations, International Operations and Technical
Services contributed 26%, 29%, 31% and 5%, respectively, of our operating revenue. While operating revenue from our
Helicopter Activities segment has increased over the past three fiscal years, we expect that the percentage of our overall
revenue derived from our International Operations will continue to increase as the major oil and gas companies continue to
focus their operations in these regions.

Our Production Management Services segment contributed the remaining 9% of our operating revenue in fiscal
2004. Operating revenue from this segment in fiscal 2004 increased from fiscal 2003 primarily due to the addition of a
contract with a major customer.

Our operating revenue depends on the demand for our services and the pricing terms of our contracts. We measure
the demand for our helicopter services in flight hours. Demand for our services depends on the level of worldwide
offshore oil and gas exploration, development and production activities. We believe that our customers’ exploration and
development activities are influenced by actual and expected trends in commodity prices for oil and gas. Exploration and
development activities generally use medium-size and larger aircraft on which we typically earn higher margins. We
believe our production-related activities are less sensitive to variances in commodity prices, and accordingly, provide a
more stable activity base for our flight operations. We estimate that a majority of our operating revenue from Helicopter
Activities is related to the production activities of the oil and gas companies.

We generate additional revenue, which we refer to as corporate revenue, from intercompany leases of aircraft
within our Helicopter Activities segment. This revenue is eliminated in consolidation.

Our helicopter contracts are generally based on a two-tier rate structure consisting of a daily or monthly fixed fee
plus additional fees for each hour flown. We also provide services to customers on an “ad hoc™ basis, which usually
entails a shorter notice period and shorter duration. Our charges for ad hoc services are generally based on an hourly rate,
or a daily or monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour flown. We estimate that our ad hoc services have a
higher margin than our other helicopter contracts due to supply and demand dynamics. Our rate structure is based on fuel
costs remaining at or below a predetermined threshold. Fuel costs in excess of this threshold are charged to the customer.

Our helicopter contracts are for varying periods and generally permit the customer to cancel the charter before the
end of the contract term. In our North American Operations, we typically enter into short term contracts for 12 months or
less. In our North Sea Operations, contracts are longer term, generally between two and five years. In our International
Operations, contract length generally ranges from three to five years. At the expiration of a contract, our customers
typically negotiate renewal terms with us for the next contract period. Sometimes customers solicit new bids at the
expiration of a contract. Contracts are generally awarded based on a number of factors, including price, quality of service,
equipment and record of safety. An incumbent operator has a competitive advantage in the bidding process based on its
relationship with the customer, its knowledge of the site characteristics and its understanding of the cost structure for the
operations.

Maintenance and repair expenses, training costs, employee wages and insurance premiums represent a significant
portion of our overall expenses. Our production management costs also include contracted transportation services. We
expense maintenance and repair costs, including major aircraft component overhaul costs, as the costs are incurred.
Certain major aircraft components, primarily engines and transmissions, are maintained by third party vendors under
contractual arrangements. The maintenance costs related to these contractual arrangements are recorded ratably as the
components are used to generate flight revenue. As a result, our earnings in any given period are directly impacted by the
amount of our maintenance and repair expenses for that period.

In addition to our variable operating expenses, we incur fixed charges for depreciation of our property and
equipment. For accounting purposes, we depreciate our helicopters on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives to an estimated residual value of 30% to 50% of their original cost. We generally estimate the life of a helicopter to
be seven, 10 or 15 years depending on its size and condition. We estimate the residual value of our helicopters based on
the type of the aircraft.

We only own 49% of the common stock of Bristow, but we own 100% of Bristow’s subordinated debt. In addition,
we have a put/call agreement with the other two stockholders of Bristow which grants us the right to buy all of their shares
of Bristow common stock and grants to each of them the right to require us to buy their shares. The per share price in any
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such sale would be equal to its par value plus a factor representing a guaranteed return on investment. In March 2004, we
prepaid a portion of the put/call option price representing the amount of guaranteed return since inception, amounting to
$11.4 million. The payment was charged against minority interest on our balance sheet where this obligation had been
accrued. In consideration of this, the other shareholders of Bristow agreed to reduce the guaranteed return factor used in
calculating the put/call option price, effective April 1, 2004, from 12% per annum to LIBOR plus 3%. In May 2004, we
acquired eight million shares of deferred stock, essentially a subordinated class of stock with no voting rights, from
Bristow for £1 per share ($14.4 million in total). Bristow used these proceeds to redeem £8 million of its ordinary share
capital at par value on a pro rata basis from all of its outstanding shareholders, including ourselves. The result of these
changes will be to reduce the cost of the guaranteed return to the other shareholders, which we record as minority interest
expense, by approximately $2.4 million on an annual basis. Under U.K. law, to maintain Bristow’s operating license, we
would be required to find a qualified European owner to acquire any of the Bristow shares that we have the right or
obligation to acquire under the agreement. The only restriction under the put/call agreement limiting our ability to
exercise the put/call option is a requirement to consult with the CAA regarding the suitability of the new holder of the
Bristow shares. The put/call agreement does not contain any provisions should the CAA not approve the new holder of the
Bristow shares. However, we would work diligently to find a European owner suitable to the CAA. As a result of our
ownership and contractual arrangements, we consolidate the results of Bristow and its subsidiaries. For additional
information about Bristow, see Note A and Note K in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included
elsewhere in this Annual Report.

As aresult of local laws limiting foreign ownership of aviation companies, we conduct helicopter activities in many
foreign countries through interests in unconsolidated affiliates. In some cases, we realize revenue from these foreign
operations by leasing aircraft and providing services and technical support to those entities. We also receive dividend
income from the earnings of some of these entities. We report lease revenue as operating revenue and dividend income as
part of earnings from unconsolidated affiliates, as the results of these foreign operations are not included in our revenue or
operating income. For additional information about these unconsolidated affiliates, see Note C in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements™ included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Critical Accounting Policies

QOur consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by
generally accepted accounting principles, whereas, in other circumstances, we are required to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions that we believe are reasonable based upon information available. We base our estimates and judgments
on historical experience and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. We believe that of our significant accounting
policies, as discussed in the “Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements”, the following involve a higher degree of
judgment and complexity.

Income Taxes. We recognize foreign tax credits available to us to offset the U.S. income taxes due on income
earned from foreign sources. These credits are limited by the total income tax on the U.S. income tax return as well as by
the ratio of foreign source income in each statutory category to total income. In estimating the amount of foreign tax
credits that are realizable, we estimate future taxable income in each statutory category. These estimates are subject to
change based on changes in the market condition in each statutory category and the timing of certain deductions available
to us in each statutory category. We periodically reassess these estimates and record changes to the amount of realizable
foreign tax credits based on these revised estimates. Changes to the amount of realizable foreign tax credits can be
significant given any material change to our estimates on which the realizability of foreign tax credits is based.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events occur or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. We measure recoverability of assets
by comparing the estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from these assets throughout their estimated
useful lives to the carrying amount of the asset. If the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, we would be required to recognize an impairment loss. When determining fair value, we utilize
various assumptions, including projections of future cash flows. A change in these underlying assumptions will cause a
change in the results of the tests and, as such, could cause fair value to be less than the carrying amounts. In such event, we
would then be required to record a corresponding charge, which would reduce our earnings. We continue to evaluate our
estimates and assumptions and believe that our assumptions, which include an estimate of future cash flows based upon
the anticipated performance of the underlying business units, are appropriate.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue from charters of helicopters is recognized as performed based on contractual
charter rates. The helicopter charters are for varying periods and generally permit the customer to cancel the charter
before the end of the contract term. The charges under these charter contracts are generally based on either a daily or
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monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour flown. Additionally, we also provide services to customers on a basis
we refer to as “ad hoc”, which usually entails a shorter notice period and shorter duration. Our charges for ad hoc services
are generally based on either an hourly rate, or a daily or monthly fixed fee, plus additional fees for each hour flown. Our
rate structure is based on fuel costs remaining at or below a predetermined threshold. Fuel costs in excess of this threshold
are charged to the customer. Revenue from Production Management Services is recognized as these services are
performed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We routinely review our accounts receivable balances and make adequate
provisions for doubtful accounts based on historical experience, our customers’ financial strength and other information.
If our evaluation of our customers’ creditworthiness changes or is incorrect, we may have to adjust the allowance for our
receivables.

Inventory Reserve. We maintain inventory that primarily consists of spare parts to service our aircraft. We
periodically review the condition and continuing usefulness of the parts to determine the adequacy of the valuation
reserve. If our valuation of these parts is significantly different from the realizable value of the parts, an additional
provision may be required.

Insurance. We are self-insured for our group medical insurance program and must make estimates to record the
expenses related to this program. We also have deductibles on our workers’ compensation program and estimate the
expenses related to the retained portion of that risk. If actual experience under any of our insurance programs is
significantly different from our estimates, we may have to record charges to income when we identify the risk of
additional loss. Conversely, if actual costs are lower than our estimates or return premiums are larger than originally
projected, then we may have to record credits to income when we identify the excess return premiums.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain operating information for our two segments,
Helicopter Activities and Production Management Services, and for the four business units comprising our Helicopter
Activities segment. The table also presents certain operating information about our corporate activities which primarily
relate to intercompany leasing of aircraft and are eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have been made to
prior year information to conform to the current presentation of Technical Services as a separate business unit within the
Helicopter Activities segment. For additional information about our business segments, see Note L in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except number of aircraft, flight hours and percentages)

Number of Aircraft:
Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations.........ccoccevvvvvrvevereeivnenas 172 178 200
North Sea Operations ..........coccevvveeevienninernicienns 53 57 65
International Operations.........cccceveviererververecrenennes 101 97 77
Technical SErvices......c.ooveirvevieirine e 6 3 3

TOtAL .o 332 335 345

Flight hours (excludes unconsolidated affiliates):
Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations...........ccoccceveerreereernenn. 123,488 123,565 133,038
North Sea Operations ..........cccveeeoeeeveneieorincne 43,144 48,153 50,018
International Operations ...........ccceevveverereerireecnieiins 88,278 85,874 81,276
Technical Services.......coovvvvviiierieiiniieirie e 1,882 1.289 1,222

TOtal . oo 256,792 258,881 265,554

Operating revenue:
Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations............cocovvueerreeecnens, $ 160,400 $ 150,572 $ 156,743
North Sea Operations .........ccouvvvereoreieiinreceseniennens 180,705 189,518 173,590
International Operations............ccevevevvvierienrcrnenneen 176,331 164,136 144,615
Technical Services......oocovviiviicivieniieiie e, 44,697 45,714 27,398
Less: Intercompany........ccocevcenevivcrncnsimrcernnees (42,699) (37.156) (34.421)

TOtAl ..o 519,434 512,784 467,925
Production Management Services.......c..cccooverrecrirnennns 49,815 47,685 45,685
COTPOTALE ... secee ettt cee ettt 12,759 11,993 12,110
Less: Intercompany .......ccocoovrvviniicnnirecicrnenee (18.359) (17,352 (17.159)
Consolidated total...........ccooevvevvrveeeenienn, $ 563649 $§ 555,110 $ 508561

Operating expenses (1):
Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations..........c.cccooeevevevrercnnne. $ 132,577 $ 134,605 $ 128,529
North Sea Operations ...........ccccvveirereiieincsieninncns 161,740 168,355 159,174
International Operations............cceoovverieiieerneenene 154,473 138,082 117,759
Technical SErviCes.......oovvveviiiviviire et 42,121 42,735 26,838
Less: INtercompany........ocoeeveeeerveerenveseensennonss (42.699) (37.156) (34.421)

Total ..o 448,212 446,621 397,879
Production Management Services...........cocvevvreeenreacne. 47,302 44,737 43,499
COTPOTALE .. evcieeteeate ettt ettt e eae e e b 18,697 16,046 15,762
Less: INtercompany ... iveniecrnanenseresneenes (18.359) (17.352) (17.159)
Consolidated total.............cccceoeiiviieninen. § 495,852 $ 490,052 $ 439,981

Operating income:
Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations...........coc..veevviervevnnnnas $ 27,823 $ 15967 $ 28214
North Sea Operations .........cccoeevvvevvenineneienennens 18,965 21,163 14,416
International Operations............cooceveveenviveennnens, 21,858 26,054 26,856
Technical SErvices........ccooeevriiivieecieiieie v 2,576 2,979 560
Curtailment gain allocated to Helicopter
ACHVITIES Looveiiiiiie e e 20.365 -- --
TOtal...vieeiece s 91,587 66,163 70,046
Production Management Services............cccoccoavnineean. 2,513 2,948 2,186
COTPOTALE «.cveueereerirereieneiaet ettt st et enesaa et benetaa (5,938) (4,053) (3,652)
Curtailment gain allocated to Corporate ......cc.coccevvenne 1,300 -- --
Gain on disposal 0f @SSetS......cccecivvivreeeianiiricienceeeene 3.943 3,734 3,553
Consolidated total..........cccoeoereereieenn, § 93405 $ 68792 $ 72,133




Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Operating margin:

Helicopter Activities:
North American OPerations .........c.ccveeerreriecrerieracensesrnnnsennns 17.3% 10.6% 18.0%
North Sea Operations .........cc.ccvivverirercrrirnencniereneeseesnessennenns 10.5% 11.2% 8.3%
International Operations..........cccvininiiii e 12.4% 15.9% 18.6%
Technical SEIVICES......c.covcuririiierinireieneereret e 5.8% 6.5% 2.0%
TOtAL oo e 17.6% 12.9% 15.0%
Production Management Services.......oevererioriereriienenienienicnnnees 5.0% 6.2% 4.8%
Consolidated total ......ooooriviiiicee e 16.6% 12.4% 14.2%

(1) Operating expenses, excluding curtailment gain, include depreciation and amortization in the following amounts for
the periods presented:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Helicopter Activities:

North American Operations.............c.ococoeeea. $ 13,398 $ 11,807 $ 9,050
North Sea Operations ........ccccoceevenveriereneinens 18,810 16,666 17,167
International Operations .......c.ccoveeverveverveeenn 4,527 5,005 4,266
Technical Services.......c..cocveveivecrerervecnanan, 280 233 84
Total v 37,015 33,711 30,567
Production Management Services.........cc.o.... 166 170 1,302
COTPOTALE. ...cuereviririreeierrr e 2,362 3,783 3,377
Consolidated total..........cococoiiiinnn. $ 39,543 $ 37,664 $ 35246

Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003
Consolidated Results

During fiscal 2004, our operating revenue increased to $563.6 million, or 1.5%, from $555.1 million in fiscal 2003.
The increase in operating revenue was primarily a result of increased oil and gas activity in our International Operations
and rate increases on customer contracts in our North American Operations. Our fiscal 2004 consolidated operating
expenses increased to $495.9 million, or 1.2%, from $490.1 million in fiscal 2003. This increase in operating expenses
was due primarily to $4.1 million in restructuring charges related to our North Sea Operations. In connection with this
restructuring, we amended our defined benefit pension plan which resulted in the recognition of a non-cash curtailment
gain of $21.7 million in fiscal 2004. As a result, operating income for fiscal 2004 increased to $93.4 million as compared
to $68.8 million for fiscal 2003.

Our fiscal 2004 net income was $53.1 million, representing a 23.2% increase from fiscal 2003. This increase
primarily resulted from the curtailment gain discussed above offset by the restructuring charges related to our North Sea
Operations, debt restructuring charges and higher foreign currency transaction losses. Set forth below is a discussion of
the results of our segments and business units.

Helicopter Activities

Operating revenue from Helicopter Activities increased to $519.4 million, or 1.3%, during fiscal 2004, with
operating expenses increasing slightly to $448.2 million in fiscal 2004 from $446.6 million in fiscal 2003, The
portion of the curtailment gain allocated to Helicopter Activities of $20.4 million led to an operating margin of
17.6% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 12.9% in fiscal 2003. Helicopter Activities results are further explained below
by business unit.
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North American Operations. Operating revenue from our North American Operations increased in fiscal 2004
to $160.4 million, or 6.5%, from the prior fiscal year while flight activity remained constant. The increase in
operating revenue with static flight activity is due primarily to the 7% rate increase in the Gulf of Mexico that went
into effect March 2003 and was phased-in throughout fiscal 2004.

Operating expenses from our North American Operations decreased to $132.6 million in fiscal 2004 from
$134.6 million in fiscal 2003, Excluding the effect of the change in salvage value and useful lives on certain
aircraft types on depreciation expense, operating expenses for fiscal 2004 would have been $135.8 million.

The result of our higher revenue and lower operating expenses was an increase in our operating margin in our
North American Operations to 17.3% for fiscal 2004 from 10.6% in the prior fiscal year.

North Sea Operations. QOperating revenue from our North Sea Operations decreased in fiscal 2004 to $180.7
million, or 4.7%, from fiscal 2003 revenue of $189.5 million. Excluding foreign exchange effects and revenue
related to the assets in Italy disposed of in November 2002, fiscal 2004 revenue from these operations decreased
6.6% from fiscal 2003 revenue. This decrease relates to reduced activity as reflected by the reduction in flight
hours of 10.4% between fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003.

Operating expenses from our North Sea Operations, excluding foreign exchange effects and costs related to the
assets in Italy disposed of in November 2002, decreased by 4.3% between fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003. The
decrease in operating expenses was primarily the result of lower maintenance and repair expense offset by
approximately $1.0 million in restructuring costs. The operating margin in our North Sea Operations decreased to
10.5% in fiscal 2004 from 11.2% in fiscal 2003 primarily due to the reduction in revenue.

International Operations. Operating revenue from International Operations increased in fiscal 2004 to $176.3
million, or 7.4%, from $164.1 million in fiscal 2003, primarily as a result of a 2.8% increase in flight activity from
the prior fiscal year.

In Brazil, flight activity and operating revenue for fiscal 2004 increased by 26.5% and 29.2%, respectively,
from fiscal 2003. The increase in flight activity and operating revenue was primarily due to three additional aircraft
sent to the area during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 in response to increased drilling activity.

In Mexico, flight activity and operating revenue for fiscal 2004 increased over the prior fiscal year levels by
6.3% and 0.4%, respectively. The increase in flight activity and operating revenue were primarily due to the
addition of two aircraft in the second quarter of fiscal 2004. Operating revenue was positively impacted by the
addition of the two aircraft and a favorable change in the mix of aircraft. However, during July 2003, six older
aircraft which we directly leased into Mexico were replaced with six newer aircraft owned by an unconsolidated
affiliate. Accordingly, the revenue from these aircraft is no longer consolidated in our results. Instead, we record
our 49% equity in the net results of the unconsolidated affiliate in earnings from unconsolidated affiliates, which
for fiscal 2004 was $1.8 million.

In Nigeria, customer flight hours and operating revenue increased for fiscal 2004 by 5.2% and 18.2%,
respectively over fiscal 2003. This increase resulted primarily from the acquisition of a controlling interest in a
West African operating company in July 2003, when we began to provide services to a major oil company under a
five year contract. Excluding the activity and revenue related to this contract, customer flight hours and operating
revenue decreased by 15.4% and 6.4%, respectively over fiscal 2003. This results from the decrease in flight
activity with one customer that furnishes its own aircraft (not reflected in hours). Operating margins were virtually
unchanged.

Operating expenses for our International Operations increased in fiscal 2004 to $154.5 million, or 11.9% from
$138.1 million in fiscal 2003. This increase was primarily a result of higher salary costs, maintenance costs and
lease fees due to increased operations in our international areas. The operating margin in our International
Operations decreased to 12.4% in fiscal 2004 from 15.9% in fiscal 2003. '

Technical Services. Operating revenue for Technical Services decreased during fiscal 2004 to $44.7 million,
or 2.2%, compared to $45.7 million in the prior fiscal year. Operating expenses for Technical Services decreased
slightly in fiscal 2004 to $42.1 million, or 1.4%, from $42.7 million in fiscal 2003. Operating margin for Technical
Services for fiscal 2004 decreased to 5.8% from 6.5% in the prior year.
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Production Management Services

Operating revenue from our Production Management Services segment increased to $49.8 million, or 4.5%, in
fiscal 2004 from $47.7 million in fiscal 2003, primarily due to the addition of a contract with a major customer. Operating
expenses in this segment increased to $47.3 million, or 5.8%, in fiscal 2004 from $44.7 million in fiscal 2003 due to
higher transportation charges. Our operating margin decreased to 5.0% from 6.2% in fiscal 2003.

General and Administrative Costs

Consolidated general and administrative costs increased by $4.4 million in fiscal 2004 primarily due to
restructuring charges for our North Sea Operations of $3.1 million.

Earnings from Unconsolidated Affiliates

Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates decreased in fiscal 2004 by $1.0 million primarily due to a decrease in
dividends received from investments accounted for under the cost method of accounting. The decrease was primarily due
to a reduction in dividends from our unconsolidated affiliate in Egypt partially offset by higher earnings from equity
method investees.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net, increased in fiscal 2004 by $1.8 million primarily due to the debt refinancing transaction that
took place in June and July 2003. See Note B to the consolidated financial statements for further discussion. This interest
was offset by $1.2 million of interest capitalized in fiscal 2004 related to progress payments for our fleet and facilities
renewal and refurbishment program and $0.3 million of interest income from the investment of the proceeds of the debt
refinancing for approximately one month.

Loss on extinguishment of debt

A loss on extinguishment of debt of $6.2 million was recognized in fiscal 2004 related to the redemption on July
29, 2003 of our 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes and our 7 /3% Senior Notes. Approximately $4.7 million of the loss
pertains to the payment of redemption premiums and $1.5 million pertains to the write-off of unamortized debt issuance
costs relating to the 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes and 7 ’/:% Senior Notes.

Other Income (Expense)

Other expense, net, for fiscal 2004 was $7.8 million compared to other expense, net, of $3.3 million in fiscal 2003
and primarily represents foreign currency transaction losses. These losses arise from the consolidation of our United
Kingdom operations, whose functional currency is the British Pound Sterling, yet contracts for a portion of its revenue and
expense in U.S. dollars and other currencies for operations outside of the North Sea. The weakening of the U.S. dollar
against the British Pound since March 31, 2003 is the primary reason for these losses. The average British Pound to U.S.
dollar exchange rate for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004 was one British Pound = $1.70 compared to one British
Pound = $1.55 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003.

Fiscal 2003 compared to Fiscal 2002
Consolidated Results

During fiscal 2003, our operating revenue increased to $555.1 million, or 9.2%, from $508.6 million in fiscal 2002.
The increase in operating revenue was primarily a result of increased oil and gas activity in our International Operations
and rate increases on customer contracts in our North Sea Operations. Our fiscal 2003 consolidated operating expenses
increased to $490.1 million, or 11.4%, from $440.0 million in fiscal 2002. This increase in operating expenses was due
primarily to higher labor and insurance costs and had the effect of lowering our operating margin to 12.4% from 14.2% in
the prior fiscal year. As a result, operating income for fiscal 2003 decreased to $68.8 million as compared to $72.1 million
for fiscal 2002.

Our fiscal 2003 net income was $43.1 million, representing a 3.0% decrease from fiscal 2002. This decrease
primarily resulted from our reduced operating income, which was partially offset by a $5.5 million increase in earnings
from unconsolidated affiliates primarily due to dividends from our unconsolidated affiliate in Egypt. Set forth below is a
discussion of the results of our segments and business units.
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Helicopter Activities

Operating revenue from Helicopter Activities increased to $512.8 million, or 9.6%, during fiscal 2003, with
operating expenses increasing by 12.3% to $446.6 million. This led to an operating margin of 12.9% in fiscal 2003
as compared to 15.0% in fiscal 2002. Helicopter Activities results are further explained below by business unit.

North American Operations. Operating revenue from our North American Operations decreased in fiscal 2003
to $150.6 million, or 3.9%, from the prior fiscal year primarily as a result of a 7.1% decrease in flight activity from
the prior fiscal year. Operating revenue declined less rapidly than flight hours due primarily to the full fiscal year
effect of the 30% rate increase that was phased in beginning in June 2001. Flight hours and operating revenue
generated from larger, crew change aircraft in the Gulf of Mexico decreased 24.8% and 16.5%, respectively, from
the prior year due to the decrease in drilling activity in the Gulf of Mexico during fiscal 2003. By contrast, flight
hours and operating revenue from smaller, production related aircraft decreased 5.7% and 1.0%, respectively. In
addition flight hours and revenue from our North American Operations declined due to unusually poor weather
conditions in the Gulf of Mexico during the fourth quarter and to the termination by a large customer of its
helicopter contract. During fiscal 2002, this customer had 10 aircraft on full-time monthly contract, including two
crew change aircraft and eight smaller aircraft and accounted for approximately $15.9 million of revenue for our
North American Operations. In fiscal 2003, through the termination of its contract, this customer accounted for
approximately $5.0 million in revenue for our North American Operations. Monthly contracts with other
customers were added during fiscal 2003 partially mitigating the impact of this lost work.

Our operating margin in our North American Operations of 10.6% for fiscal 2003 decreased from 18.0% in the
prior fiscal year. The decrease in operating margin was primarily a result of lower revenue as discussed above and
wage increases for pilots, mechanics and other operational employees in response to increases in the market wages
for these employee groups. Insurance costs also increased substantially. Higher depreciation costs as a result of
aircraft purchased in the prior fiscal year also contributed to the decline in the operating margin.

North Sea Operations. Operating revenue from our North Sea Operations increased in fiscal 2003 to $189.5
million, or 9.2%, from fiscal 2002 revenue of $173.6 million. Excluding foreign exchange effects, fiscal 2003
revenue from these operations increased 3.0% from fiscal 2002 revenue. The increase in operating revenue
primarily resulted from rate increases on customer contracts both at mid-term and upon renewal, and a favorable
change in the mix of aircraft operated in fiscal 2003. Flight hours for fiscal 2003 decreased by 3.7%.

On July 16, 2002, one of our S-76 helicopters, while ferrying passengers for a customer, crashed in the
southern sector of the North Sea. As a result of the accident, the customer immediately grounded the six S-76
helicopters it had under contract with us. This grounding was lifted by the customer for two aircraft on August 7,
2002 and in early September 2002 for the remaining four aircraft. We covered the customer’s requirements by
using a different aircraft type. Accordingly, flight hours were impacted, but not significantly, by the accident.

Operating expenses from our North Sea Operations increased to $168.4 million, or 5.8%, in fiscal 2003 from
$159.2 million in fiscal 2002. The increase in operating expenses was primarily the result of higher employee
wages and an increase in insurance costs. In addition, we incurred approximately $1.6 million in uninsured costs as
a result of the North Sea accident. These costs primarily related to the retiring of main rotor blades that had a
similar history to the one that was involved in the accident. The operating margin in our North Sea Operations
increased to 11.2% in fiscal 2003 from 8.3% in fiscal 2002.

During November 2002, we sold assets related to our activities in Italy. We recognized a pre-tax loss on the
disposal of these assets during fiscal 2003 of $1.3 million, which is recorded in the gain on disposal of assets in our
accompanying consolidated statements of income. These assets generated approximately $12.8 million of
operating revenue for our North Sea Operations for fiscal 2003 and $15.0 million for fiscal 2002. The loss
represents the excess of book value over sales proceeds, plus the accrual of certain obligations totaling $0.9 million
which have been reflected in our March 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet. Additionally, we expect to
consummate the sale of three additional aircraft based in ltaly. These aircraft are currently leased by us from a third
party and subleased to the buyer. The sales of the aircraft are contingent upon our exercising purchase options
under the leases and the closing of the sale to the buyer. Gains resulting from these aircraft sales are expected to be
approximately $4.3 million.

International Operations. Operating revenue from International Operations increased in fiscal 2003 to $164.1

million, or 13.5%, from $144.6 million in fiscal 2002, primarily as a result of a 5.7% increase in flight activity from
the prior fiscal year. These increases were primarily attributable to the expansion of our operations in Nigeria,
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through the acquisition of additional aircraft in July 2002, and an increased level of oil and gas activity in Mexico
and Trinidad which resulted in increased demand for our services.

In Mexico, flight activity and operating revenue for fiscal 2003 increased over the prior fiscal year levels by
29.7% and 24.4%, respectively. The increase in flight activity and operating revenue were primarily due to
additional work that we performed for a major customer. Three aircraft were transferred to Mexico in the first half
of calendar 2002 as a result of this demand. The operating revenue generated from these three aircraft accounted
for approximately 64% of the increase in revenue in Mexico for fiscal 2003.

In Nigeria, operating revenue was up by 18.5% and flight activity increased 11.2% for fiscal 2003 over the
prior fiscal year. On July 1, 2002, we purchased a controlling interest in a West Africa helicopter operating
company, ten single engine helicopters and three fixed wing aircraft for $16.0 million. The acquisition was
financed with $2.0 million of our existing cash and borrowings of $14.0 million under our U.S. credit facility. In
connection with the acquisition, we began to provide services to a major oil company under a five year contract.
Excluding the flight activity and revenue relating to this contract, flight activity and revenue in Nigeria decreased
for the current fiscal year by 33.4% and 12.0%, respectively, over the prior fiscal year. The disproportionate
decrease in flight activity and operating revenue is primarily due to a change in the structure of one contract
whereby the customer now provides its own aircraft and we provide the crew, maintenance and technical support
needed to operate the aircraft. Additionally, the completion of a contract and a decrease in ad hoc work during the
current fiscal year had a negative impact on flight activity and revenue.

In Trinidad, operating revenue and flight activity for fiscal 2003 increased by 32.8% and 31.6%, respectively,
over the prior fiscal year. The increase in flight activity was primarily due to a short-term contract in fiscal 2003
and increased drilling activity. Operating revenue for fiscal 2003 was also favorably impacted by the full fiscal
year effect of a rate increase that became effective October 1, 2001.

Operating expenses for our International Operations increased in fiscal 2003 to $138.1 million, or 17.3%, from
$117.8 million in fiscal 2002. This increase was primarily a result of higher salary costs, maintenance costs and
lease fees due to increased operations in our international areas. The operating margin in our International
Operations decreased to 15.9% in fiscal 2003 from 18.6% in fiscal 2002.

Technical Services. Operating revenue for Technical Services increased during fiscal 2003 to $45.7 million, or
66.9%, compared to $27.4 million in the prior fiscal year, primarily as a result of the expansion of these operations
in December 2001 when we acquired an engine repair and overhaul facility that enabled us to provide these
services to third parties. Operating expenses for Technical Services increased in fiscal 2003 to $42.7 million, or
59.2%, from $26.8 million in fiscal 2002. The increase in operating expenses was due largely to the expansion of
our operations discussed above, salary increases and additional material cost associated with an increase in projects.
Operating margin for Technical Services for fiscal 2003 increased to 6.5% from 2.0% in the prior fiscal year.

Production Management Services

Operating revenue from our Production Management Services segment increased to $47.7 million, or 4.4%, in
fiscal 2003 from $45.7 million in fiscal 2002, primarily due to the addition of a contract with a major customer in January
2002. Operating expenses in this segment increased to $44.7 million, or 2.8%, in fiscal 2003 from $43.5 million in fiscal
2002 due to higher transportation charges offset by a reduction in goodwill amortization expense of $1.1 million due to the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on April 1,
2002. Our operating margin improved to 6.2% from 4.8% in fiscal 2002.

General and Administrative Costs

Consolidated general and administrative costs increased by $2.7 million in fiscal 2003 primarily due to an increase
in professional fees and higher salary expenses. Professional fees in fiscal 2003 included legal fees incurred in connection
with our listing on the New York Stock Exchange and new corporate governance legislation, and fees for various
consulting services.

Earnings from Unconsolidated Affiliates

Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates increased in fiscal 2003 by $5.5 million primarily due to an increase in

dividends received from investments accounted for under the cost method of accounting. The increase was primarily due
to dividends from our unconsolidated affiliate in Egypt.
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Other Income (Expense)

Other expense, net, for fiscal 2003 was $3.3 million compared to other income, net, of $1.1 million in fiscal 2002.
The expense in fiscal 2003 was primarily the result of foreign currency exchange losses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During fiscal 2004, our primary source of funds to meet working capital needs, service debt and fund capital
expenditures was cash from operations and the debt refinancing completed in July 2003. We believe that our future cash
flow from operations, available lines of credit and other available financing will be sufficient to meet our working capital,
capital expenditure and debt service needs in the foreseeable future.

Operating Activities

Cash and cash equivalents were $85.7 million, $56.8 million and $42.7 million as of March 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Working capital as of March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $251.9 million, $112.5 million and $147.0
million, respectively. The increase in working capital in fiscal 2004 was due primarily to the classification in fiscal 2003
of the $90.9 million outstanding principal amount of the 6.0% convertible subordinated notes due in December 2003 in
current maturities of long-term debt. In July 2003, we redeemed all the outstanding notes. See Financing Activities
below.

Cash flows provided by operating activities were $83.3 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to $62.4 million in fiscal
2003 and $64.3 million in fiscal 2002. The increase in cash flows provided by operating activities in fiscal 2004 was
primarily the result of a decrease in accounts receivable. The decrease in cash flows in fiscal 2003 from fiscal 2002 was a
result of decreased accrued liabilities and other payables.

Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities were $62.6 million, $48.2 million and $64.2 million for fiscal 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2004, we received proceeds of $6.9 million primarily from the disposal of aircraft and
equipment, which resulted in a gain of $3.9 million. Apart from commitments under our fleet and facilities renewal and
refurbishment program discussed further below, we purchased one small aircraft for $1.0 million and three medium
aircraft for $12.6 million. These aircraft acquisitions were made with existing cash and were made to fulfill customer
contract requirements.

In March 2004, we entered a purchase agreement with Bell Helicopter Textron Canada Ltd. for a new medium
sized aircraft. The total purchase price for the aircraft is $6.3 million, of which we have already paid a deposit of $0.3
million subsequent to March 31, 2004. The balance of the purchase price will be paid with cash from operations.

In January 2004, we entered into a purchase agreement with Eurocopter for two new large aircraft to be delivered
in calendar 2005. In connection with this purchase agreement, Eurocopter has found a purchaser for five of our used large
aircraft. The proceeds from the sale of the five used aircraft and some surplus spares will fund the purchase of the two
new aircraft.

In May 2003, we entered into a purchase agreement with Bell Helicopter Textron Canada, Ltd. for five new
medium aircraft. The total purchase price of the five aircraft was $30.1 million. We funded $12.2 million of the purchase
price from available cash and the balance of $17.9 million was financed by the manufacturer for 90 days with interest
payable at 3-month LIBOR plus 2.95%. In addition, we purchased a sixth medium aircraft for $5.3 million. These aircraft
were purchased to meet the contract renewal requirements of an existing customer of our unconsolidated affiliate in
Mexico, and replaced older aircraft currently being used on the contract.

On July 11, 2003, we sold these six aircraft, at our cost, to a newly formed limited liability company, Rotorwing
Leasing Resources, L.L.C. or RLR. The capital stock of RLR is owned 49% by us and 51% by the same principal with
whom we have other jointly owned businesses operating in Mexico. RLR financed 90% of the purchase price of these
aircraft through a five year term loan with a bank requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $346,047 and a
balloon payment of $18.3 million due July 11, 2008 (the RLR Note). The RLR Note is secured by the six aircraft. We
have guaranteed 49% of the RLR Note ($15.6 million) and the other shareholder has guaranteed the remaining 51% of the
RLR Note (316.2 million). In addition, we have given the bank a put option which the bank may exercise if the aircraft
are not returned to the United States within 30 days of a default on the RLR Note. Any such exercise would require us to
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purchase the RLR Note from the bank. We simultaneously entered into a similar agreement with the other RLR
shareholder which requires that, in event of exercise by the bank of its put option to us, the other shareholder will be
required to purchase 51% of the RLR Note from us. As of March 31, 2004, a liability of $1.0 million representing the fair
value of this guarantee is reflected in our balance sheet in other liabilities and deferred credits. The fair value of the
guarantee is being amortized over the term of the RLR Note.

We used the proceeds received from the sale of the aircraft to RLR to repay the $17.9 million short-term note to the
manufacturer in July 2003, No gain or loss was recognized on the sale.

As of March 31, 2004, we have expended $57.4 million as deposits and progress payments, and incurred firm
purchase commitments of $138.6 under the November 2002 Fleet and Facilities Renewal and Refurbishment program.
Subsequent to March 31, 2004, we made additional payments under this program of $6.0 million. Sales and trade-ins of
older aircraft will reduce the projected expenditures discussed above. We plan to use internally generated funds and
available financing, if needed, to meet our obligations under the program.

Fiscal 2003. During fiscal 2003, we received proceeds of $22.8 million primarily from the disposal of aircraft and
equipment, which resulted in a gain of $5.0 million, and we purchased twelve small aircraft for $14.4 million and four
medium aircraft for $8.5 million. In addition, we paid $3.5 million of the balance due on an AS 332L2 Super Puma. An
additional approximately $4.4 million is payable in November 2003 on this aircraft. Subsequent to the end of fiscal 2003,
we purchased one small aircraft for $0.9 million.

In November 2002, our Board of Directors approved a fleet and facilities renewal and refurbishment program.
Under the program, we expect to incur approximately $150.0 million of capital expenditures over the next five to seven
years to replace certain of our aircraft and upgrade strategic base facilities. As of March 31, 2003, we have expended
$18.2 million as deposits and progress payments, and incurred firm purchase commitments of $125.2 under this program.
Subsequent to March 31, 2003, we made additional payments under this program of $10.0 million. Sales and trade-ins of
older aircraft will reduce the projected expenditures discussed above. We plan to use internally generated funds and
available financing, if needed, to meet our obligations under the prograni.

Fiscal 2002. During fiscal 2002, we received proceeds of $11.4 million primarily from disposals of aircraft, which
resulted in a gain of $3.6 million and we purchased 21 small aircraft for $24.8 million and seven medium aircraft for $31.5
million. In addition, we placed a deposit of $3.7 million on an AS 332L2 Super Puma. These aircraft acquisitions were
made with existing cash and were made to fulfill customer contract requirements.

Financing Activities

Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities were $3.5 million, ($1.1 million) and ($12.0 million) in fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Total debt as of March 31, 2004 was $255.5 million as compared to $232.8 million
and $208.0 million as of March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

U.S. Credit Facility. As of March 31, 2004, we had a $30.0 million unsecured working capital line of credit with a
U.S. bank that expires on August 31, 2005. The line of credit is subject to a sublimit of $10.0 million for the issuance of
letters of credit. Borrowings bear interest at a rate equal to one month LIBOR plus a spread ranging from 1.25% to 2.0%.
The rate of the spread depends on certain ratios under the credit facility. Borrowings under this credit facility are
unsecured and are guaranteed by certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. We had no amounts drawn under this facility as of
March 31, 2004, but did have $0.7 million of letters of credit utilized which reduced availability under the line. As of
March 31, 2004, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under this credit facility. As of March 31, 2003, we had
$14.0 million drawn under our U.S. credit facility and we were in compliance with all covenants under this credit facility.

UK. Credit Facility. As of March 31, 2004, Bristow had a $22.1 million revolving credit facility, of which $11.0
million is only available for letters of credit, with a United Kingdom bank on which any borrowings are payable on
demand and matures on June 30, 2004. Borrowings under this credit facility bear interest at a blended rate approximating
0.7% above the Bank’s base rate. This credit facility is guaranteed by certain of Bristow’s subsidiaries and is secured by
helicopter mortgages and a negative pledge of all of Bristow’s assets. As of March 31, 2004, Bristow had outstanding
$2.8 million of letters of credit under this facility; however, no funds were drawn under this credit facility. As of March
31, 2004, Bristow was in compliance with all of the covenants under this credit facility. We are in the process of renewing
the line of credit and expect it to be finalized before June 30, 2004.

6.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes. In December 1996, we issued $98.0 million aggregate principal amount of
6.0% convertible subordinated notes due 2003. During 1999, we repurchased $7.1 million in principal amount of the
notes in the open market. The notes were convertible at any time into our common stock at a conversion price of $22.86
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per share, or approximately 43.74 shares per $1,000 principal amount, and were redeemable at our option. In July 2003,
we redeemed all the outstanding notes, $90.9 million, as discussed in Note B to our financial statements.

7 /4% Senior Notes. In January 1998, we issued $100.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7 /4% senior notes
due 2008. The notes were unsecured and were guaranteed by certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. The notes became
redeemable in full at our option beginning in January 2003. In July 2003, we redeemed all the outstanding notes, $100.0
million, as discussed in Note B to our financial statements.

6 '/s% Senior Notes. In June 2003, we issued $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6 '/3% senior notes due
2013. The notes are unsecured and are guaranteed by certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. The notes become redeemable at
our option on or after June 15, 2008. A portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of these notes was used to
redeem all our outstanding 7 "/s% Senior Notes and 6.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes. The remaining net proceeds
were used for general corporate purposes.

Limited Recourse Term Loan. Qur balance sheet reflects a term loan of approximately $22.1 million as of March
31, 2004. The loan is secured by two aircraft that we operate under an operating lease and we have provided a guarantee
of up to $3.8 million of the original cost of the aircraft. The guarantee represents our maximum amount of credit
exposure. The rate of interest payable under the loan is 7.1%, requires quarterly payments of $0.6 million and has a
balloon payment of $19.0 million due in 2007,

Short term advance from customer. This $3.4 million advance from a customer is reimbursement for value added
taxes paid by us, the ultimate obligation for which is currently under dispute between ourselves and the customer and the
tax authorities. The advance is non-interest bearing and will be repaid as taxes are refunded to us by the applicable
governmental agency.

UK. Taxes. During January 2004, we reached a settlement with the United Kingdom Inland Revenue regarding the
tax treatment for certain aircraft maintenance expenditures by our primary United Kingdom operating company. These
expenditures are contractual cash payments made to certain repair and maintenance service providers in advance of the
actual repair requirement. We have historically deducted these expenditures for tax purposes as the payments were made,
but will now treat these expenditures as prepayments for United Kingdom income tax purposes to be deducted when the
repair or maintenance service actually occurs. This change in treatment was made effective April 1, 2002, and has resulted
in a cash payment for taxes and interest of £4.0 million (87.4 million) in the last quarter of fiscal 2004, with a further
payment due during the first quarter of fiscal 2005 of £4.9 million ($9.0 million). The payment of these taxes will not
affect total tax expense on our income statement but will instead be treated as a deferred tax asset to be deducted in the
future when the repair and maintenance services are provided.

Pension Plan. As of March 31, 2004, we had recorded on our balance sheet a $140.0 million pension liability
related to the Bristow pension plan. The liability represents the excess of the present value of the defined benefit pension
plan liabilities over the fair value of plan assets that existed at that date. In addition to the recognition of the minimum
pension liability, the United Kingdom rules governing pension plan funding require us to make additional cash
contributions to the plan. In February 2004, we agreed to a schedule of contributions for our defined benefit pension plan
in order to comply with the minimum funding rules of the United Kingdom. Those rules require us to make scheduled
contributions in amounts sufficient to bring the plan up to 90% funded (as defined by United Kingdom legislation) within
three years and 100% funded within ten years. In recognition of participants’ concerns regarding the under-funded
position of the plan as well as other changes we are making to the plan (as more fully described under “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition”), on February 1, 2004, we contributed £5.2 million ($9.6 million) to the
plan to reach the 90% funded level, and agreed to monthly contributions of £0.2 million ($0.4 million) for the next ten
years to comply with the 100% funding requirement. The £5.2 million ($9.6 million) contribution was made from existing
cash balances and does not materially impact our working capital position.

Minority Interest. We prepaid $11.4 million, representing a portion of the put/call option price over the 51% of the
ordinary share capital of Bristow that we do not own. This payment was made with existing cash balances. In May 2004,
we acquired eight million shares of deferred stock (essentially a subordinated class of stock with no voting rights) from
Bristow for £1 per share ($14.4 million in total). Bristow used the proceeds to redeem £8 million of its ordinary share
capital at par value from all of its outstanding shareholders, including ourselves. The result of these changes will be to
reduce the cost of the guaranteed return to the other shareholders, which we record as minority interest expense, by $2.4
million on an annual basis.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments. The Company has the following contractual obligations
and commercial commitments as of March 31, 2004:

Payments Due by Period
Less than After
Total 1 year 1-3 vears 4-5 years S vears
(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations:

Long-Term Debt $255534 § 4,417 § 21,117 § -- $230,000
Operating Leases 35,329 2,610 5,744 2,732 24,243
Pension Obligation 48,000 4,800 14,400 9,600 19,200
Unconditional Purchase

Obligations 118,631 58.867 59,764 --

Total Contractual Cash Obligations  $457.494 §$ 70,694 $101,025 § 12332 $273.443

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Less than Over

Total 1 year 1-3 vears  4-5 vears 5 years
(in thousands)

Other Commercial Commitments:

Debt Guarantee (1) $ 33967 $ - $ -- § 15,565 $ 18,402
Letters of Credit 3,512 1.161 2,351 -- --
Total Commercial Commitments $ 37479 $ 1,161 $ 2351 § 15565 $ 18402

(1) We have guaranteed the repayment of up to £10 million ($18.4 million) of the debt of FBS and $15.6 million of the
debt of RLR, both unconsolidated affiliates.

Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rates from continuing operations were 27.6%, 30.0% and 30.6% for fiscal 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The variance between the Federal statutory rate and the effective rate for these periods is due primarily
to non-taxable foreign source income available to reduce U.S. taxable income. Our effective tax rate is impacted by the
amount of our foreign source income and our ability to realize foreign tax credits.

Currency Fluctuations

Through our foreign operations, we are exposed to currency fluctuations and exchange rate risks. The majority of
our revenue and expenses from our North Sea Operations are in British Pound Sterling. In addition, some of our contracts
to provide services internationally provide for payment in foreign currencies. Our foreign exchange rate risk is even
greater when our revenue is denominated in a currency different from the associated costs. We attempt to minimize our
foreign exchange rate risk exposure by contracting the majority of our services other than our North Sea Operations in
U.S. dollars. As a result, a strong U.S. dollar may increase the local cost of our services that are provided under U.S.
dollar denominated contracts, which may reduce the demand for our services in foreign countries. Generally, we do not
enter into hedging transactions to protect against foreign exchange risks related to our operating revenue.

Because we maintain our financial statements in U.S. dollars, we are vulnerable to fluctuations in the exchange rate
between the British Pound Sterling and the U.S. dollar and between other foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar. In
preparing our financial statements, we must convert all non-U.S. dollar currencies to U.S. dollars. The effect of foreign
currency translation is reflected in a component of stockholders’ investment and foreign currency transaction gains or
losses are credited or charged to income and reflected in other income (expense). In the past three fiscal years our
stockholders’ investment has increased by $62.4 million as a result of translation adjustments. Changes in exchange rates
could cause significant changes in our financial position and results of operations in the future.

The British Pound Sterling is the currency in which most of Bristow’s revenue and expenses are paid.
Approximately 41% of our operating revenue for fiscal 2004 was translated for financial reporting purposes from British
Pound Sterling into U.S. dollars. In addition, we receive other revenue that is not in U.S. dollars or British Pound Sterling,
such as Australian Dollars, Euros, Nigerian Naira, and Trinidad and Tobago Dollars. We can reduce or eliminate our
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations to the extent that we also have expenses that are payable in the same foreign
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currency as our revenue. Our principal exposure is to changes in the value of the British Pound relative to the U.S. dollar.
During fiscal 2004, the British Pound to U.S. dollar exchange rate ranged from a low of one British Pound = U.S. $1.55 to
a high of one British Pound = U.S. $1.90, with an average of one British Pound = U.S. $1.70 for the fiscal year. As of
March 31, 2004, the exchange rate was one British Pound = U.S. $1.84. During fiscal 2003, the British Pound to U.S.
dollar exchange rate ranged from a low of one British Pound = U.S. $1.43 to a high of one British Pound = U.S. $1.65 for
the fiscal year, with an average of one British Pound = U.S. $1.55. As of March 31, 2003, the exchange rate was one
British Pound = U.S. $1.58.

Seasonality

Helicopter Activities are seasonal in nature, as our flight activities are influenced by the length of daylight hours
and weather conditions. The worst of these conditions typically occur during the winter months when our ability to safely
fly and our customers’ ability to safely conduct their operations is inhibited. Accordingly, our operating revenue is
generally lower in the fourth fiscal quarter.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”™) issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,” effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. This statement requires us to record the
fair value of liabilities related to future asset retirement obligations in the period the obligation is incurred. We adopted
SFAS No. 143 on April 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No. 143 did not have an impact on our financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 eliminates SFAS No. 4 and as a result, gains and
losses from extinguishments of debt should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the criteria in APB
Opinion No. 30. SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between
the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that
have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS No. 145 also updates and amends existing
authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under
changed conditions. We implemented SFAS No. 145 on April 1, 2003, and determined that it had no impact on prior year
financial statements. On July 29, 2003, we redeemed all of the then outstanding principal amount of our 7 "/s% Senior
Notes due 2008 and our 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2003 which resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt
of $6.2 million comprised of unamortized debt issuance costs and a premium payment. In accordance with SFAS No. 145
the loss on extinguishment of debt was recognized as a component of income from continuing operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,”
which is effective for fiscal periods after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with restructurings, discontinued operations, plant closings, or other exit or disposal activities, when incurred
rather than at the date a plan is committed to. We have implemented the provisions of this statement on a prospective
basis for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 expands existing accounting
gutdance and disclosure requirements for certain guarantees and requires recognition, at the inception of a guarantee, of a
liability for the fair value of an obligation undertaken in connection with issuing a guarantee. The disclosure requirements
of FIN 45 were effective for our March 31, 2003 financial statements and the remaining provisions of FIN 45 apply to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.

In December 2003, the FASB published a revision to Interpretation 46 (“FIN 46R”) to clarify certain provisions of
FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” and to exempt certain entities from its
requirements. FIN 46R requires a company to consolidate a variable interest entity (VIE), as defined, when the company
will absorb a majority of the variable interest entity’s expected losses, receive a majority of the variable interest entity’s
expected residual returns, or both. FIN 46R also requires consolidation of existing, non-controlled affiliates if the VIE is
unable to finance its operations without investor support, or where the other investors do not have exposure to the
significant risks and rewards of ownership. FIN 46R is effective by the end of the first reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We have $255.5 million of debt outstanding, none of which carries a variable rate of interest. However, the market
value of our fixed rate debt fluctuates with changes in interest rates.

We occasionally use off-balance sheet hedging instruments to manage our risks associated with our operating
activities conducted in foreign currencies. In limited circumstances and when considered appropriate, we will use forward
exchange contracts to hedge anticipated transactions. We have historically used these instruments primarily in the buying
and selling of certain spare parts, maintenance services and equipment. We attempt to minimize our exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations by matching our revenue and expenses in the same currency for our contracts. Most of our revenue
and expenses from our North Sea Operations are denominated in British Pound Sterling. As of March 31, 2004, we did
not have any nominal forward exchange contracts outstanding. Management does not believe that our limited exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk necessitates the extensive use of forward exchange contracts.
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ITEM 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Offshore Logistics, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Offshore Logistics, Inc. (the Company) and
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ investment
and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
The Company’s consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2002 and for the year then ended were audited by other
auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in
their report dated May 15, 2002.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Offshore Logistics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the fiscal years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed above, the 2002 financial statements of Offshore Logistics, Inc. and subsidiaries were audited by
other auditors who have ceased operations. As described in Note A, these financial statements have been revised to
include the transitional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, which was adopted by the Company as of April 1, 2002. In our opinion, the disclosures for 2002 in
Note A are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2002 financial
statements of Offshore Logistics, Inc. and subsidiaries other than with respect to such disclosures and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2002 financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ KPMG LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
May 21, 2004
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The following report is a copy of the audit report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection
with Offshore Logistics, Inc.’s annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2002. This audit report
has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP in connection with this filing on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2004. The previously issued report refers to financial statements not physically included in this
document.

To the Stockholders of Offshore Logistics, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Offshore Logistics, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ investment and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Offshore Logistics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

/S/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
May 15, 2002

In June of 2002, Arthur Andersen was convicted of obstructing justice, which is a felony offense. The SEC
prohibits firms convicted of a felony from auditing public companies. Arthur Andersen is thus unable to consent to
the incorporation of its audit opinion on our 2001 and 2002 financial statements into this Annual Report on Form
10-K. Under these circumstances, Rule 437a under the Securities Act permits us to include this opinion in this
Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference into registration statements on file with the SEC, without a written
consent from Arthur Andersen.

36




OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

) March 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .........o.oeiiniiiie it $ 85,679 $ 56,800
ACCOUNLS TECRIVADLE ..ottt ettt eeraee 121,146 119,012
TIIVEINTOTIES L. uveiteet ettt ittt e e eae s e st ree et e s erese e e et eabeesbasbasbnesreemeaneasaaras 133,073 118,846
Prepaid expenses and Other..........ccooev it e 10.874 8.443
TOtAl CUITENE ASSELS ....viiveieiieiitecetie ittt ettt et et seesenreeens e eateensane s 350,772 303,101
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates........c..ccoiiviieiiiiieiinieiie et 38,929 27,928
Property and equipment -- at cost
Land and Buildings .......ccecviriiiiiiiiic e 26,594 16,671
Alircraft and eqUIPIMENT .........ccooviiiiiiiiitii ettt 797.783 703.111
824,377 719,782
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization ..........c..cccecerveerieeencenenconinnnns (238.721) (193.555)
585,656 526,227
GOOAWILL .ottt ettt sea et b e e et e saa s sae e sae eaeessaataassensaasasbesssassasanesssnans 26,829 26,872
OB ASSEIS 1.viiiiiiiiii it ettt e eee ettt e e e e sttt e et e vesaeeee et eesaseeneesbbessbeestseasbesebeestresbeeetbean 42,717 21.903
$1,044,903 $ 906,031
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE .....oei ittt ettt bt e $ 27,439 $ 29,666
ACCTUEA LHADIIITIES ... vviiiiii ettt sa st ee e ra e e st s e ree s e nessen e 65,257 64,181
DEfEITEA TAXES ...iiviieeie ittt e 1,802 33
Current maturities of long-term debt ..o 4417 96,684
Total current Habilities.......ccocoeieiiiiiirr et 98,915 190,564
Long-term debt, less current MaturitieS ........cocoovoviiieiiireiernecrre st eee s 251,117 136,134
Other liabilities and deferred credifs ....o.cooiviiiii et 147,326 120,035
DEfEITed tAXES .ovoiiiviii ittt ettt e e r s et e ettt et b e e et n s ettt et ba s ree e aan 92,042 81,082
MINOTILY IMEETES......eeieieeteei ettt ettt et b ettt snc e r s e e 9,385 16,555
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ investment:
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 35,000,000 shares; outstanding
22,631,221 in 2004 and 22,510,921 in 2003 (exclusive of 1,281,050
TTEASUTY SHATES)...oetiiiiiiieicerte ittt r ettt et eraeser e r e e esaenbbens 226 225
Additional paid in capital..........coooveiiiiiiiiirii e 141,384 139,046
Retained armingS. ... ..coeurviiiiuiierieoieie sttt ettt sta e sr e ee s ene e 352,602 299,498
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) ....c.ooveeieninininnininciceee e (48.094) (77.108)
446,118 361,661
$1,044,903 $ 906,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Gross revenue:
Operating reVenUe...........ooveeeverceciinicniorcencninieens
Gain on disposal of aSSetS........c.ceevevevrirerieniennnes

Operating expenses:
Direct CoSt ..o
Depreciation and amortization............c.ceceevrcrnereenee
General and administrative .........ccoocervevvinevriennenne,

Curtailment gaiN........ccoceeercecrrimnieirneenecrrecernneneeeeeeenes
Operating inCOME ........ccvreeeeieerierireneeeeeneen

Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates, net..................
Interest iINCOME ..c.coveverceirciiirie et
Interest eXpense .. ..coccevercroriiiinine e
Loss on extinguishment of debt..........c..cooooiininnnnne.
Other income (expense), Net.......ccccoeevervierrereerererereinenens

Income before provision for income taxes and

MINOTILY INLETEST .oovvvvrivverviinrieerer e
Provision for iNCOME taXes .....c.ccvvvrvvecrininvin e,
MINOTItY INEETESE.....ccvreirerivreriririeiesieree et sie e sresreseeee

NEt INCOME ..o,

Net income per common share:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

............................ $ 563,649 $ 555,110 $ 508,561
............................ 3.943 3,734 3.553

567,592 558.844 512,114
............................ 417,417 417,910 373,003
............................ 39,543 37,664 35,246
............................ 38,892 34.478 31.732

495,852 490,052 439,981
............................ 21,665 - --
............................ 93,405 68,792 72,133
............................ 11,039 12,054 6,604
............................ 1,689 1,523 2,256
............................ 16,829 14,904 15,825
............................ (6,205) -- --
............................ (7.810) (3.284) 1,148
............................ 75,289 64,181 66,316
............................ 20,803 19,254 20,263
............................ (1,382) (1.797) (1.603)
............................ § 53,104 $_43,130 $ 44450
............................ $ 2.36 h 1.92 $ 2.02
............................ b 2.29 $ 1.77 b 1.84
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT

Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive Total
Common Stock Paid in Income Retained Stockholders’
Shares  Amount _ Capital (L oss) Earnings Investment
(in thousands, except share amounts)
BALANCE - March 31, 2001 .......... 21,815,421 $ 218 $ 127,554 $ (41,143) $ 211,918 $ 298,547
Comprehensive income:
NEt INCOME.vririnriiirerrireireennen, - - -- - 44,450 44,450
Translation adjustments .......... -- -- - 1,490 - 1,490
Pension liability adjustment
(net of tax of $6,367) .............. -- -- - (12,790) -- (12,790)
Total Comprehensive income ..... -- -- - - -- 33,150
Tax benefit related to the exercise
of employee stock options........... -- -- 443 -- -- 443
ACQUISIHION vovveveeveireiresreieaeienas 365,000 4 6,387 -- -- 6,391
Stock options exercised .............. 118.500 1 1,502 -- -- 1,503
BALANCE - March 31, 2002 .......... 22,298,921 223 135,886 (52,443) 256,368 340,034
Comprehensive income:
Net income.....ocovvvvvcveereinreennn. - - -- -- 43,130 43,130
Translation adjustments .......... - -- -- 27,822 -- 27,822
Pension liability adjustment
(net of tax 0f $28,022) ............ -- -- -- (52,487) - (52,487)
Total Comprehensive income ..... -- -- -- -- -- 18,465
Tax benefit related to the exercise
of employee stock options........... -- -- 531 -- -- 531
Stock options exercised .............. 212,000 2 2,629 -- -- 2,631
BALANCE - March 31, 2003 .......... 22,510,921 225 139,046 (77,108) 299,498 361,661
Comprehensive income:
Net Income.....ooevveeerviiivnreenenn. -- -- -- -- 53,104 53,104
Translation adjustments .......... - - -- 33,105 - 33,105
Pension liability adjustment
(net of tax of $2,179) .............. -- -- -- (4,091) -- (4.091)
Total Comprehensive income ..... -- -- -- - - 82,118
Tax benefit related to the exercise
of employee stock options .......... -- -- 254 -- -- 254
Stock options exercised .............. 120.300 | 2,084 -- - 2,085
BALANCE - March 31,2004 .......... 22631221 $226 § 141,384 $ (48.094) 352,602 $ 446,118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

INEE INCOMIE ..o enin ettt bbbt es ettt et et eeas
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ..........c..cocvcrercrincniniinicieieaenas

Deferred iNCOME tAXES ...c.c.viiieiirieircrieiee et

Gain on asset diSPOSTHONS......ocviiviiiiiiiii e

Curtailment ZaIN .....coovovviiiiiicce e

Loss on extinguishment of debt..........ccccooiieieiiviivrccerernine e

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated affiliates over (under)

dividends 1eCeIVEd.......ooviiieiieriercrccec e

Minority interest i €arniNgS ......covveereeeoreeisieereeerrarereenenesienenas

Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable ...........ccccvieiieiinenenn,
(Increase) decrease in INVENTOTIES .......vvvrvvvrnirersrseerieneeneeseearennens
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other..........ccocovevreneee
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable .......c.ocoiviivereniciciiinns
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities.......covvvevvieicincnenceniennan

Net cash provided by operating activities.........ocevevvevvenerenercenienene.

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditires .......ccoviieeieieiniieeeirc e
Assets purchased on behalf of unconsolidated affiliate ..................
Proceeds from sale of assets to unconsolidated affiliate.................
Proceeds from asset diSPOSItiONS ......c.ecvevecreininriasiaeeieireirniennnenns
Acquisition, net of cash received......ccooocvviviiicicee
INVESHMENLS ...ttt e et nienenesns s

Net cash used in investing actiVities......ocovvvrerrieinieieesererenenoreis

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from BOITOWINGS ....covvivviiiiiiieieeiee e s
Repayment of debt and debt redemption premiums.........ccoceevveee.
Partial prepayment of put/call obligation.........ccovvvvierercninciinennns
Issuance of comMmMON StOCK ........ccovieciiiercirircc
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...........c.ccccveeiernne

Effect of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents ...............

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents...........cccoccovinuenen.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period.........cocecevrvieccnancnn,

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period..........c.oceeveiiiinninincenennens

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

§ 53,104 $ 43,130 § 44,450
39,543 37,664 35,246
10,571 14,844 9,407
(3,943) (3,734) (3,553)

(21,665) -- -
6,205 -- -
(5,114) (4,767) (2,455)
1,382 1,797 1,603
12,259 533 (6,974)
4,111 (6,545) (16,673)
5,232 (3,541) (3,625)
(6,431) 1,621 (2,905)
(4,496) (16,388) 7,697
795 (2,558) 2,126

-- 331 --
83.331 62,387 64.344
(67,855) (55,031) (75,281)
(35,394) (26,019) -
35,394 26,019 --
6,854 22,803 11,354

-- (15,953) 554
(1.581) == (8796)
(62.582) (48,181) (64.249)
246,523 45,286 1,513
(233,627) (49,026) (15,045)
(11,442) -- --
2.085 2,631 1,503
3.539 (1,109) (12,029)
4,591 1,033 (190)
28,879 14,130 (12,124)
56.800 42,670 54,794
$ 85,679 $§ 56,800 § 42,670

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A — OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations — The Company’s primary area of operation is supplying helicopter transportation services to the
worldwide offshore oil and gas industry. The Company also provides production management services to the oil and gas
industry in the Gulf of Mexico.

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Offshore Logistics, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“OLOG”), and its majority owned and non-majority owned entities, including Bristow Aviation
Holdings, Ltd. (“Bristow”), collectively referred to as “the Company”, after elimination of all significant intercompany
accounts and transactions. Investments in 50% or less owned affiliates over which the Company has the majority of the
economic risk of the operating assets and related results are consolidated. Investments in 50% or less owned affiliates over
which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method. Investments in
which the Company does not exercise significant influence are accounted for under the cost method whereby dividends are
recognized as income when received.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company’s cash equivalents include funds invested in highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Accounts Receivable — Trade and other receivables are stated at net realizable value and the allowance for
uncollectable accounts was $9.7 million and $9.8 million at March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During the fiscal years
2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company increased the allowance account through charges to expense by $0.4 million, $1.0 million
and $0.7 million, respectively, and decreased the allowance account for write-offs and recoveries of specifically identified
uncollectable accounts by $1.4 million, $0.1 million and $1.1 respectively. The Company grants short-term credit to its
customers, primarily major and independent oil and gas companies.

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market and consist primarily of spare parts. The
valuation reserve related to obsolete and excess inventory was $12.8 million and $11.6 million at March 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. During fiscal year 2004, the Company decreased the valuation reserve for write-offs of identified obsolete and
excess inventory by $0.6 million and increased the valuation reserve through charges to expenses by $0.5 million. During
fiscal year 2002, the Company increased the valuation reserve through charges to expense by $0.5 million and decreased the
valuation reserve for write-offs of specifically identified obsolete and excess inventory by $0.4 million. There were no
charges to operations during the fiscal year 2003.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and
intangible assets acquired in a business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but
instead are tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over
their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 as of April 1, 2002. Accordingly, the Company ceased to amortize goodwill in
fiscal 2003. Goodwill amortization was approximately $1.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2002. Had the
goodwill amortization not been recorded for fiscal year 2002, the Company’s net income would have been $45.2 million and
diluted earnings per share would have been $1.87. As of the beginning of the fiscal 2003, the Company had unamortized
goodwill of $14.0 million and $6.3 million relating to its production management segment and technical services business
unit, respectively. In connection with the acquisition discussed in Note J to the consolidated financial statements, an
additional $6.6 million of goodwill was recorded in fiscal 2003. At March 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company completed a
goodwill impairment test on these balances, which involved the use of estimates related to the fair market value of the
Company’s business units to which goodwill was allocated. The tests indicated the goodwill was not impaired.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected periods to
be benefited, generally 20 years, and assessed for recoverability by determining whether the amortization of the goodwill
balance over its remaining life could be recovered through undiscounted future operating cash flows of the acquired
operation. The amount of goodwill impairment, if any, was measured based on projected discounted future operating cash
flows using a discount rate reflecting the Company’s average cost of funds.

Other assets — Included in other assets is prepaid pension cost of $36.0, restricted cash of $0.6 million and debt
issuance costs of $5.9 million, which are being amortized over the life of the related debt. See Note H for further
discussion of the Company’s prepaid pension cost.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — SFAS No. 144 provides a single accounting model for disposal or impairment
of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 144 also changes the criteria for classifying an asset as held for sale, broadens the scope of
businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as discontinued operations and changes the timing of recognizing
losses on such operations. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 on April 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not
affect the Company’s financial statements.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and purchased
intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be
separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell,
and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed group classified as held for sale would be presented
separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 144, the Company accounted for long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No.
121, Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue from charters of helicopters are recognized as performed based on contractual
charter rates. The helicopter charters are for varying periods and generally permit the customer to cancel the charter
before the end of the contract term. The charges under these charter contracts are generally based on either a daily or
monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour flown. Additionally, we also provide services to customers on a basis
we refer to as “ad hoc”, which usually entails a shorter notice period and shorter duration. Our charges for ad hoc services
are generally based on either an hourly rate or a daily or monthly fixed fee plus additional fees for each hour flown. Our
rate structure is based on fuel costs remaining at or below a predetermined threshold. Fuel costs in excess of this threshold
are charged to the customer. Revenue from production management services are recognized as these services are
performed.

Depreciation and Amortization — Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimated residual value used in calculating depreciation of aircraft ranges from 30%
to 50% of cost. The costs and related accumulated depreciation of assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from
the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are included in income.

In conjunction with the Company’s previously announced fleet and facilities renewal and refurbishment program,
the Company changed the estimated residual value of certain aircraft from 30% to 50% and changed the useful lives of
certain aircraft from 7-10 years to 15 years, effective July 1, 2003. The Company believes the revised amounts reflects its
historical experience and more appropriately matches costs over the estimated useful lives and salvage values of these
assets. The effect of this change for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2004 was a reduction in depreciation expense of $3.2
million, $2.3 million after tax. The reduction in depreciation expense increased the Company’s net income for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2004 by $0.10 per diluted share.

Maintenance and Repairs — The Company charges maintenance and repair costs, including major aircraft
component overhaul costs, to earnings as the costs are incurred. Certain major aircraft components, primarily engines and
transmissions, are maintained by third party vendors under contractual arrangements. The maintenance costs related to
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these contractual arrangements are recorded ratably as the components are used to generate flight revenue.

The Company capitalizes betterments and improvements to its aircraft and amortizes such costs over the useful
lives of the aircraft. Betterments and improvements increase the life or utility of an aircraft.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes”. Under this statement, deferred income taxes are provided for by the asset and liability method.

Foreign Currency Translation — Bristow maintains its accounting records in its local currency (British Pound
Sterling). Foreign currencies are converted to United States dollars with the effect of the foreign currency translation
reflected as a component of shareholders’ investment in accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”
Foreign currency transaction gains or losses are credited or charged to income and such amounts are included in other
income (expense). During fiscal 2004, the British pound to U.S. dollar exchange rate ranged from a low of one British
pound = U.S. $1.55 to a high of one British pound = U.S. $1.90, with an average of one British pound = U.S. $1.70 for the
fiscal year. At March 31, 2004, the exchange rate was one British pound = U.S. $1.84. Balance sheet information for
fiscal 2004 is presented based on the conversion rate at March 31, 2004, and income statement information is presented
based on the average conversion rate for fiscal 2004,

Derivative Financial Instruments — Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” that amends certain provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” The pronouncements require that ail derivatives be recognized as either
assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, The adoption of SFAS No. 133, as amended, did not have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company enters into forward exchange contracts from time to time to hedge committed transactions
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the business. Foreign currency contracts are scheduled to
mature at the anticipated currency requirement date and rarely exceed one year. The purpose of the Company’s foreign
currency hedging activities is to protect the Company from the risk that foreign currency outflows resulting from payments
for services and parts to foreign suppliers will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. As of March 31, 2004
and 2003, the Company had no forward exchange contracts outstanding. The amount of gains and losses recognized in
earnings on foreign currency hedging contracts during fiscal 2004 was immaterial.

Financial instruments may be designated as a hedge at inception where there is a direct relationship to the price risk
associated with the related service and parts. Hedge contracts are recorded at cost and periodic adjustments to fair market
value are deferred and recorded as a component of equity in Other Comprehensive Income. Settlements of hedge
contracts are recorded to costs or revenue as they occur. If the direct relationship to price risk ceases to exist, and a hedge
is no longer deemed effective at reducing the intended exposure, fair value of a forward contract at that date is recognized
over the remaining term of the contract. Subsequent changes in the fair value of ineffective contracts are recorded to
current earnings.

Stock Compensation — The Company accounts for its stock-based employee compensation under the principles
prescribed by the Accounting Principles Board’s Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (Opinion No.
25). SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” permits the continued use of the intrinsic-value based
method prescribed by Opinion No. 25 but requires additional disclosures, including pro forma calculations of earnings and
net earnings per share as if the fair value method of accounting prescribed by SFAS No. 123 had been applied. No stock-
based compensation costs are reflected in net income, as all options granted under the plans had an exercise price equal to
the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. As required by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amended SFAS No. 123, the following table illustrates
the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation. The pro forma data presented below is not representative of the effects
on reported amounts for future years (in thousands, except per share amounts and model assumptions).
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net income, as rePOITEU . cvivirrerreereirieeeieieeeiet oottt eve e eebeeba s $ 53,104 $ 43,130 $ 44450

Stock-based employee compensation expense, net of tax............... (1.207) (853) (1,882)

Pro forma net INCOME. .....eceireiee e vretse et § 51,897 § 42277 $ 42568
Basic earnings:

Earnings, as rePorted ....ooocv v e $ 2.36 $ 1.92 3 2.02

Stock-based employee compensation expense, net of tax............... (0.06) (0.04) (0.08)

Pro forma basic earnings per share .........c.occovvncicnincicinnicneennn. § 230 $ 1.88 $ 1.94
Diluted earnings:

Earnings, as reported ......coccoviiiieeeiicecienc et $ 2.29 $ 1.77 $ 1.84

Stock-based employee compensation expense, net of tax.............. (0.05) (0.03) (0.07)

Pro forma diluted earnings per Share .........ccooovencivencennisincncinenn. § 224 $ 174 b 1.77
Black-Scholes option pricing model assumptions:

Risk free INterest Tate ....vvvveiveiiiieiieieee ettt 3.2% 2.8% 4.6%

Expected 1ife (YEars) .....occovvivieieeniiiicserie ettt 5 5 4

VOLAtIILY oottt 46% 54% 57%

Dividend yield .o -- -- --

Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued
SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” effective for fiscal years beginning after June .15, 2002.
This statement requires the Company to record the fair value of liabilities related to future asset retirement obligations in
the period the obligation is incurred. The Company adopted SFAS No. 143 on April 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS No.
143 did not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 eliminates SFAS No. 4 and as a result, gains and
losses from extinguishments of debt should be classified as extraordinary items only if they meet the criteria in APB
Opinion No. 30. SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” to eliminate an inconsistency between
the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that
have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. SFAS No. 145 also updates and amends existing
authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under
changed conditions. The Company implemented SFAS No. 145 on April 1, 2003, and determined that it had no impact on
prior quarter financial statements. On July 29, 2003, the Company redeemed all of the then outstanding principal amount
of its 7 "/s% Senior Notes due 2008 and its 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2003 which resulted in a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $6.2 million comprised of unamortized debt issuance costs and a premium payment. In
accordance with SFAS No. 145 the loss on extinguishment of debt was recognized as a component of income from
continuing operations.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,”
which is effective for fiscal periods after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146 requires companies to recognize costs
associated with restructurings, discontinued operations, plant closings, or other exit or disposal activities, when incurred
rather than at the date a plan is committed to. The Company has implemented the provisions of this statement on a
prospective basis for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others™ (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 expands existing accounting
guidance and disclosure requirements for certain guarantees and requires recognition, at the inception of a guarantee, of a
liability for the fair value of an obligation undertaken in connection with issuing a guarantee. The disclosure requirements
of FIN 45 were effective for the Company’s March 31, 2003 financial statements and the remaining provisions of FIN 45
apply to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
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In December 2003, the FASB published a revision to Interpretation 46 (“FIN 46R™) to clarify certain provisions of
FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” and to exempt certain entities from its
requirements. FIN 46R requires a company to consolidate a variable interest entity (VIE), as defined, when the company
will absorb a majority of the variable interest entity’s expected losses, receive a majority of the variable interest entity’s
expected residual returns, or both. FIN 46R also requires consolidation of existing, non-controlled affiliates if the VIE is
unable to finance its operations without investor support, or where the other investors do not have exposure to the
significant risks and rewards of ownership. FIN 46R is effective by the end of the first reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

B — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at March 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (in thousands):

March 31,
2004 2003
6 /5% Senior Notes due 2013 ....oo..ooooveoeeeoeeeoeee oo $ 230,000 S -
7 /6% Senior Notes due 2008 .........c...coovviveerveeeroreeesovesseesseeeceeee - 100,000
6% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2003 . ......oooviiivieiiiiviieeeens -- 90,922
Line of Credit (U.S. credit facility) .....ccconiniierniniinier e -- 14,000
Limited recourse term loan with a United Kingdom bank ............c........ 22,134 23,077
Management fee debt (see Note K)...oooovoiiiieiiiceiiineceeceeees -- 396
Short term advance from CUSIOMET ..........cc.ooviviiieetice e e 3,400 -~
Short term note to equipment Manufacturer...........c..coocreonreccieeccnoas -- 4423
TOtal dEbL...oviiiiiiiiiiice e 255,534 232,818
Less current MAturIties . .oo.ioiiiieeiveii e ie e et e e 4.417 96.684
Total long-term debt ......ociviriiieiii e § 251,117 $ 136,134

On June 20, 2003, the Company completed a private placement of $230.0 million 6 1/8% Senior Notes due 2013.
These notes are unsecured senior obligations and rank effectively junior in right of payment to all the Company’s existing
and future secured indebtedness, rank equally in right of payment with the Company’s existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness and rank senior in right of payment to any of the Company’s existing and future subordinated
indebtedness. The notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and become redeemable at the
Company’s option on or after June 15, 2008. A portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of these notes was
used to redeem all of the Company’s outstanding 7 7/8% Senior Notes due 2008 and all of the Company’s outstanding 6%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2003, which are further discussed below. The remaining net proceeds from the
private placement were used for general corporate purposes. The redemptions took place on July 29, 2003. The Company
recorded a loss on the extinguishment of debt of $6.2 million in July 2003. Approximately $4.7 million of the loss
pertains to redemption premiums and $1.5 million pertains to unamortized debt issuance costs relating to the redeemed
debt.

The Company filed a registration statement on July 18, 2003, with respect to an offer to exchange the notes for a
new issue of equivalent notes registered under the Securities Act. The registration statement was declared effective on
August 4, 2003 and the exchange of notes was concluded on September 4, 2003.

On December 17, 1996, the Company issued $98 million of 6% Convertible Subordinated Notes (“6%
Notes”) due December 2003. The 6% Notes were convertible at any time into the Company’s Common Stock at a
conversion price of $22.86 per share (equivalent to a conversion rate of approximately 43.74 shares per $1,000
principal amount of 6% Notes) and are redeemable at the option of the Company. The Company issued $7.5 miltion
of the 6% Notes to Caledonia Investments ple in conjunction with the investment in Bristow. Proceeds of $88.4
million, after debt issuance costs of $2.1 million, were also used to finance the investment in Bristow. During 1999,
the Company repurchased $7.1 million face value of the 6% Notes in the open market at a gain to the Company,
which was not material. The Company fully redeemed the $90.9 million outstanding 6% Notes on July 29, 2003 at a
redemption price equal to 100.86% of the principal amount plus accrued interest of $0.7 million for a total price of
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$92.4 million. A loss of $0.8 million was recorded in July 2003, which pertained to the redemption premium.

On January 27, 1998, the Company issued $100 million aggregate principal amount of 7 '/s% Senior Notes (“7 /5%
Notes”) due 2008 discounted to yield 7.915%. The 7'/s% Notes were guaranteed by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
(see Note N). The Company fully redeemed the $100.0 million outstanding 7"/s% notes on July 29, 2003 at a redemption
price equal to 103.938% of the principal amount plus accrued interest of $0.3 million for a total price of $104.2 million. A
loss of $3.9 million was recorded in July 2003, which pertained to the redemption premium.

In August 2002, Bristow entered into a Bill of Exchange with Eurocopter which matured in November 2003 in
connection with the purchase of an AS 332L2 Super Puma. A United Kingdom bank guaranteed payment by Bristow and
required a mortgage on a similar aircraft. The mortgage was released when payment was made in November 2003.

The limited recourse term loan is secured by two aircraft that the Company operates under an operating lease and
the Company has provided a guarantee of up to $3.8 million of the original cost of the aircraft. The guarantee represents
the Company’s maximum amount of credit exposure. The rate of interest payable under the loan is 7.1%, requires
quarterly payments of $0.6 million and has a balloon payment of $19.0 million due in 2007.

The short term advance from a customer is reimbursement for value added taxes paid by the Company, the
obligation for which is currently under dispute between the Company, the customer and the taxing authority. The advance
is non-interest bearing and will be repaid as taxes are refunded to the Company by the applicable governmental agency.

Bristow has a £12.0 million ($22.1 million) revolving credit facility, of which £6.0 million ($11.0 million) is only
available for letters of credit with a United Kingdom bank that is payable on demand and matures June 30, 2004. The
facility is available for working capital requirements. All advances under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a
blended rate approximating 0.7% above the Bank’s base rate. The revolving credit facility is guaranteed by certain United
Kingdom subsidiaries of Bristow and is secured by helicopter mortgages and a negative pledge of substantially all Bristow
assets. There were no borrowings under this revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2004; however, availability on the
line is reduced by £1.5 million ($2.8 million) of outstanding letters of credit. Management is in the process of renewing
the line of credit and expects it to be finalized before June 30, 2004,

At March 31, 2004, the Company had a $30 million unsecured line of credit with a U.S. bank that expires on
August 31, 2005. The line of credit is subject to a sublimit of $10.0 million for the issuance of letters of credit. The
Company has no amounts drawn under this facility but did have $0.7 million of letters of credit utilized which reduced
availability under the line as of March 31, 2004. Borrowings bear interest at a rate equal to one month LIBOR plus a
spread ranging from 1.25% to 2.0%. The rate of the spread depends on certain financial ratios under the credit facility.
Borrowings under this credit facility are unsecured and are guaranteed by certain of our U.S. subsidiaries. The agreement
requires the Company to pay a quarterly commitment fee at an annual rate of 0.20% on the average unused portion of the
line.

Among other restrictions, the credit agreements and notes contain covenants relating to liens, consolidated net
worth, liquidity and cash flow coverage (as defined in the agreements). At March 31, 2004, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants. Aggregate annual maturities for all long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:
2005 — $4.4 million; 2006 — $1.1 million; 2007 — $10.8 million; 2008 — $9.2 million; and 2009 — $0; thereafter
$230.0 million.

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized in fiscal 2004, was $15.1 million. Interest paid for fiscal 2003 and 2002
was $14.4 million and $14.6 million, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s total debt at March 31, 2004 and 2003 was $253.2 million and $232.6

million, respectively, based on quoted market prices for the publicly listed 6 '/¢% Senior Notes and the publicly listed 6%
Notes and the 77/s% Notes and the current rates offered to the Company on other outstanding obligations.
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C — INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES

The Company has investments in three unconsolidated affiliates that are accounted for on the cost method,
Hemisco Helicopters International, Inc. and Heliservicio Campeche S.A. de C.V. (collectively referred to as HC), Aeroleo
Taxi Aereo S.A. (“Aeroleo”) and Petroleum Air Services (“PAS”), as the Company is unable to exert significant influence
over their operations. The Company also has investments in five unconsolidated affiliates, FBS Limited (“FBS”), FB
Heliservices Limited (“FBH”), FB Leasing Limited (“FBL”), collectively referred to as the FB Entities, Rotorwing
Leasing Resources, (“RLR”) and Norsk Helikopter AS (*Norsk™), which it accounts for under the equity method. Each of
these entities are principally involved in the provision of helicopter transportation services to the offshore oil and gas
industry, with the exception of the FB Entities, whose activities are described in further detail below.

The FB Entities originated in 1996 when Bristow was awarded a contract to provide pilot training and maintenance
services to the Defence Helicopter Flying School (“DHFS”), a then newly established training school for all branches of
the British military, under a fifteen year contract valued at approximately £500 million over the full term. FBS purchased
and specially modified 47 aircraft dedicated to conducting these training activities, which began in May 1997. Bristow
and its partner have given joint and several guarantees of up to £15.0 million ($27.6 million) related to the performance of
this contract. Bristow has also guaranteed repayment of up to £10 million ($18.4 million) of FBS’s outstanding debt
obligation, which is primarily collateralized by the 47 aircraft discussed above. Since May 1997, the FB Entities have
been awarded additional government work. These entities together have purchased and modified 6 additional aircraft and
maintain a staff of approximately 590 employees.

In July 2003, the Company sold six aircraft, at cost, to RLR. RLR financed 90% of the purchase price of these
aircraft through a five year term loan (the RLR Note). The RLR Note is secured by the six aircraft. The Company
guaranteed 49% of the RLR Note ($15.6 million) and the other shareholder has guaranteed the remaining 51% of the RLR
Note ($16.2 million). In addition, the Company gave the bank a put option which the bank may exercise if the aircraft are
not returned to the United States within 30 days of a default on the RLR Note. Any such exercise would require the
Company to purchase the RLR Note from the bank. The Company simultaneously entered into a similar agreement with
the other RLR shareholder which requires that, in event of exercise by the bank of its put option to the Company, the other
shareholder will be required to purchase 51% of the RLR Note from the Company. As of March 31, 2004 a liability of
$1.0 million representing the fair value of this guarantee is reflected in the balance sheet in other liabilities and deferred
credits. The fair value of the guarantee is being amortized over the term of the RLR Note.

The percentage ownership and investment balance for the unconsolidated affiliates at March 31 were as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

Percentage

Ownership 2004 2003
Cost Method
HC 49% $ 2,637 $ 2,637
PAS 25% 6,286 6,286
Aceroleo 20% 1,290 1,425
Other 612 596
Equity Method
RLR 49% 3,465 --
Norsk 49% 6,625 4,749
FB Entities 50% 18.014 12,235

$38,929 $27,928
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Dividends from entities accounted for on the cost method were as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

HC $ 2,356 $ 2,146 $§ 2230
PAS 2,500 4,600 1,914
Aeroleo - 540 --
$ 4,856 $ 7286 8§ 4,144

A summary of combined unaudited financial information of these unconsolidated affiliates is set forth below (in
thousands):

March 31,
2004 2003
(unaudited) (unaudited)
CUITENE ASSEES .. vvviiieiviireiireeeereercerineeeosrreseseeessesressonnreeones $ 217,881 $ 178,095
NON-CUITENT @SSETS...uviiieiieiieeivreereieienrieereestreesbeesernserneearneaes 220.081 137.922
Total ASSELS .ovviiiiiiiiii e S 437,962 $ 316,017
Current Habilities .........ovvvieveeeeeeees e e $ 69,258 $ 63,126
Non-current Habilities .......ccoovviiiiiiieiiiiics e 247,689 157,214
EQUITY .ottt eba et aseas 121,015 95.677
Total liabilities and equity .......ccoveerereeereeeirr e 437,962 $ 316,017
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
REVENUE ..ot $ 300412 $ 261,709 s 139,140
Gross Profit ...cccoeveeieine e $ 81,190 $ 61,573 s 46,456
Net INCOME ..oovviireriiiicieie e 3 40,358 $ 27,218 8 23,566

During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, revenue of $54.1 million, $54.0 million and $21.3 million were
recognized for services provided to these unconsolidated affiliates by the Company. At March 31, 2004, $12.9 million was
due from these unconsolidated affiliates for services provided.

D — INVESTMENT IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,”
investments in debt and equity securities are required to be classified in one of three categories: held-to-maturity,
available-for-sale, or trading. As of March 31, 2003, the Company had £4.8 million ($7.6 million) of UK government
securities classified as available-for-sale included in other assets which matured in June 2003. The estimated fair market
value approximated book value at March 31, 2003.

E — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has noncancelable operating leases in connection with the lease of certain equipment, land and
facilities. Rental expense incurred under these leases was $2.5 million in fiscal 2004, $4.8 million in fiscal 2003, and $4.4
million in fiscal 2002. As of March 31, 2004, aggregate future payments under noncancelable operating leases are as
follows: fiscal 2005 — $2.6 million; fiscal 2006 — $2.2 million; fiscal 2007 — $1.9 million; fiscal 2008 — $1.7 million
and fiscal 2009 —- $1.4 million.
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The Company employs approximately 300 pilots in our North American Operations who are represented by the
Office and Professional Employees International Union (“OPEIU”) under a collective bargaining agreement. Because this
agreement became amendable in May 2003, the Company began negotiations with union representatives in March 2003.
After approximately eight weeks of discussions, an agreement could not be reached on several keys areas, most notably
compensation levels. Both the union representatives and the Company agreed to seek assistance from the National
Mediation Board, or NMB, in appointing an independent mediator to assist with the negotiations. A mediator was
assigned by the NMB and sessions have continued to date with some progress being made. In the future, all negotiations
will be at the behest of the NMB mediator. If the mediator and the NMB should determine that no further progress is
being made toward resolution, then the NMB can seek a number of alternatives which include:

1. Declare a 30-day “cooling-off period.” Negotiations may continue during the “cooling-off period.” If the
dispute remains unresolved after the “cooling-off period,” then both parties would be released from negotiations
and could seek “self help”. When “self help” is available the pilots could then engage in a work action that
could take a variety of forms including a work stoppage. or;

2. The NMB can continue negotiations for extended periods of time (in some instances for several years) until one
or both of the parties change their demands and reach an agreement.

The Company has contingency plans in place to respond to these scenarios and believe it will be able to continue
operations with limited or no disruption in services. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the financial impact of a
work stoppage should one occur, on the Company’s results of operations. Based on the Company’s latest proposals made
to the union, base salary expense would increase by approximately 11% annually. Given that the pilot group represents
only 33% of the Company’s North American workforce, the Company does not believe that this level of adjustment or the
results of its negotiations will place it at a competitive financial or operational disadvantage.

During November 2002, Bristow sold assets related to its activities in Italy. Bristow recognized a pre-tax loss on
the disposal of these assets during fiscal 2003 of $1.3 million, which is recorded in the gain on disposal of assets in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income. These assets generated approximately $12.8 million of Bristow’s
operating revenue for fiscal 2003 ($15.0 million for fiscal 2002). The loss represents the excess of book value over sales
proceeds, plus the accrual of certain obligations totaling $0.9 million which were reflected in the March 31, 2003
consolidated balance sheet. The sale of three aircraft involved in Italy has not closed. These aircraft are currently leased
by the Company from a third party, and subleased to the buyer. The sales of the aircraft are contingent upon the Company
exercising purchase options under the leases and the closing of the sale to the buyer. Gains resulting from these aircraft
sales are expected to be approximately $4.3 million.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency, also referred to as the EPA, has in the past notified us that the
Company is a potential responsible party, or PRP, at three former waste disposal facilities that are on the National
Priorities List of contaminated sites. Under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act, also known as the Superfund law, persons who are identified as PRPs may be subject to strict, joint and
several liability for the costs of cleaning up environmental contamination resulting from releases of hazardous substances
at National Priorities List sites. The Company was identified by the EPA as a PRP at the Western Sand and Gravel
Superfund site in Rhode Island in 1984, at the Sheridan Disposal Services Superfund site in Waller County, Texas in 1989,
and at the Gulf Coast Vacuum Services Superfund site near Abbeville, Louisiana in 1989. The Company has not received
any correspondence from the EPA with respect to the Western Sand and Gravel Superfund site since February 1991, nor
with respect to the Sheridan Disposal Services Superfund site since 1989. Remedial activities at the Gulf Coast Vacuum
Services Superfund site were completed in September 1999 and the site was removed from the National Priorities List in
July 2001. Although the Company has not obtained a formal release of liability from the EPA with respect to any of these
sites, the Company believes that our potential liability in connection with these sites is not likely to have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

F — RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

In October 2003, the Company announced that it had begun a restructuring of its United Kingdom based
operations. The restructuring is designed to reduce costs and promote operational and managerial efficiencies to enable
the Company to remain competitive in the North Sea offshore helicopter market.
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As part of the restructuring program, the Company will reduce staffing levels by approximately 100 positions, or
11% of its United Kingdom workforce, over a nine-month period. The Company will ultimately incur approximately £2.4
million ($4.4 million) in severance costs and approximately £0.4 million ($0.8 million) in other restructuring costs. The
Company has incurred approximately £1.8 million ($3.4 million) in severance costs and approximately £0.4 million ($0.7
million) in other restructuring costs as of March 31, 2004. Approximately £0.5 million ($1.0 million) of costs incurred to
date are included in Direct Cost in the consolidated income statement and have been allocated to the Helicopter Activities
segment, specifically the North Sea business unit, while the remaining £1.7 million ($3.1 million) are included in General
and Administrative costs in the consolidated income statement and were allocated to Corporate.

The balance of the accrued restructuring charges recorded in connection with the restructuring of the Company’s
United Kingdom based operations at March 31, 2004 was as follows:

Employee Severance Other
And Other Related Restructuring
Benefits Costs Total
(in thousands)
Restructuring costs, incurred to date $ 3,402 $ 658 $ 4,060
Cash payments (1.454) (560) (2.014)
Accrual balance at March 31, 2004 $ 1,948 $ 98 2,046

G — INCOME TAXES

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

March 31,
2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Foreign tax credits ....c.ooociviniiiirieriirve e s $ 79,801 $ 68,436
Pension minimum Hability .....c..coocvveriiiiniinic e 88,512 72,556
Accrual for maintenance and repair ..........cocovvvereieeerere i, 8,113 3,349
ORET e e 11,146 13,358

Valuation allowance ..

........................................................................ (14.418) (16,575)

Total deferred tax @SSets ........ccviviveivviireerieeeee e ee e eraes e 173,154 141,124

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and eqQUIPIMENT ........ccoovvoiiiiinnieiiiee e s (195,154) (170,268)
TIVENTOTIES. ..ottt et (10,913) (9,782)
Deferred reVENUE .........occei ettt e (1,912) (3,237)
Prepaid pension COSES ..c.vviriniiriiiireiii e rcs e (22,768) (5,908)
Investments in affiliates ... (16,092) (13,443)
Other foreign dedUCtONS .......ccocovvirimiieirie e (12,168) (10,971)
Other (7.991) (8.629)
Total deferred tax liabilities ......ccooovverveveiivee e, (266,998) (222,238)

Net deferred tax liabilities........cccoorininiininnn e 3,844 $ (8l1,114)
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Companies may use foreign tax credits to offset the United States income taxes due on income earned from foreign
sources. However, the credit that may be claimed for a particular taxable year is limited by the total income tax on the
United States income tax return as well as by the ratio of foreign source net income in each statutory category to total net
income. The amount of creditable foreign taxes available for the taxable year that exceeds the limitation (i.e.; “excess
foreign tax credits”) may be carried back two years and forward five years. As of March 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company
did not believe it was more likely than not that it would generate sufficient foreign sourced income within the appropriate
period to utilize all of its excess foreign tax credits. Therefore, the valuation allowance was established for the deferred
tax asset related to foreign tax credits.

A portion of the above foreign tax credit asset represents the Company’s expected US foreign tax credit that would
result from directly related foreign deferred tax liabilities. As such, the credit may not be claimed on the United States
income tax return until such time that the related foreign deferred tax liabilities become current. At March 31, 2004 and
2003, $37.7 million and $30.6 million, respectively, of the above foreign tax credit asset represent credits that relate to
deferred foreign tax liabilities with respect to which the limitation on utilization and timing of carryovers have yet to
begin.

Certain of the above components have changed due to fluctuations in foreign currency rates.
The components of income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes and minority interest for

fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows (in thousands):
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
DOMESLIC ...ciiiiies ettt s a b s sreenre s $ 11,549 $ 10,375 $ 21,867
FOT@IZI .. ecuiieiiicte ettt et ab et e ana s 63.740 53,806 44 449
TORAL 1.eiveieie ettt et $ 75289 $ 64,181 $ 66316

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 consisted of the following (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Current:
DOMIESTIC cviveieeceieeiecreree et e e caesae e b sae st esaeaas $ 1,023 § 2,324 $ 1,117
FOTBIZN ..coviiviiiiiie et 9418 19,906 6,960
10,441 22,230 8,077
Deferred:
DOIMESLIC oovviovevvveevieecveeesevrecsieteeseitsreesvvesessesscrnssesssenans 6,531 (2,345) 15,065
FOTBIZM .ottt 4,112 (1,643) (626)
10,643 (3.988) 14,439
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance...........ccoeevvennen. (281) 1,012 (2,253)
CTOAL ettt et skttt st e e e $§ 20803 $ 19254 $ 20,263
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The reconciliation of U.S. Federal statutory and effective income tax rates is shown below:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

StAtULOrY TAIE ....coiiiiieic e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Utilization of foreign tax credits .oo.ooovvviiiir i (15.4)% (31.4)% (7. 1%
Additional taxes on foreign source inCOME.........ccocovrerenn.e 15.0 % 30.9 % 10.0 %
Foreign source income not taxable.........cccooocoivcneneenn, (5.00% 3.0)% 3.3)%
Change in valuation allowance ............cooeveenincnincenininns (0.4)% 0.3% (2.3)%
State taxes provided ......coeverieeeiiereniree e 0.2% 0.4 % 0.5 %
OthET, N2ttt (1.8)% (2.2Y% (1.6)%

Effective tax rate ......cooiveiveeeiieinie s e 27.6% 30.0% 30.6%

The Internal Revenue Service has examined the Company’s Federal income tax returns for all years through 1996.
All years through 2000 have been closed, either through settlement or expiration of the statute of limitations.

Unremitted foreign earnings reinvested abroad upon which deferred income taxes have not been provided
aggregated approximately $53.9 million at March 31, 2004. Due to the timing and circumstances of repatriation of such
earnings, if any, it is not practicable to determine the unrecognized deferred tax liability relating to such amounts.
Withholding taxes, if any, upon repatriation would not be significant.

The Company receives a tax benefit that is generated by certain employee stock benefit plan transactions. This
benefit is recorded directly to additional paid-in-capital and does not reduce the Company’s effective income tax rate. The
tax benefit for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled approximately $0.3 million, $0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

Income taxes paid during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $20.0 million, $13.7 million and $7.2 million,
respectively.

H — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Savings and Retirement Plans

The Company currently has three qualified defined contribution plans, which cover substantially all employees
other than Bristow employees.

The Offshore Logistics, Inc. Employee Savings and Retirement Plan (“OLOG Plan”) covers Corporate and Air
Logistics or Airl.og employees. Under the OLOG Plan, the Company matches each participant’s contributions up to 3%
of the employee’s compensation. [n addition, the Company contributes an additional 3% of the employee’s compensation
at the end of each calendar year.

The Grasso Production Management, Inc. Thrift & Profit Sharing Trust covers eligible GPM employees. The
Company matches each participant’s contributions up to 3% of the employee’s compensation, plus a 50% match of

contributions up to an additional 2% of compensation.

The Pueblo Airmotive, Inc. 401(k) Plan covers Pueblo employees. The Company matches each participant’s
contributions up to 3% of the employee’s compensation.
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Bristow has a defined benefit pension plan, which covers all full-time employees of Bristow employed on or before
December 31, 1997, The plan is funded by contributions partly from employees and partly from Bristow. Members of the
plan contribute up to 9.5% of pensionable salary (as defined in the plan) and can pay additional voluntary contributions to
provide additional benefits. The benefits are based on the employee’s annualized average last three years pensionable
salaries. Plan assets are held in separate trustee administered funds, which are primarily invested in equities and bonds in
the United Kingdom. Effective March 31, 2002, this plan was amended to limit the rate of annual increases in pensionable
salary to the lesser of (a) annual increases in a retail price index or (b) 5%. In addition, the amendment requires
participants to contribute an additional 2% of pensionable salary to the plan. The amendment also introduces a defined
contribution element to the plan effective July 1, 2002, whereby Bristow will make contributions of up to 7% of the excess
of a participant’s salary over his pensionable salary. The participants will be allowed to make contributions into this
portion of the plan. For employees hired after December 31, 1997, Bristow contributes 4% (5% for pilots) of the
employee’s base salary into a defined contribution retirement plan operated by a private insurance company.

During January 2004, the Company again amended the defined benefit pension plan. The amendment, which is
effective February 1, 2004, essentially removes the defined benefit feature for a participant’s future services and replaces it
with a defined contribution arrangement. Under the new defined contribution feature, the Company will contribute 5% of
a participant’s non-variable salary to a defined contribution section of the plan. The participant will be required to
contribute a minimum of 5% of non-variable salary. Participants were also given the option to transfer out of the plan. In
accordance with SFAS No. 88 “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and for Termination Benefits”, the above change to the plan constitutes a “curtailment” of benefits and accordingly, all
previously deferred service gains or losses are immediately recognized in the statement of income. At the date of the
amendment the Company had a deferred prior service gain of £11.9 million (§21.7 million) related to prior plan
amendments. This amount was recorded as a gain in fiscal 2004.

The following tables provide a rollforward of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets in
accordance with SFAS No. 132 “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS No.
132), set forth the defined benefit retirement plan’s funded status in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 87
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” (SFAS No. 87) and provide a detail of the components of net periodic pension cost
calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 87 (in thousands):

March 31,
2004 2003

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Projected benefit obligation (PBO) at beginning

OF PETIOQ 1.t $ 299,258 $ 239,961
SEIVICE COSt...viieiiiiitiiiiiiiee ettt et re e ss e 5,251 5,339
INEETESE COSE.oiuvriiiiiriiitiiiieeie et eeeee et eet e reeseraeieeeaan e 17,781 16,227
Member contributions........c.ocvevveieiesviieeiee e 2,436 2,575
ACtUATIAl LOSS c.vviiiieiiiic e 17,030 19,645
Benefit payments and eXpenses ..........ccovcverercnciinieinn (12,157) (11,326)
Effect of exchange rate changes.............ccccoveiicinnens 52058 26.837

Projected benefit obligation (PBO) at end of period...... $ 381,657 3 299,258
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March 31,
2004 2003
Change in Plan Assets:
Market value of assets at beginning of period................ $ 195,979 $ 218,363
Actual TEtUIN ON @SSEIS ..vvvervrireeiiiereeree e erieeeeesrenaneenes 39,997 (42,784)
Employer contributions............c.ooveveircenrcrneecennennnnns 15,150 6,347
Member CONtribUtIONS .........covviiiveienicciiictere e 2,436 2,575
Benefit payments and eXpenses ..........coocvrevvrereroniennns (12,157) (11,326)
Effect of exchange rate changes..........ccccoooennnn 36,281 22,804
Market value of assets at end of period........c.cocoverennne. $ 277,686 $ 195979
Reconciliation of Funded Status:
Accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) .....ccccccoevevennnenne § 381,657 $ 299258
Projected benefit obligation (PBO)......ccccceveverrenennene 381,657 299,258
Fair value of aSSetS........ccocvverrieeeincinirec e 277.686 195,979
Deficit of assets over PBO ... vivnnvcinnsevicnnens (103,971) (103,279)
Unrecognized prior service credit.......coeiinnvciicicnncns -- (20,436)
Unrecognized experience 1055€S ......ccocovccrerenreneniennnnne. - 135,181
Unrecognized actuarial 10SS€S.........cocovcevevevcrrconcnneniane 139,978 --
Prepaid pension Cost ..........ccviiveriinienieneninieceees e 36,007 11,466
Adjustment to recognize minimum liability..........c..c.e... (139.978) (114.745)
Net recognized pension liability .........ccoovcrneniiverioneanan $(103,971) $(103,279)
Fiscal Year Ended March 31,
2004 2003 2002

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost:
Service cost for benefits earned during the period......... § 5251 5 5339 $ 5354
Interest cost 0N PBO ..o 17,781 16,227 14,576
Expected return on assetS.......ccocvevevevienverienienisninnecnennns (16,028) (17,172) (16,135)
Amortization of Unrecognized Plan Amendment

EffeCtS oot (1,827) (2,000) -
Amortization of Unrecognized Experience Losses........ 9.221 2,666 -=
SUBLOtAl ..o e 14,398 5,060 3,795
Curtailment gain ........ccoeccoiiviiiee e (21,665) - -
Net periodic pension (benefit) cost.......cooerivvecirrrecrnnene, S (3,267) $_ 5,060 $ 3795
Actuarial assumptions used to develop these components were as follows:

2004 2003 2002

DISCOUNE TAE ...eeovirnre e ciie st eeetr e eree e ra et st ane 5.50% 5.50% 6.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets..................... 7.25% 7.25% 7.25%
Rate of compensation increase..........cc.cvcveverenererencans 2.25% 2.25% 2.50%

In January 2004, the Company instituted a new non-qualified deferred compensation plan for its senior executives.
Under the terms of the plan, participants can elect to defer a portion of their compensation for distribution at a later date.
In addition, the Company has the discretion to make annual tax deferred contributions to the plan on the participants
behalf. The assets of the plan are held in a rabbi trust and are subject to the general creditors of the Company. At March
31, 2004 the amount held in trust was $0.2 million.

The Company’s contributions to the five plans were $19.8 million, $9.7 million and $8.8 million for fiscal 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Incentive and Stock Option Plans

Under the 1994 Long-Term Management Incentive Plan, as amended (1994 Plan™), a maximum of 2,900,000
shares of Common Stock, or cash equivalents of Common Stock, were provided for awards to officers and key employees.
Awards granted under the 1994 Plan may be in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
deferred stock, other stock-based awards or any combination thereof. Options become exercisable at such time or times as
determined at the date of grant and expire no more than ten years after the date of grant. Incentive stock option prices
cannot be less than fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of grant. Non-qualified stock option prices cannot
be less than 50% of the fair market value of the Common Stock at the date of grant. Stock option prices are determined by
the Board.

The Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (“Annual Plan™) provides for an annual award of cash bonuses to key
employees based primarily on pre-established objective measures of Company and subsidiary performance. Participants
are permitted to receive all or any part of their annual incentive bonus in the form of shares of restricted stock in
accordance with the terms of the 1994 Plan. The bonuses related to this plan were $2.1 million, $1.4 million and $1.8
million for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. There were no shares of restricted stock outstanding as of March 31,
2004.

The 1991 Non-qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-employee Directors, as amended (“1991 Plan™), provides for a
maximum of 200,000 shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to such plan. As of the date of each annual meeting,
each non-employee director who meets certain attendance criteria is automatically granted an option to purchase 2,000
shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The exercise price of the options granted is equal to the fair market value of the
Common Stock on the date of grant, and the options are exercisable not earlier than six months after the date of grant and
have an indefinite term. This plan expired in 2003 and is in effect only for options outstanding at March 31, 2004.

The 2003 Non-qualified Stock Option Plan for Non-employee Directors provides for a maximum of 250,000 shares
of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to such plan. As of the date of each annual meeting, each non-employee director
who meets certain attendance criteria is automatically granted an option to purchase 5,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock. The exercise price of the options granted is equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on the
date of grant, and the options are exercisable not earlier than six months after the date of grant and expire no more than ten
years after the date of grant.

Under the Company’s stock option plans there are 1,940,502 shares of Common Stock reserved for issue at March
31, 2004, of which 828,502 shares are available for future grants.

A summary of the Company’s stock options as of March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and changes during the periods
ended on those dates is presented below:

Weighted-Average Number

Exercise Price of Shares

Balance at March 31, 2001 .....oooo e $13.97 743,500
GIanted..........ooooiviiiiiciececee ettt e e ettt ans 20.48 323,500
EXEICISEA .ottt st ettt eras 12.68 (118,500)
Expired or cancelled...........ccooiiiivniiciiinicn et 19.55 (24,000)
Balance at March 31, 2002 .....oooeee ettt rve s 16.27 924,500
GIANtEA. ..o et ettt as e a e e res et e encees 18.04 252,300
EXEICISEA. . .iitiieeieiieit ettt e sre et s st e st s ne e 12.41 (212,000)
Expired or cancelled..........ccoooiviiiiiinc e 2041 (60,000)
Balance at March 31,2003 ..o 17.39 904,800
GIANTEA... oot e st et e e seaae e et e e s b e etva e ea 20.97 351,500
EXEICISEA. ..ivtiiiieeiieiieeii ettt ettt et ettt 17.33 (120,300)
Expired or cancelled.........c.cociiiiiiininincnies e 19.58 (24.000)
Balance at March 31,2004 ......c.oooiimiiee e $18.48 1,112,000

55




OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

As of March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the number of options exercisable under the stock option plans was 672,833,
668,500 and 617,000, respectively, and the weighted average exercise price of those options was $17.42, $17.18 and
$14.16, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Wgtd. Avg, Wgtd. Avg. Wgtd. Avg.
Range of Number Remaining Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Contr, Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 7.375-812.940 183,500 5.43 $12.00 183,500 $12.00
$15.438 - $19.760 457,500 7.24 $18.27 312,833 $18.39
$21.150 - $21.340 471,000 8.54 $21.22 176,500 $21.34
$ 7.375-821.340 1,112,000 7.49 $18.48 672,833 $17.42

I — EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share were computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the fiscal year. Diluted earnings per common share for the fiscal years 2004,
2003 and 2002 were determined on the assumption that the convertible debt was converted on April 1, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years 2003 and 2002 excluded 237,500 and 217,797 stock
options, respectively, at a weighted average exercise price of $21.34 and $21.34, respectively, which were outstanding
during the period but were anti-dilutive. The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income from
continuing operations per share:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Income from continuing operations (in thousands):
Income available to common stockholders.........c.c.ccooevvinn $ 53,104 $ 43,130 $ 44,450
Interest and redemption premium on convertible debt,
NEE OF tAXES 1.veevriiiiiee vt ettt 1.809 3.819 3,791
Income available to common stockholders, plus
ASSUMED COMVEISIONS ......vviveereaieeieecreereie e reereneinana $ 54913 $ 46,949 S 48,241
Shares:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding.... 22,545,183 22,429,056 21,997,343
OPHIONS L.ttt e 174,423 153,425 193,656
Convertible debt.........occooiviiiiioe e 1.293.045 3.976.928 3.976.928
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
including assumed conversions ............c.ccocoouvciineceennnen. 24,012,651 26,559,409 26,167,927
Income from continuing operations:
Basic earnings per Share ............ccocveevverivveveneneeceene e $ 2.36 $ 1.92 $ 2.02
Diluted earnings per share ...........ococovvvivmviiiinininiienenene $ 229 $ 1.77 $ 1.84

The Company adopted a stockholder rights plan on February 9, 1996, as amended on May 6, 1997 and on January
10, 2003, designed to assure that the Company’s stockholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed
takeover of the Company and to guard against partial tender offers, squeeze-outs, open market accumulations and other
abusive tactics t¢ gain control without paying all stockholders a fair price. The rights plan was not adopted in response to
any specific takeover proposal. Under the rights plan, the Company declared a dividend of one right (“Right”) on each
share of the Company’s common stock. Each Right entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of a new
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share, at an exercise price of $50.00. Each Right entitles
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its holder to purchase a number of common shares of the Company having a market value of twice the exercise price. The
Rights are not currently exercisable and will become exercisable only in the event a person or group acquires beneficial
ownership of 10 percent or more of the Company’s common stock {except that certain institutional investors may hold up
to 12.5%). The dividend distribution was made on February 29, 1996 to stockholders of record on that date. The Rights
will expire on February 28, 2006.

J — ACQUISITION

On July 1, 2002, the Company purchased a controlling interest in Pan African Airlines (Nigeria) Ltd., a West Africa
helicopter operating company, and simultaneously purchased ten single engine helicopters and three fixed wing aircraft, all
for $16.0 million. The purchase price contained a significant element of goodwill as this acquisition was viewed as
strategic in protecting our existing market share in West Africa. The purchase was contingent upon the award of a three-
party contract by a major oil company for helicopter transportation for a five-year term. The three parties to the contract
include the major oil company, one of the Company’s wholly owned operating subsidiaries, and the West Africa helicopter
company. Upon award of the contract, which would not have been awarded without the participation of one of the
Company’s wholly owned operating subsidiaries, the Company acquired the controlling interest discussed above. The
acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and the results of the West Africa helicopter company from the
date of acquisition are included in the consolidated results. The acquisition was financed with $2.0 million of existing cash
and $14.0 million of borrowings under the Company’s US line of credit facility. The purchase price was allocated to the
assets and liabilities acquired based upon estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair market value
of the tangible net assets acquired of $6.6 million was allocated to goodwill, $4.8 million of which is deductible for tax
purposes. No other intangible assets were acquired. The pro forma effect of operations of the acquisition when presented
as of the beginning of the periods presented was not material to the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition.

July 1. 2002

(in thousands)
CUITENE BSSELS .u.eevvveieeieeiii vt e et eteeereseveeetna e ean s $ 2,307
Property and eqUIPMENt ........c.occvvrrrcnvniieniirneeenes 8,627
GOOAWIL...ooiiiiiecri s 6.559
Total Assets Acquired .......ocoocvvevvvieeeriiiieicneeree s § 17.493
Current liabilitieS.........ocoeiieeinerininnee. o $ (536)
Other liabilities and deferred credits (957)
Total Liabilities Assumed ..........cccceevevieieeiiiieeennn, 3 (1.493)
Net Assets Acquired........coocvviincniiniciice e, $_ 16,000

On December 21, 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the common stock of Cox, Kraay & Associates and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Pueblo Airmotive, Inc. (“Pueblo”). Headquartered in Tucson, Arizona, Pueblo is an aircraft
engine and component overhaul company. Pueblo was formerly affiliated with a group of entities that are investors in HC,
the Company’s unconsolidated affiliate in Mexico. The capabilities of and services offered by Pueblo provide the
Company with an in-house option for the repair and overhaul of certain engine types as well as establish the Company’s
entry into the third party market for these services. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and the
results of Pueblo from the date of acquisition are included in consolidated results. The purchase price was comprised of
cash of $100,000 and the issuance of 365,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The closing price of the stock on
the date of acquisition was $17.51 and has been allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon estimated fair
values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair market value of the tangible net assets acquired of $6.4 million was
allocated to goodwill. The purchase price contained a significant amount of goodwill, as the engine overhaul services
performed by Pueblo was seen as an important “service line” to add to the Company’s existing technical services products,
and because Pueblo provides a capital source for the repair and overhaul of the Company’s own engines, allowing the
Company to better manage the Company’s maintenance and repair costs. No other intangible assets were acquired.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition.

December 21, 2001
(in thousands)
CUITENE @SSELS c..ovveerireeeeeieseere e ee e ear e eeeeeee et eareene $ 4,050
Property and equipment ............ccooocicivnencornninenean 950
GOOAWIIL. e e 6,371
Total Assets Acquired......c.ccovvveieiniiieeincreeicnenes $ 11371
Current Habilities....c..oovveeiiieirieiene e $ (747)
Deferred taXes ......ocoiviiiiieiicer e (133)
Total Liabilities Assumed ......cccoeevvvninecrecrnenenininennns $ (880)
Net Assets ACQUITEd .......coviverieireierieeneee e $ 10.491
Debt ASSUMEd ........ucvvirieienieirirreeeeree et $ 4,000

K — RELATED PARTIES

On December 19, 1996, the Company and one of its subsidiaries acquired 49% of the common stock and a
significant amount of Bristow’s subordinated debt as further discussed below. Bristow is incorporated in England and
holds all of the outstanding shares in Bristow Helicopter Group Limited (“BHGL”). Bristow is organized with three
different classes of ordinary shares (common stock) having disproportionate voting rights. The Company, Caledonia
Investments plc and its subsidiary, Caledonia Industrial & Services Limited {collectively, “Caledonia”) and a Norwegian
investor (the “Norwegian Investor”), originally owned 49%, 49% and 2%, respectively, of Bristow’s total outstanding
ordinary shares. In December 2002, the Company called the shares of the Norwegian Investor in accordance with the
put/call agreement described below and sold them to a U.K. investor (the “E.U. Investor”). In turn, the E.U. Investor
became a party to the put/call agreement on substantially the same terms as had applied to the Norwegian Investor. In
March 2004, Caledonia sold a portion of its holdings in Bristow equal to 3% of the total outstanding ordinary shares to the
E.U. Investor.

The Company paid £80.2 million (approximately $132 million) in cash (funded from existing cash balances and the
proceeds of the 6% Notes), issued $7.5 million of the 6% Notes to Caledonia and issued 1,374,389 shares of Common
Stock on December 19, 1996 for its ownership of Bristow. Caledonia received 1,300,000 shares of the Common Stock
and BHGL’s management received 74,389 shares. In addition, the Company acquired £5.0 million (approximately $8.4
million) principal amount of BHGL’s subordinated debt for cash of £5.4 million (approximately $8.9 million) including
accrued interest.

In addition to its ownership of 49% of Bristow’s outstanding ordinary shares and £5.0 million principal amount of
Bristow’s subordinated debt, the Company acquired £91.0 million (approximately $150 million) principal amount of
subordinated unsecured loan stock (debt) of Bristow bearing interest at an annual rate of 13.5% and payable semi-
annually. Bristow had the right to and did defer payment of interest on such debt until January 31, 2002. Deferred interest
accrues interest at an annual rate of 13.5%. Interest on the subordinated debt continues to accrue and aggregated $228.9
million at March 31, 2004. No interest payments have been paid through March 31, 2004.

The Company, Caledonia, the E.U. Investor and Bristow entered into a shareholders’ agreement respecting, among
other things, the composition of the board of directors of Bristow. On matters coming before Bristow’s board, Caledonia’s
appointees have a total of three votes and the two other directors have one vote each. So long as Caledonia has a
significant interest in the shares of the Company’s Common Stock issued to it pursuant to the transaction or maintains its
voting control of Bristow, Caledonia will have the right to nominate two persons to the board of directors of the Company
and to replace any such directors so nominated.
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Caledonia, the Company and the E.U. Investor also entered into a put/call agreement under which, upon giving
specified prior notice, the Company has the right to buy all the Bristow shares held by Caledonia and the E.U. Investor,
who, in turn, each have the right to require the Company to purchase such shares. Under current United Kingdom law, the
Company would be required, in order for Bristow to retain its operating license, to find a qualified European investor to
own any Bristow shares it has the right to acquire under the put/call agreement. The only restriction under the put/call
agreement limiting the Company’s ability to exercise the put/call option is a requirement to consult with the CAA
regarding the suitability of the new holder of the Bristow shares. The put/call agreement does not contain any provisions
should the CAA not approve the new European investor. However, the Company would work diligently to find a
European investor suitable to the CAA. In March 2004, the Company prepaid a portion of the put/call option price,
representing the amount of guaranteed return since inception, amounting to $11.4 million. The payment was charged
against minority interest on our balance sheet where this obligation had been accrued. In consideration of this, the other
shareholders of Bristow agreed to reduce the guaranteed return factor used in calculating the put/call option price, effective
April 1, 2004, from 12% per annum to LIBOR plus 3%. In May 2004, the Company acquired eight million shares of
deferred stock, essentially a subordinated class of stock with no voting rights, from Bristow for £1 per share ($14.4 million
in total). Bristow used these proceeds to redeem £8 million of its ordinary share capital at par value on a pro rata basis
from all of its outstanding shareholders, including the Company. Caledonia received management fees from Bristow that
were payable semi-annually in advance through June 2003.

See Note C for discussion of the Company’s investments in and transactions with unconsolidated affiliates. See
Note J for discussion of an acquisition of a company formerly affiliated with a group of entities that the Company is
affiliated with in Mexico.

L — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,”
which requires that companies disclose segment data based on how management makes decisions about allocating
resources to segments and measuring their performance. The Company operates principally in two business segments:
Helicopter Activities and Production Management Services. AirLog and Bristow are major suppliers of helicopter
transportation services to the worldwide offshore oil and gas industry. GPM provides production management services,
contract personne! and medical support services in the Gulf of Mexico to the domestic oil and gas industry. The following
shows reportable segment information for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, reconciled to
consolidated totals, and prepared on the same basis as the Company’s consolidated financial statements (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Segment operating revenue from external customers:
Helicopter aCtiVItIes .......ce.crrereneeieecsienceninee e $ 511,820 $ 506,580 $ 461,352
Production management SEIVICES.........ccoccoovinniiniisinninnns, 49.750 47,621 45,685
Total segment operating revenuUe...........coovvvvrcccvcrvinnnnenn 3§ 561,570 $ 554201 $ 507,037
Intersegment operating revenue:
HelicOPter aCtVIHES .....ooevereeieeiecree et e eeeens $ 7,614 $ 6,204 $ 6,573
Production management SEIVICeS..........covvveecrvriecrraneieercssnennens 65 64 --
Total intersegment operating revenue............ocooccvevninne. 3 1,679 3 6,268 $ 6,573
Consolidated operating revenue reconciliation:
HelicOpter CtIVIIES ... ooveveeeeririer e et seeseesennae e sacieseenes $ 519,434 $ 512,784 $ 467925
Production management SETVICES.....c.covuvvririererernerievsicanereenes 49,815 47,685 45,685
Intersegment eliminations........c...vcveriernienrnenrcnenneneeee s (7,679) (6,268) (6,573)
COTPOTALE ..ottt ettt st s nane et e eeeeas 2,079 909 1,524
Total consolidated operating revenue ...........cooccccecnine, $§ 563,649 $ 555,110 $ 508,561
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002
Consolidated operating income reconciliation:
Helicopter activities including allocation of curtailment gain.. $§ 91,587 § 66,163 $ 70,046
Production management SErVICES.......cvivrerrireireracereeriesernersennes 2,513 2.948 2,186
Total segment Operating iNCOME......ocoocvvvrerververuesrisnaneneas 94,100 69,111 72,232
Gain on disposal of 8SSetS....cviiviiriiviiriirieririeiree e 3,943 3,734 3,553
COTPOTALE ...ttt et ettt ettt a b e sbaebaaaes (5,938) (4,053) (3,652)
Curtailment gain allocated to Corporate .........cc.coevcvrerconincnncns 1.300 - -
Total consolidated operating income........ocovcevenerrivrerionee $ 93405 $ 68,792 $ 72,133
Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003 2002
Helicopter ACHIVILIES ..oovevveiiiirieire e vieresreier et se e nns $ 67,410 $ 54,784 $ 74,999
Production management Services.........cocovvvvrceriemnieeineinneeiennee 436 133 180
COTPOTBLE ..ottt e et eas b a e 9 114 102
TOtAl oo $ 67.855 $ 55031 S 7528
Depreciation and Amortization
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003 2002
Helicopter aCtiVIties ....oivivrioriieiieieieeeceerierie e v eeneere $ 37,015 $ 33,711 ) 30,567
Production management SErviCes......c.oovuivrirerreererirreurenneenns 166 170 1,302
COTPOTALE ...t 2,362 3.783 3.377
TOtAL et $ 39,543 S 37.664 Y 35.246
Identifiable Assets as of March 31,
2004 2003 2002
Helicopter actiVities .......cocvveiiiiiveceeiiee s er e $ 939322 $ 812,914 $ 715412
Production management SEIVIiCes......coocveriviererriorriiennenens 28,164 26,223 23,841
Corporate and other ........cccoiiviriie e 77,417 66.894 68.048
TOAL c.eeiiiee e $ 1.044.903 $ 906,031 $ 807301

The Company attributes revenue to various countries based on the location where Helicopter Activities or

Production Management Services are actually performed. Long-lived assets consist primarily of helicopters and are
attributed to various countries based on the physical location of the asset at a given fiscal year end. Entity-wide
information by geographic area is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

— 2004
Operating revenue:

United StAES......c.viivieiiiieciiis et een e $ 201,753
United Kingdom .......ccooeveiiiiienieeniiiie e 167,605
INIZETIA oottt et 72,337
AUSITALIA .o 32,072
MEXICO it iicrit it ettt et e ettt eaee e eens 23,473
OFher COUNITIES w..ovvirieiiiiee et e 66,409

$ 563,649

2003

$ 195099
166,720
61,434
26,823
23,397

81,637

S 555110

2002

$ 195,767
137,384
48,252
22,247
18,957

85.954

§ 508,561
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As of March 31,

2004 2003
Long-lived assets:
TUIITEA SEALES.....viieeieiir e ettt et ee e ete e e e e eee et st e er e et eateasb e beasaesaeeneestsenaserinas $ 160,419 $131,334
United KinGAom .....ooiiviiieiii ettt 160,080 181,233
INIZETIA L. vvveveeritt it ettt ee et e en s emi et ee e st sbeks bbbt 57,068 36,125
AAUSETALIA c1eevieeie ettt ettt e et eb et s etb e bt ae e e e bt e et e eesen e e aa s eanae e 39,506 29,746
IEKICO M1 ettt eres ittt eeiseateeb e e eesatsetentessbs e aesas e eabaeaae emsan v e et s ensbaeee e et e enbe e e e e 41,463 42,433
OLhEr COUNTIIES ...vvieuviiereeiis it i b eeree bt e er e e eaeeeteeessee s b e ssbeesaeeesseesmeeeeae e e eeerraeenee 127.120 105,356

585,656  $526.227
Goodwill related to Production Management Services was $14.0 million as of March 31, 2004 and 2003. Goodwill
related to Helicopter Activities was $12.8 million and $12.9 as of March 31, 2004 and March 31, 2003, respectively.

During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, AirLog and Bristow conducted operations in over 12 foreign countries as well
as in the United States and the United Kingdom. Due to the nature of the principal assets of the Company, they are
regularly and routinely moved between operating areas (both domestic and foreign) to meet changes in market and
operating conditions. During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 the aggregate activities of one ongoing international oil company
customer accounted for 11%, 15% and 14%, respectively, of consolidated operating revenue.

M — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Quarter Ended
June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
2004
GIOSS TEVETIUR ....eveveire it e § 1347350 $ 140,803 S 139072  § 152,967
Operating INCOME.......ccoovrvirrcrcnenerenrenes $ 16473 $ 20,021 $ 10,770 $ 46,141
Net inNCOME.......ovevieeeieree e 3 8,268 3 8,500 3 2,790 $ 33,546
Basic earnings per share .......c.c..ccocecevniniens 3 0.37 $ 0.38 3 0.12 $ 1,48
Diluted earnings per share ...........cccoc.ooveevn. $ 035 § 037 § 012 % 147"
2003
GTOSS TEVETIUE ....vovvieieiiceeceeceicneercreaa $ 135356 8 145,542 3 139,241 $ 138,705
Operating iNCOME...........cocovcinininiiinnicinins 3 17,421 $ 21,578 $ 18,941 $ 10,852
NEEINCOME. ..o $ 9,482 $ 12,483 3 12,018 $ 9,147
Basic earnings per share ..........ccococcovenns $ 042 3 0.56 $ 0.53 $ 041
Diluted earnings per share .........cc.cooee e, $ 0.39 $ 0.51 3 0.49 3 0.38
2002
GIOSS TEVENUE ...ooovvvrierieeneneirecescrncseeneien § 123709 % 132,237 $ 128,119 3 128,049
Operating iNCome. ........cooceviverirerinianncas b 19,252 by 22,636 $ 16,690 3 13,555
Net INCOME.....viveiereeeeeeeeeetir s $ 11,371  § 13316 $ 10,795 $ 8.968
Basic earnings per share ... $ 0,52 $ 0.61 $ 0.49 b 0.40
Diluted earnings per share ......................... $ 0.47 $ 0.55 b 0.45 3 0.38

Mncludes $21.7 million, $15.7 million net of tax, of curtailment gain relating to the pension plan discussed in Note H.
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N — SUPPLEMENTAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In connection with the sale of the Company’s $230 million 6 /s% Senior Notes due 2013, certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries™) jointly, severally and unconditionally guaranteed the payment obligations
under the Notes. The following supplemental financial information sets forth, on a consolidating basis, the balance sheet,
statement of income and cash flow information for Offshore Logistics, Inc. (“Parent Company Only”), for the Guarantor
Subsidiaries and for Offshore Logistics, Inc.’s other subsidiaries (the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The Company has
not presented separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning the Guarantor Subsidiaries because
management has determined that such information is not material to investors.

The supplemental condensed consolidating financial information has been prepared pursuant to the rules and
regulations for condensed financial information and does not include all disclosures included in annual financial
statements, although the Company believes that the disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not
misleading. Certain reclassifications were made to conform all of the financial information to the financial presentation on
a consolidated basis. The principal eliminating entries eliminate investments in subsidiaries, intercompany balances and
intercompany revenues and expenses.

The allocation of the consolidated income tax provision was made using the with and without allocation method.
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

March 31, 2004
Parent Non-
Company Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ..................cocvone. $ 31,106 $ 5,990 $ 48,583 $ -- $ 85,679
Accounts receivable.........cooovviiiiiniiieiees 8,135 38,804 84,648 (10,441) 121,146
INVeNtories ........ooveeveeiiee e - 68,807 64,117 149 133,073
Prepaid expenses and other...............cccovnee. 302 4,161 6,411 -- 10.874
Total current assetS........oocoevveeeivivierecnneinnns 39,543 117,762 203,759 (10,292) 350,772
Intercompany INvestment ..........ccoccvereenrneene. 259,179 -- - (259,179) --
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates.......... 894 -- 38,035 -- : 38,929
Intercompany note receivables...........cooveene 507,001 -- 25,688 (532,689) ’ --

Property and equipment—at cost:
Land and buildings ........cccccevineninniniennnns 135 17,689 8,770 - 26,594
Aircraft and equipment..................ccoee 1,464 294910 501,409 -- 797,783
1,599 312,599 510,179 -- 824,377

Less: Accumulated depreciation

and amortization................cccoeeeeeeeeeeean. (1.410) (95.629) (141.682) -- (238.721)

189 216,970 368,497 -- 585,656
GoodWill. ..o -- 13,839 12,879 111 26,829
Other @SSets .....coeveieerieceeeeeeeeeee e 6.255 119 36.343 42,717

$ 813,061 § 348.690 $ 685,201 $.(802,049) § 1.044903

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable..........ccocoivnniiniece, $ 333 $ 7,191 $ 23,532 $§ @617 § 27,439
Accrued liabilities.................c.cooeeieieon. 6,990 12,521 52,570 (6,824) 65,257
Deferred taxes....coovviveviiecie e 1,802 -- - -- 1,802
Current maturities of long-term debt ........... -- -- 4.417 -- 4,417
Total current liabilities ...............c.ccuveenee. 9,125 19,712 80,519 (10,441) 98,915
Long-term debt, less current maturities............ 230,000 - 21,117 - 251,117
Intercompany notes payable ...........ccccoveeernnen. 24,576 88,941 419,172 (532,689) --
Other liabilities and deferred credits................ 1,271 3,130 142,925 -- 147,326
Deferred taxes......ooivivivievivierinreieeeeeeieerneeens 8,583 56,468 26,991 - 92,042
MINOTILY INtETESt......ocervvrrrriirirerr e 9,385 - -- - 9,385
Stockholders’ investment:
Common StOCK.......ciiviivireiiiiie e e etreer e 226 4,062 22,828 (26,890) 226
Additional paid in capital ...........ccccovirriennnn. 141,384 51,168 13,475 (64,643) 141,384
Retained €arnings .......cccovevenencnceinnienen, 352,454 125,209 62,318 (187,379) 352,602
Accumulated other comprehensive
INCOME (10SS)..vevvieeiirieerereirricieiieererreeian 36,057 -- (104.144) 19,993 (48.094)
530,121 180.439 (5,523) (258.919) 446,118

3 813.061 $§ 348,690 $ 685201 3 (802,049) § 1,044,903
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

March 31, 2004
Parent Non-
Company Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated
(in thousands)
Gross revenue:
Operating FEVENUE ...cc.ocvvenievenrenieirrrneeeenes $ 1,470 $ 194,299 $ 367,880 $ -- $ 563,649
Intercompany revenue .........c..cocorcorenenennes -- 12,553 1,700 (14,253) --
Gain on disposal of equipment ................... -- 1,055 2,888 -- 3.943
1,470 207,907 372,468 (14,253) 567,592
Operating expenses:
Direct CoStuuuviviiviiiriniirenrieneen. e ———— -- 151,330 266,087 - 417,417
Intercompany eXpense .........oocceveeveerereennenes 8 1,691 11,591 (13,290) -
Depreciation and amortization.............c....... 200 12,709 26,634 - 39,543
General and administrative..........ccocveeeeen. 6,900 10.395 22,560 (963) 38.892
7,108 176,125 326,872 (14,253) 495,852
Curtailment gain.......coccovccrincnercrnercinerennneneene, -- -- 21,665 -- 21.665
Operating inCome ...........occvvevvevvveinens (5,638) 31,782 67,261 - 93,405
Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates............ 44,004 -- 11,197 (44,162) 11,039
INterest INCOME ...vvvvvviiieiiiriiicri et 43,208 20 1,939 (43,478) 1,689
Interest EXPenSe. .....c.cevveerierircnireniernrcnieeniens 15,939 60 44,308 (43,478) 16,829
Loss on extinguishment of debt....................... (6,205) -- - -- (6,205)
Other income (EXPENSe) .oooovvvvvverieereneerenennens (976) (16) (6.818) -- (7.810)
Income before provision for income
Taxes and minority interest............. 58,454 31,726 29,271 (44,162) 75,289
Allocation of consolidated income taxes........... 3,968 8,756 8,079 -- 20,803
Minority interest........covvvverenineeenenioonenon (1.382) -- -- -- (1.382)
Net INCOME ..o $ 53,104 $§ 22970 $ 21,192 $ (44,162) $ 53,104
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

March 31, 2004
Parent Non-
Company Guarantor ~ Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidated
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities .....c.ovvvrreereeniiirniiniene 3 1,547 § 58606 § 12506 § 10672 § 83,331
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures..........ccocovvvvcrmerrinicnceenn %) (57,813) (10,033) -- (67,855)
Assets purchased on behalf of unconsolidated
affiliate.....ccocnviimcce e (17,869) (6,217) (11,308) -- (35,394)
Proceeds from sale of assets to unconsolidated
affiliate ..o 17,869 6,217 11,308 -- 35,394
Proceeds from asset dispositions............c..c..... 4 2,984 3,866 -- 6,854
Investments in subsidiaries...........c.ccovcrvnnnnn. (2.953) -- 1.372 -- (1,581)
Net cash provided by (used in)
InVesting actiVities ......cocccvvrvc e (2.958) (54.829) (4.795) -- (62.582)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings.........ccccovceniirenenens 257,381 -- 3,592 (14,450) 246,523
Repayment of debt and debt redemption
PIEINIUITIS ¢t ceconencne e e (231,289) - (6,116) 3,778 (233,627)
Partial prepayment of put/call obligation......... (11,442) -- -- -- (11,442)
Issuance of common Stock.........cocovveerinniennas 2.085 - -- -- 2.085
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVILIES ..o e 16,735 -- (2,524) (10,672) 3.539
Effect of exchange rate changes in cash............ - - 4.591 -- 4.591
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents........ccccoeonininnniienienieee e 15,324 3,777 9,778 -- 28,879
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of period........ccoocevvininininiienienn 15,782 2,213 38.805 -- 56,800
Cash and cash equivalents
atend of period..........cocooviiiiiii § 31.106 A 5,990 $ 48,583 $ - $ 85,679
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

March 31, 2003
Parent Non-
Company  Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(in thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .................... $§ 15782 § 2,213 $ 38805 § - § 56,800
Accounts receivable.........o 1,860 35,442 86,414 (4,704) 119,012
TNVENLOTIES cvvoeiiviie e -- 66,278 52,575 (7 118,846
Prepaid expenses and other................... 305 2,999 5.139 -- 8.443
Total current assets...........ccocueeeee.. 17,947 106,932 182,933 4,711) 303,101
Intercompany investment.............cccoceenenn 264,498 - -- (264,498) -
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates.... - - 27,928 -- 27,928
Intercompany notes receivable .................. 409,544 - 13,883 (423,427) -
Property and equipment—at cost:
Land and buildings............cecvvvercrnernnnn, 135 8,517 8,019 -- 16,671
Aircraft and equipment .............cccvveien 1.474 253,458 448.179 -- 703.111
1,609 261,975 456,198 -- 719,782
Less: Accumulated depreciation
and amortization...........c.occecevvennen. (1.238) (87.876) (104.441) -- (193,555)
371 174,099 351,757 - 526,227
GoodWill ..o -- 13,839 12,922 111 26,872
Other aSSetS. ... covvireerireeieriireaiiiececeeeaerees 10,080 146 11,677 - 21,903
$ 702,440 $.295016 $ 601,100 $ (692,525) § 906,031
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable............coooeneiin $ 540 § 7,306 $ 26,524 § (4,704) $ 29,666
Accrued liabilities .........ocoooeiveeeeienene. 4,175 14,488 45518 -- 64,181
Deferred taxes...ccccovevveeeciiecceiiieesiineens 33 - -- - 33
Current maturities of long-term debt...... 90,921 - 5,763 - 96,684
Total current liabilities.................... 95,669 21,794 77,805 (4,704) 190,564
Long-term debt, less current maturities ..... 114,000 -- 22,134 -- 136,134
Intercompany notes payable ...................... 14,078 63,485 345,864 (423,427) -
Other liabilities and deferred credits.......... 285 2,785 116,965 -- 120,035
Deferred taxes.....oovvveeveeececeeieeeeeeean, 24,429 49,482 7,171 -- 81,082
MiNority interest ...cooovveveeecereiereeccneerernes 16,555 - -- - 16,555
Stockholders’ investment:
Common StecK ...oooviiviiiiiieie e 225 4,062 12,117 (16,179) 225
Additional paid in capital.........cc.ccoeeee. 139,046 51,168 8,015 (59,183) 139,046
Retained earmnings.......c.occoevvcvvrnrecnnnnnes 299,505 102,240 80,881 (183,128) 299,498
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (10SS) ..covvvvvvveveviiiiiierenns (1.352) -- (69.852) (5.,904) (77.108)
437.424 157.470 31.161 (264.394) 361,661
$ 702,440 $ 295016 $ 601,100 § (692.525) §_ 906,031
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended March 31, 2003

Parent Non-
Company  Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated

(in thousands)

Gross revenue:

Operating revenue..........ocerrerenrereerecnnenns $ 1,179 $ 184,906 $ 369,025 § - $ 555110
Intercompany reVenUe.....c.ooueeerrrervervennens 9 9,268 2,286 (11,563) -~
Gain on disposal of assets.........ccceerenenn 650 1,430 1,654 -- 3.734
1,838 195,604 372,965 (11,563) 558,844
Operating expenses:

Direct COSL...vvvivvrriiiieriireviieesieesrareaseenas - 150,390 267,520 -- 417,910
Intercompany eXpense ........cccoeevvrnrereneons 74 2,211 8,315 (10,600} --
Depreciation and amortization................. 496 11,977 25,191 - 37,664
General and administrative ...................... 6,643 9,760 19,038 (963) 34,478
7,213 174,338 320,064 (11,563) 490,052

Operating inCome .........cccecevevrenianeens (5,375) 21,266 52,901 -- 68,792
Eamnings from unconsolidated affiliates, net ... 33,643 - 12,054 (33,643) 12,054
Interest INCOME ..c.oeevrveveeerreeirieeseeereeve e 36,705 33 1,180 (36,395) 1,523
INLETESt EXPENSE ...vvevevrerereerecirreereeeireesesesrenas 14,820 - 36,479 (36,395) 14,904
Other income (expense), Net........ccoveeereeerennie (390) 73 (2,967) -- (3,284)

Income before provision for income

taxes and minority interest............ 49,763 21,372 26,689 (33,643) 64,181

Allocation of consolidated income taxes......... 4,836 6,411 8,007 - 19,254
MINOTitY INLETESt....c.overeeiirecrerereereeeesreeeree e (1.797) -- - - (1.797)
Net INCOME .ovviveierierierrererenrennes $ 43,130 §_ 14961 $ 18,682 § (33.643) § 43,130

67




OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 2003

Parent Non-
Company Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

ACHIVIEIES ..o § (22.658) §_42.129 § 16916 § 26,000 §  62.387
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures ...........occcceverennns (114) (45,854) (9,063) -- (55,031
Assets purchased on behalf of
affiliate...c.oooiiieiccecce e - - (26,019) - (26,019)
Proceeds from sale of assets to
AffIlHALE. .. ocoiv et aeaeas - - 26,019 -- 26,019
Proceeds from asset dispositions .......... 846 3,728 18,229 -- 22,803
Acquisition, net of cash received.......... -- - (15,953) -- (15,953)
Investments in subsidiaries .................. 498 (498) -- -- --
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
ACHVITIES ..evevveeeeiesrieisee e 1.230 (42,624) (6.787) - (48.181)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings........ccccoeenee. 24,000 -- 47,286 (26,000) 45,286
Repayment of debt......oooeriinrnnnnn, -- - (49,026) -- (49,026)
Issuance of common stocK........ccceverne. 2,631 -- - -- 2,631
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVIIES 1.eevvieersieveisvecerescre e 26.631 - (1,740) (26.000) (1.109)
Effect of exchange rate changes in cash............ -- - 1.033 - 1.033

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalentis.......coociieniieine e 5,203 (495) 9,422 -- 14,130

period ... 10,579 2,708 29,383 - 42,670

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period....... $ 15782 § 22]3 § 38805 § $§ 56,800
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended March 31, 2002

Parent Non-
Company  Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated
(in thousands)
Gross revenue:
Operating revenue ..........covvve i eeeeoernenns $§ 1,096 $ 191,953 $ 315,512 $ - $§ 508,561
Intercompany Tevenue...........c.ccccoevcnennee 4 8,441 1,162 (9,607) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets............... (322) 2.457 1,308 110 3.553
778 202,851 317,982 (9,497) 512,114
Operating expenses:
DITECt COSt..vivriirinieeieiie e 7 149,872 223,273 (149) 373,003
Intercompany expense .........c.cccoeercerienene 1 1,162 7,482 (8,645) --
Depreciation and amortization................. 551 10,353 24,342 - 35246
General and administrative ...........c..c....... 6.604 8.432 17,659 (963) 31,732
7.163 169,819 272,756 (9.757) 439,981
Operating inCOME .....ovvveerirrcrennne (6,385) 33,032 45226 260 72,133
Earnings from unconsolidated affiliates, net ... 38,252 -- 6,604 (38,252) 6,604
Interest INCOME .......oocvvivvviiieiicer et 31,733 145 1,109 (30,731) 2,256
Interest EXPense........cccvvvvvvireeieeiiierec e 14,385 2 32,169 (30,731 15,825
Other income (expense), Net.......c..cccccvevcrncnne 16 5 1,127 == 1,148
Income before provision for income
taxes and minority interest.............. 49,231 33,180 21,897 (37,992) 66,316
Allocation of consolidated income taxes......... 3,438 10,136 6,689 - 20,263
MINOTity INtErest........oooviivcieiriienicicceecencs (1.603) - - - (1.603)
Net INCOME ceovvevrirreiinrirrieierienieieeenen $ 44190 §$ 23,044 5,20 $ (37,992) $ 44,450
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OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 2002

Parent Non-
Company Guarantor Guarantor
Only Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

(in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating

ACHVILIES .. veevecvcriee e et e $ (16,598) § 58,567 $ 38392 $§ (16,017) $ _ 64.344
Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures .......c.ocevvereencencnnens “7 (61,185) (14,049) -- (75,281)

Proceeds from asset dispositions .......... 964 6,766 3,624 -- 11,354

Acquisition, net of cash received.......... 554 -- -- -- 554

INVEStMENtS ........ccocoveerreiirercne e 4,570 (4.570) (876) -- (876)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing

ACHVITIES 1.ttt 6,041 (58.989) (11.301) -- (64.249)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from borrowings..........c......... - - 5,513 (4,000) 1,513

Repayment of debt........ccocvccnnninnnene. - - (35,062) 20,017 (15,045)

Issuance of common stock..........c..c... 1,503 - -- -- 1,503
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

ACHIVILIES tvevieeeieceeriercreec e 1,503 - (29.549) 16,017 (12.029)
Effect of exchange rate changes in cash............ - -- (190) - (190)

Net decrease in cash and cash
EqUIVALENLS ...cveeccrecciecee e (9,054) (422) (2,648) -- (12,124)

PETIOW e viivieiiieici e e 19.633 3.130 32.031 -- 54,794

$_ 42670

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period....... $§ 10579 § 2708 $§ 29383 §
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ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no disagreements with the independent auditors on any matters of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedures.

ITEM 9a. Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules
and forms. As of March 31, 2004, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective.

{b) There has been no change in our internal controls over financial reporting during our last fiscal quarter that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.

PART II1
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The Company has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics applicable to the Company’s directors, officers
(including the Company’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer and controller) and employees, known as
the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is available on the Company’s
website and in print form to any shareholder who requests a copy. In the event that we amend or waive any of the
provisions of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, we intend to disclose the same on the Company’s website at
www.olog.com.

The information required by Item 10 regarding our executive officers appears as Item 4(a) under Part I of this
Report. The information required by Item 10 regarding an audit committee financial expert is incorporated by reference
from the information under the caption “Corporate Governance” in the 2004 Proxy. The information required by Item 10
regarding the members of our Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is incorporated by reference from the
information under the caption “Committees of the Board of Directors” in the 2004 Proxy.

The remaining information called for by this Item 10 is incorporated by reference to “Election of Directors” in the
2004 Proxy.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
There is incorporated by reference herein the information under the caption “Executive Compensation”
contained in the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for use in connection with the 2004 Annual Stockholders’
Meeting.
ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
There is incorporated by reference herein the information under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management”, “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Information Concerning Nominees”
contained in the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for use in connection with the 2004 Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

There is incorporated by reference herein the information under the caption “Executive Compensation™ contained
in the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for use in connection with the 2004 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

There is incorporated by reference herein the information under the caption “Relationship with Independent Public
Accountants” contained in the registrant’s definitive proxy statement for use with the 2004 Annua! Stockholders’ Meeting.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) (1) Financial Statements —
Independent Auditors’ Report
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheet — As of March 31, 2004 and 2003.
Consolidated Statement of Income for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Investment for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because the information required is included in the financial statements or notes or
have been omitted because they are not applicable or not required.

(a) (3)
Incorporated
by Reference
to
Registration
or File Form or Exhibit
Exhibits Number Report Date Number
3) Articles of Incorporation and By-laws
(1) Delaware Certificate of Incorporation 0-5232 10-K June 1989 3(10)
(2) Agreement and Plan of Merger dated 0-5232 10-K June 1989 3(11)
December 29, 1987
(3) Certificate of Merger dated December 29, 1987 0-5232 10-K June 1990 3(3)
(4) Certificate of Correction of Certificate of Merger 0-5232 10-K June 1990 3(4)
dated January 20, 1988
(5) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of 0-5232 10-K June 1990 3(5)
Incorporation dated November 30, 1989
(6) Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of 0-5232 8-K Dec. 1992 3
Incorporation dated December 9, 1992
(7) Rights Agreement and Form of Rights Certificate 0-5232 8A Feb. 1996 4
(8) Amended and Restated By-laws 0-5232 8-K Feb. 1996 3(7)
(9) Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior 0-5232 10-K June 1996 3(9)
Participating Preferred Stock
(10) First Amendment to Rights Agreement 0-5232 8-A/A May 1997 5
(11) Second Amendment to Rights Agreement 0-5232 8-A/A January 2003 4.3
4) Instruments defining the rights of security holders,
including indentures
(1) Registration Rights Agreement dated December 0-5232 10-Q Dec. 1996  4(3)

19, 1996, between the Company and Caledonia
Industrial and Services Limited
(2) Indenture, dated as of June 20, 2003, among the 333-107148 S-4 July 18,2003 4.1
Company, the Guarantors named therein and U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee
(3) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 333-107148 S-4 July 18,2003 4.2
20, 2003, among the Company and Credit Suisse
First Boston LLC, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.,
Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated, Howard
Weil, A Division of Legg Mason Wood Walker,
Inc., Jefferies & Company, Inc., and Johnson Rice
& Company L.L.C.
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(10)

4)

)

Exhibits
Form of 144A Global Note representing
$228,170,000 Principal Amount of 6 1/8% Senior
Notes due 2013
Form of Regulation S Global Note representing
$1,830,000 Principal Amount of 6 1/8% Senior
Notes due 2013

Material Contracts

@

2)

3)

4
)

(6)
()

®
©)

(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)

(14)

(15)
(16)
(17)

(18)
(19)

Executive Welfare Benefit Agreement, similar
agreement omitted pursuant to Instruction 2 to
Item 601 of Regulation S-K *

Executive Welfare Benefit Agreement, similar
agreements are omitted pursuant to Instruction 2
to Item 601 of Regulation S-K *

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June 1,
1994, as amended

Shareholders Agreement dated as of June 1, 1994
Proposed Form of Non-competition Agreement
with Individual Shareholders

Proposed Form of Joint Venture Agreement
Offshore Logistics, Inc. 1994 Long-Term
Management Incentive Plan *

Offshore Logistics, Inc. Annual Incentive
Compensation Plan *

Indemnity Agreement, similar agreements with
other directors of the Company are omitted
pursuant to Instruction 2 to Item 601 of
Regulation S-K.

Master Agreement dated December 12, 1996
Change of Control Agreement between the
Company and George M. Small. Substantially
identical contracts with five other officers are
omitted pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation

S-K Instructions. *

Offshore Logistics, Inc. 1994 Long-Term
Management Incentive Plan, as amended *
Agreement between Pilots Represented by Office
and Professional Employees International Union,
AFL-CIO and Offshore Logistics, Inc.

Offshore Logistics, Inc. 1991 Non-qualified Stock
Option Plan for Non-employee Directors, as
amended.*

Agreement with Louis F. Crane dated October 18,
2001, executed January 7, 2002.*

Offshore Logistics, Inc. 1994 Long-Term
Management Incentive Plan, as amended.*
Continuing Employment and Separation
Agreement with Hans J. Albert dated October 1,
2002*

Oftshore Logistics, Inc. Deferred Compensation
Plan *

Offshore Logistics, Inc. 2003 Nonqualified Stock
Option Plan for Nonemployee Directors *

73

Incorporated
by Reference
to
Registration
or File
Number
333-107148

333-107148

33-9596

33-9596

33-79968

33-79968
33-79968

33-79968
33-87450

0-5232

0-5232

0-5232
0-5232

0-5232

0-5232

33-50946

0-5232

333-100017

001-31617

333-115473

Form or

Report
S-4

S-4

S-4

S-4

S-4
S-4
S-4
S-8

10-K

10-K

8-K
10-Q

10-K

10-K

10-K
S-8

10-K

S-8

Date
July 18, 2003

July 18, 2003

Dec. 1986

Dec. 1986

Aug. 1994

Aug. 1994
Aug. 1994

Aug. 1994
Dec. 1994

June 1995

March 1997

Dec. 1996
Sept. 1997

March 1999

March 1999

Aug. 1992

March 2002

September
2002
March 2003

May 13,
2004

Exhibit
Number
43

44

10(ww)

10(xx)

2(1)

2(2)
2(3)

2(4)
84

10(20)

10(14)

2(1)
10(1)

10(15)

10(16)

4.1

10(17)
4.12

10(16)

4.12




Incorporated
by Reference

to
Registration
or File Form or Exhibit
Exhibits Number Report Date Number
(20) Agreement with Keith Chanter dated January 13,
2004. * t

(21)"  Subsidiaries of the Registrant
(23)'  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm

(31.1)"  Certification by President and Chief Executive Officer
(312)"  Certification by Chief Financial Officer

(32.1)"  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of
Registrant pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(32.2)"  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of
Registrant pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

* Compensatory Plan or Arrangement
" Furnished herewith

Agreements with respect to certain of the registrant’s long-term debt are not filed as Exhibits hereto inasmuch as the
debt authorized under any such Agreement does not exceed 10% of the registrant’s total assets. The registrant agrees to
furnish a copy of each such Agreement to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

(b) Offshore Logistics, Inc. filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the last quarter of fiscal year ended March

31, 2004:
Date of Event Reported Item(s) Reported
January S, 2004 Item 7 & 12*
February 11, 2004 Item 7 & 12*

* The information in the Form 8-K furnished pursuant to Item 12 is not considered to be “filed” for the purposes of
section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

OFFSHORE LOGISTICS, INC.

By: /s/ H. Eddy Dupuis
H. Eddy Dupuis
Vice President — Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

June 8, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Peter N. Buckley

Peter N. Buckley Director June 3, 2004

/s/ Jonathan H. Cartwright

Jonathan H. Cartwright Director June 3, 2004

/s/ Stephen J. Cannon

Stephen J. Cannon Director June 3, 2004

David M. Johnson Director June 3, 2004

/s/ Kenneth M. Jones

Kenneth M. Jones Chairman of the Board and June 3, 2004
Director

/s/ Dr. Pierre Henri Jungels

Dr. Pierre Henri Jungels Director June 3, 2004

/s/ Thomas C. Knudson

Thomas C. Knudson Director June 3, 2004

/s/ George M. Small

George M. Small President, Chief Executive Officer and June 3, 2004
Director

/s/ Ken C. Tamblyn

Ken C. Tamblyn Director June 3, 2004

/s/ Robert W. Waldrup

Robert W. Waldrup Director June 3, 2004
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‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS

| PETER N. BUCKLEY
Chairman, Caledonia Investments plc.

STEPHEN J. CANNON®™
President, DynCorp International LLC

JONATHAN H. CARTWRIGHT™-®
Finance Director, Caledonia Investments plc.

WILLIAM E. CHILES
President and Chief Executive Officer

. DAVIDM. JOHNSON®®
|

P THOMAS €. KNUDSON
} Private Investor

|

|

KEN C. TAMBLYN®
Private Investor

ROBERT W. WALDRUP®-®
Private Investor and Consultant

i (1) Member Audit Committee
(2) Member Compensation Committee
(3) Member Nominating Committee

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of stockholders will be
“held in Houston, Texas on Thursday,
September 9, 2004.

. 'CORPORATE INFORMATION

WPORATE OFFICES
- Logistics, Inc.
- Box 5C, Lafayette, Louisiana 70505
37’5 233-1221, Fax (337) 235-6678

OFFICERS AND MANAGEMENT

WILLIAM E. CHILES
President and Chief Executive Officer

KEITH CHANTER ‘
Managing Director, Bristow Helicopters Ltd.

" BILL D. DONALDSON

President, Grasso Production Management, Inc.

H. EDDY DUPUIS
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

DRURY A. MILKE
President, Air Logistics LLC

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

Offshore Logistics, Inc. Common Stock is traded
on the New York Stock Exchange. The Company’s
NYSE symbol is OLG.

INVESTOR INFORMATION
Additional information on the Company is
available at our web site www.olog.com.
Interested parties may also contact the
Company directly at (337) 233-1221.
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